HOUSING RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

May 23, 2019

7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA

OAKLAND, CA
AGENDA

1. CALL Td ORDER
2. ROLL CALL |
3. CONSENT ITEMS
4. OPENFORUM
5. OLD BUSlNESS

a. Policy Committee
6. |

- NEW BUSINESS
a Appeal Hearings in:
i. T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen

7. ‘SCHEDULING AND REPORTS

8. ADJOURNMENT

Accessibility. This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. To request
disability-related accommodations or to request an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or
Spanish interpreter, please email sshannon@oaklandnet.com or call (510) 238-
3715 or California relay service at 711 at least five working days before the
meeting. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting as a’
courtesy to attendees with chemical sensitivities.

Esta reunion es accesible para sillas de ruedas. Si desea solicitar adaptaciones
relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un intérprete de en espariol,
Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por favor envié un correo
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electrénico a sshannon@oaklandnet.com o llame al (510) 238-3715 o 711 por lo

“menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunién. Se le pide de favor que no use
perfumes a esta reunién como cortesia para los que tienen sensibilidad a los
productos quimicos. Gracias.

SIHEAESWGH ARE, SEREEERIE, F5E BILFE,

BN EANERY, BEGRMTEMAIEXES sshannon@oaklandnet.com -
B EE (510) 238-3715 & 711 California relay o

service, EMABREFER  SNEBAUEECER DS,

Service Animals/Emotional Support Animals: The City of Oakland Rent
Adjustment Program is committed to providing full access to qualified persons
with disabilities who use service animals or emotional support animals.

If your service animal lacks visual evidence that it is a service animal (presence
of an apparel item, apparatus, etc.), then please be prepared to reasonably
establish that the animal does, in fact, perform a function or task that you cannot
otherwise perform.

~ If you will be accompanied by an emotional support animal, then you must
provide documentation on letterhead from a licensed mental health professional,
not more than one year old, stating that you have a mental health-related
disability, that having the animal accompany you is necessary to your mental
health or treatment, and that you are under his or her professional care.

Service animals and emotional support animals must be trained to behave
properly in public. An animal that behaves in an unreasonably disruptive or
aggressive manner (barks, growls, bites, jumps, urinates or defecates, etc.) will
be removed.
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CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case No.: T16-0258 -
Case Name: . Sherman v. Michelsen
Property Address: 5823-5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA
Parties: - Mark Sherman (Tenant)
Harold & Diane Michelsen (Owners)
Leah Hess (Ten‘ant Attorney)
OWNERS & TENANT APPEAL:
Activity Date
Tenant Petition filed May 20, 2016

Owner Response filed
Hearing Deciéion mailed
Owner Appeal filed
Tenant Appeal filed

Legal Brief & Evidence
submitted by Tenant Attorney

-Closing Brief Re: Fraud and Mistake
- submitted by Owners

Tenant’s Remand Héar'ihg Brief
- Submitted by Tenant’s Attorney

- Additional Hearing Brief submitted
by Tenant Attorney with attached
Request for Judicial Notice

July 21, 20'16
December 4, 2018
December 19, 2018
December 24, 2018

February 16, 2018

July 13,2018

July 13, 2018

July 16,2018
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OWNER & TENANT APPEAL: (continued)

Activity Date‘

Petitioner Mark Sherman’s Oppositidn January 18, 2019
to Owners’ Appeal submitted by

Tenant Attorney

Opposition to Tenant’s Appeal : January 28,2019
submitted by Owners .
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CITY OF OAKLAND e o B . o
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM BHAT 20 PHI2: 33
Mail To: P. O. Box 70243
Oakland, California 94612-0243
(510) 238-3721

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
result in your petition being rejected or delayed.

TENANT PETITION -

Please print legibly .
Your Name Rental Address (with zip code) Telephone

Mark L. Sherman 5825 Occidental Street (510) 547-1109

Oakland, CA 94608

Your Representative’s Name Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone

Leah Hess, Esq. 1814 Franklin St, Suite 506 (5/0’)-45/—' 2)073

Qakland, CA 94612 | M g -
Property Owner(s) name(s) Mailing Address (with zip code) Téiephaher™ 3
Diane and Rus Michelsen E/ ‘:c LODM, c?p‘l\ %9 a‘g Tunnel Rd. | (925) 9451880
_ afayette, 45

Number of units on the property:
g;)i'&el:(f;::)it you rent House Condominium @M@Room, or Live-Work
Are you current on your v ™ N L’e\g;l‘ly‘Whholding'Rent. You must attach an
rent? (circle one) es A Y explanation and citation of code violation.

L_GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the
grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the following grounds:

X| (a) The increase(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

(b) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my written request.
() The rent was raised illegally after the unit was vacated (Costa-Hawkins violation).

y (d) No written notice of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of increase(s) I am
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000.)

(¢) A City of Oakland form notice of the existence of the Rent Program was not given to me at least six
months before the effective date of the rent increase(s) I am contesting,
X (£1) The housing services I am being provided have decreased. (Complete Section III on following page)

X (f2) At present, there exists a health, safety, fire, or building code violation in the unit. If the owner has been
cited in an inspection re lease attach a copy of the citation or report.

(g) The contested increase is the second rent increase in a 12-month period.

(h) The notice of rent increase based upon capital improvement costs does not contain the “enhanced
notice” requirements of the Rent Adlustment Ordinance or the enhanced notice was not filed with the RAP,

(i) My rent was not reduced after the expiration period of the rent increase based on capital improvements.

(i) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in S years, (The 5-year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

X (k) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (OMC 8.22, Article I)

Tenant Petition, effective 1-15-15
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IL RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete this section)
Date you moved into the Unit: __ 9/1/1985 __ Initial Rent: $__ 1,225 /month

When did the owner first provide you with a written NOTICE TO TENANTS of the existence of the Rent
Adjustment Program (RAP NOTICE)? Date: Mare than 6 mo. . If never provided, enter “Never.”

v ago.
- & Isyour rent subsidized or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Section 8)? Yes No -
List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards, If

you need additional space, please attach another sheet. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that
you are challenging.

Date Notice Date Increase Amount Rent Increased Are you Contesting Did You Receive a
Served Effective this Increase in this Rent Program
(mo/day/year) | (mo/day/year) Petition?* Notice With the
_ Notice O
From To ' Increase?
3/21/2016 |6/1/2016 $1817.80 | $ 4,000 BYes ONo OYes BN
** Sae below $ E OYes ONo OYes 0 No}
$ $ OYes ONo O Yes DNo\\
$ $ OYes DONo OYes ONo \
1S $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
$ $ DYes ONo - OYes 0ONo

* You have 60 days from the date of notice of increase or from the first date you received written notice of the
 existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (O.M.C. 8.22.090 A 2)
_ If you never got the RAP Notice you can contest all past increases.

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for this rental unit;_T-12-0332

111, DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUSING SERVICES:

Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent. If you claim an unlawful
rent increase for service problems, you must complete this section.

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? OYes [ONo
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? @ XNYes ONo
Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? KYes 0ONo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, please attach a separate sheet listing a description of the
reduced service(s) and problem(s). Be sure to include at least the following: 1) a list of the lost housing
service(s) or serious problem(s); 2) the date the loss(es) began or the date you began paying for the
service(s); and 3) how you calculate the dollar value of lost problem(s) or service(s). Please attach
documentary evidence if available.

To have a unit inspected and code violations cited, contact the City of Oakland, Code Compliance Unit, 250
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 2" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612. Phone: (510) 238-3381

**See Attachment A re: Prior rent/petition hearing

Tenant Petition, effective 1-15-15 ' l 2
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IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I said
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true copies of the
originals.

MM/W | | (//é}/;,’c?/fé

Tenant’s Signature Date

Y. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an
agreement with the owner. If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the parties do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will go to a formal hearing
before a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer the same day.

You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the.parties
requesting the use of their services,

Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a

mediation session if the owner does not file a response to the petition. Rent Board Regulation 8.22.100.A.
If you want to schedule your case for mediation, sign below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer (no charge).

- i

Tenant’s Signature : Date

V1. IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File This form must be received at the offices of the City of Oakland, Rent Adjustment Program,
Dalziel Bmldmg, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza Suite 5313, Oakland, CA 94612 within the time limit for filing a
petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22. Board Staff cannot
grant an extension of time to file your petition by phone. For more information, please call: (510) 238-3721.

File Review

The owner is required to file a Response to this petition within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment
Program. You will be mailed a copy of the Landlord’s Response form. Copies of documents attached to the
Response form will not be sent to you. However, you may review these in the Rent Program office by
appointment. For an appointment to review a file call (510) 238-3721; please allow six weeks from the date of
filing before scheduling a file review.

VIiI. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?

Printed form provided by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program

Legal services or community organization

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Other (describe): o ¢ Loanenwc

H

Tenant Petition, effective 1-15-15 3
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ATTACHMENT A

THE PRIMARY CLAIM IN THIS PETITION IS THAT THE CERTIFICATE OF
EXEMPTION FOR THE TENANT’S RENTAL UNIT WAS ISSUED AS A RESULT OF
FRAUD OR MISTAKE. PLAINTIFF WILL PRESENT EVIDENCE PROVING THAT
FRAUD AND MISTAKE. HE WILL PROVE THAT HIS RENTAL UNIT WAS USED
RESIDENTIALLY PRIOR TO THE ENACTMENT OF THE RENT ORDINANCE AND
PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY. THE ISSUE
IN THIS PETITION DIFFERS FROM THE LANDLORD’S EXEMPTION PETITION.
OMC 8.22..030.A.5

THIS PETITION IS BASED UPON 8.22.030.B.1.b. and 8.22.030.B.1.c., WHICH PROVIDE AS
FOLLOWS: '

b. For purposes of obtaining a certificate of exemption or responding to a tenant petition by
claiming an exemption from Chapter 8.22, Article I, the burden of proving and producing
evidence for the exemption is on the owner. A certificate of exemption is a final determination of
exemption absent fraud or mistake.

¢. Timely submission of a certificate of exemption previously granted in response to a petition
shall result in dismissal of the petition absent proof of fraud or mistake regarding the granting of
the certificate. The burden of proving such fraud or mistake is on the tenant.

MR. SHERMAN’S PETITION SHOULD NOT BE DISMISSED, AS HE IS PREPARED TO
PROVE THAT THE CERTIFICATE WAS ISSUED AS A RESULT OF FRAUD AND
MISTAKE.

- Background:

Tenant filed a petition in 2012 challenging every rent increase ever impose as the required
notices informing him of his rights under the Ordinance were never given. (Case No. T-12-0332).
He was successful. The increases were disallowed, rent withholding was authorized, and ongoing
rent was set at $1,225 month. Landlords did not raise exemption during that case.

The landlords unsuccessfully appealed the decision to the Board. When they lost they filed a writ
of mandate in the Superior Court. (Alameda County Superior Court No. RG14711450) That case
is still pending as of the date of filing of this petition. :

The landlords also filed a petition for exemption. They asserted that the certificate of occupancy
in the case was issued in 1985 and that the property was not previously used for residential
purposes. That petition was successful and they obtained a certificate of exemption. (Case No.
L13-0054)

1. This Tenant appealed to the Board, without success. He then filed a writ of mandate in
the Superior Court. (Alameda County Superior Court No. RG15785257). The Superior
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Court upheld the decision and the tenant appealed to the First District Court of Appeals,
where it is currently pending. (First District Court of Appeals Case No. A1477 89)

On March 21, 2016 the Landlords raised the tenant’s rent to $4,000 a month.

Mr. Sherman’s challenge to the rent raise in this proceeding is based upon different grounds and
different evidence than his opposition to the granting of the Landlord’s exemption petition. He
will prove that the Certificate of Exemption was issued as a result of fraud and mistake. The
landlord’s assertions that the subject rental unit was never rented for residential use prior to Mr.
Sherman’s tenancy will be disproved at the hearing in this petition. '

DECREASE IN SERVICES: Multiple problems exist. At the subject unit affecting major
systems: Plumbing defects, yearly leaking through roof, electrical system deficient, windows
which do not open and close, lack of security bars on windows and a multitude of other issues.

Tenant attaches hereto a Citation by a City of Oakland Code Compliance Officer for many issues
and a citation from the Oakland Fire Department. Most of the issues identified have not been

repaired, or were repaired and the repairs failed.

Attached is a report of a recent inspection by Austral Housing Inspections detailing problems
presently in existence at the rental unit. :
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ATTACHMENT B-LOST SERVICES/SERIOUS CONDITIONS AT THE PROPERTY

Lost or Reduced Services:

L. Unit was originally provided with a dishwashing machine. In (year) the landlords
disconnected the dishwasher, rather than provide proper venting, as required by City Inspector.

2. Unit was originally rented as live-work space. In (date) tenant was instructed to cease his
manufacturing activity on the premises.

3. In (date) landlord replaced original (number) gallon trash containers with (number) gallon
trash containers. ‘
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CITY OF OAKLAND ror ey

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM e
P.O. Box 70243 L
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

Oakland, CA 94612
(510) 238-3721

o0

Please Fill Out This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information
may result in your response being rejected. or delayed.

CASENUMBERT[6- 0258 OWNER RESPONSE
Please print legibly. |
Your Name o Complete Address (with zip code) -
Dlﬁ./\C’- é; [—1141_ ro d P@ 59% 6363 , Phone: 725 égs 3673
Kus Mchelsen Mov a‘J’ a q ,({'70 Bmail: D@ 2¢. (> Lod M-
C.om
Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code)
Phone:
Fax:
Ma
Email:

Tenant(s) name(s) Complete Address (with zip code)
Ma ~& Sherman 5B23 - 5825 Credente
, aKlagnd, Ch
Pl OF

—

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes [ No I Number Q05 184 8
(Provide proof of payment.)

Have you paid the Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee? ($30 per unit) Yes X1 No O
(Provide proof of payment.)

There are - ﬁ residential units'in the subject' building. I acquired the buildingon __ / _/ _ﬁf 7 77[

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes & No 0.

L. RENTAL HISTORY

The tenant moved into the rental unit on 9/ ¢ ( (785

-~ Oo%
The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was §_/ <22 5 -~/ month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled NOTICE TO TENANTS OF
RESIDENTIAL RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants?
Yes_“_ No___Idon’tknow____Ifyes, on what date was the Notice first given?_£ pprow & o fi] 0

.

o

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes No v

If you believe your unit is exempt from Rent Adjustment you may skip to Section IV. EXEMPTION.

- Rev. 2/25/15 1
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If a contested increase was based on Capital Improvements, did you provide an Enhanced Notice to
Tenants for Capital Improvements to the petitioning tenant(s)? Yes No . If yes, on what

date was the Enhanced Notice given?

. Did you submit a copy of the Enhanced Notice

to the RAP office within 10 days of serving the tenant? Yes No . Not applicable: there was
no capital improvements increase.

Begin with the most recent rent increase and work backwards. Attach another sheet if needed.

Did you provide NOTICE 5] -~

Date Notice Date Increase Amount Rent Increased
Given Effective TO TENANTS with the
(mo/daylyear) (mo/dayl/year) From To notice of rent increase?
$ ' $ ‘ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo
1% $ OYes 0ONo
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo

IL JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE

You must prove that each contested rent increase greater than the Annual CPI Adjustment is justified and
was correctly served. Use the following table and check the applicable justification(s) box for each
increase contested by the tenant(s) petition. For a summary of these justifications, please refer to the
“Justifications for Increases Greater than the Annual CPI Rate” section in the attached Owner’s Guide to

Rent Adjustment.
Banking increased Capital Uninsured Fair Debt
Date of (deferred Housing Improve- Repair Costs Return Service (if
Increase annual Service ments purchased
—— increases) Costs before
4/1/14)
O O O O O
O O O O O
(] O O O O O
(] O (] O O O
(] O O O O O
(] O O O O O
(] o O O O

For each justification checked, you must submit organized documents demonstrating your entitlement to
the increase. Please see the “Justifications” section in the attached Owner’s Guide for details on the type
of documentation required. In the case of Capital Improvement increases, you must include a copy of the
“‘Enhanced Notice to Tenants for Capital Improvements” that was given to tenants. Your supporting
documents do not need to be attached here, but are due in the RAP office no later than seven (7) days

before the first scheduled Hearing date.

Rev. 2/25/15
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III. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position regarding the
tenant’s claim(s) of decreased housing services on a separate sheet. Submit any documents,
photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position.

IV. EXEMPTION

If you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22),
please check one or more of the grounds: _

The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental
Housing Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-
Hawkins, please answer the following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire
building?

____ The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or
authority other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

__‘>i The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after
January 1, 1983.

On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or
boarding house for less than 30 days.

The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average
basic cost of new construction.

. The unit is an accommodation in a hespital, convent, monastery, extended care facility,
| } convalescent home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an
s educational institution.

The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

NN e=

V. IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Time to File. This form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland,
CA 94612-0243, within 35 days of the date that a copy of the Tenant Petition was mailed to you. (The
date of mailing is shown on the Proof of Service attached to the Tenant Petition and other response
documents mailed to you.) A postmark does not suffice. If the RAP office is closed on the last day to
file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is open. If you wish to deliver your completed
Owner Response to the Rent Adjustment Program office in person, go to the City of Oakland Housing
Assistance Center, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6 Floor, Oakland, where you can date-stamp and drop
your Response in the Rent Adjustment drop box. The Housing Assistance Center is open Monday through
Friday, except holidays, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. You cannot get an extension of time to file your
Response by telephone,

NOTE: If you do not file a timely Response, you will not be able to produce evidence at the
Hearing, unless you can show good cause for the late filing,

File Review. You should have received a copy of the petition (and claim of decreased services) filed by .
your tenant with this packet. Other documents provided by the tenant will not be mailed to you. Youmay *"-. %
review additional documents in the RAP office by appointment. For an appointment to review a file orto
request a copy of documents in the file call (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 2/25/15 3
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VI. VERIFICATION

Owner must sign here:

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all statements
made in this Response are true and that all of the documents attached hereto are true copies of
the originals.

' )zﬂzaé/ ﬂ//t Clicluer ‘7/2 / /Lf:)/‘é

/Owner s Signature * . Date

VII. MEDIATION AVAILABLE

Your tenant may have signed the mediation section in the Tenant Petition to request mediation of the
disputed issues. Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist the parties to reach an agreement on
the disputed issues in lieu of a Rent Adjustment hearing,

If the parties reach an agreement during the mediation, a written Agreement will be prepared immediately
by the mediator and signed by the parties at that time. If the parties fail to settle the dispute, the case will
go to a formal Rent Adjustment Program Hearing, usually the same day. A Rent Adjustment Program
staff Hearing Officer serves as mediator unless the parties choose to have the mediation conducted by an
outside mediator. If you and the tenant(s) agree to use an outside mediator, please notify the RAP office at
(510) 238-3721. Any fees charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes will be the
responsibility of the parties requesting the use of their services. (Thete is no charge for a RAP Hearing
Officer to mediate a RAP case.)

) Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties request it — after both the Tenant Petition and the Owner
- Response have been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program. The Rent Adjustment Program will not
schedule a mediation_session if the owner does not file a response to_the petition. (Rent Board
Regulation 8.22.100.A.)

If you want to schedule your case _for mediation, sigh below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Officer
(no charge).

Owner’s Signature Date

Rev. 2/25/15 4
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ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Michelsen)

Landlord respectfully moves to Dismiss or Deny This Petition Without Hearing.

. AMOTION TO DISMISS OR DENY WITHOUT HEARING IS ALLOWED AND
APPROPRIATE.

A. Chapter 8.22.110 Describes When A Hearing Is Not Appropriate.
Chapter 8.22.110 directs that a hearing may not be scheduled and a Hearing
Officer may issue a decision without a hearing when: “(c) The required prerequisites to

file a petition or response have not been met; or (d) conclusive proof of exemption has

‘been provided and is not challenged by the tenant.”

The prerequisites for a Tenant F’etition cannot be met, because the property at
issue has been held to be exempt, and thus not a “Covered Unit”, so Mr. Sherman is not
a “tenant” and the Michelsens are not an “Owner” as defined in the Chapter and in the
implementing Regulations.

Conclusive proof of an exemption exists: a Certificate of Exemption approved
after a full hearing, upheld on Board Appeal, and affirmed by the Superior Court in
denying Mr. Sherman’s Petition for Writ of Mandate. (See: Exhibit A: Certificate of
Exemption). '

B. A Second Hearing Would Defeat The Goal of Finality.

Mr. Sherman has had his full and fair hearing on the exemption issue, and
several fev_iews. it is improper for Mr. Sherrrian to continue to contest the exemption by
asking for a second hearing, seeking a more sympathetic hearing officer.

In Rent Board case #L.13-0054, the Hearing Officer, after a full hearing,

determined that the live-work space rented by Mr. Sherman is exempt from the Rent

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Michelsen)
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Control Ordinance; the unit is not a Covered Unit (see: Exhibit B: Decision of Hearing

Officer). Mr. Shennan appealed that decisioh;‘.the decision and the Hearing Officer’s
evidentiary rulings were ubheld on B,oard Appeal, with Mr. Sherman represented by
counsel (see: Exhibit C: Decision of Board on .App}eal). These hearings were full and
extensive (see: Exhibit D: Administrati\)e ‘Record). He challenged the ruling of the
Appellate Panel by filing in the Superior Court for a Wﬁt of Mandate to ove’rtﬁm it; after
 briefing and hearing (Sher‘mvan's hearing brief is Exhibit E), it was upheid by Superior
Court Judge Girillo (see: Exhibit F: Order Denying‘ Writ of Mandate). Mr. Sherman has
appealed thatv adverse ruling; it is pending in the'»Firs_t District Court of Appéal.
| Mr. Sherman is candid that the purpose of the current pefition is to seek ‘a
second hearing on the exemption issue. This must occur before his appeal of the |

. adverse decisioh on his Petition for Writ of Mandate is decided and the issue becomes

Iegally res judicata (legal terminblogy for the claim can't be raised again). Exhibit A to
Mr. Sherman’s Petition notes that his “primary claim” is that the finding of exerhp.tion
" should be reversed. His Exhibit A even quotes Regulations 8.22.0303.1..b. and

8.22.030.B.1.c. |

Mr. Sherman seeks é new hearing now to avoid the issue and claim preclusion
which will exist when the Court of Appeal upholds the Superior Courtjudgment affirming |
the Board dec‘ision on appeal which upheld the Hearing Officer Decision.

vAt this juncture, the goal of finality of decisions is preserved by concepts such as
“law of the cése" and stare decisis, whiéh basically say that a party is due only one full
and fair hearing on the Same claim. Although a the party may appeal and seek

== correction of errors, the result of the one full hearing should not be overturned and a

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0268, (Sherman v. Michelsen)
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second hearrng allowed except in extraordrnary crrcumstances A party does not have a
rrght after an adverse result to successive hearlngs until he prevails. |
Here Mr. Sherman had his full and fair hearing, as recognized by the Board
Dec13|on ion Appeal and the Superior Court Judgment denying his petrtlon for writ of
mandate’ His many objections to rullngs-on evidentiary points, claimed procedural
unfalrness weight to be glven to evidence, etc., were rejected by the Hearrng Officer,

the Board on Appeal, and the Superior Court judge.

It |s not clear that the Rent Board Rules allows the same tenant (overlooking that .

“tenant” |r| the Ordrnance and Regulatlons requires a Covered Unit) to seek a second

hearing on a claim of exemption for the same unit. The rule makes more sense when

, lnterpreted as providing for finality, but also making sure that a collusive result (for

~ example, '?a landlord’s exemption petition with a collaborative tenant) can be challenged

by another independent tenant; here, the initial hearing was undoubtedly not collusive.

| Without concedrng thei lssue this motron will assume for purposes of competrng the

analysis, that the very same tenant can ask for another hearing on the very same claim,
despite losrng in the heanng, on appeal and in the Superior Court.
[Parenthetlcally, notwrthstandrng losing on his Petition for Writ of Mandate, Mr.

Sherman retarned virtually all the beneflts gained by his Rent Board petrtlon the

- Superior Court ruling on the Mrchelsens petition for writ of mandate found the

. exemptlon decision was not retroactive, so left.in place the rent refund and Iowered rent

untrl June 15, 2015; see Exhlbrt G]

I A BARE STATEMENT THAT THE SECOND HEARING WILL BE BASED
UPON NEW EVIDENCE, NEW GROUNDS, AND WILL SHOW FRAUD IS
: - INSUFFICIENT. |

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Michelsen)
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A. Finality Requires That The Pumported New Evidence And Fraud Be Stated
With Particularity.

The Ordinance is specific about the finality of an exemption decision: it is “final
absent fraud ’ormistakﬂe". 'Pa_ying lip service to that requiremen’t, Mr. Sherman states his
Petitioh is based upon “different grounds and different evidence than his opposition to
the granting of the Landlord's exemption petition”, but mékes no attempt efther to

describe the purported “different evidence" orto expiain why that evidence, or the -

- supposed “new grounds” were not presented as part of his vigorous opposntlon tothe

Michelsens’ exemption petltlon
* Mr. Sherman’s approach — to simply declare that the new hearing on the same

issue will be based on “new evidence” and that fhe several prior rulings were based on
“fraud” — would negate the ﬁnélity goal of the Ordinanoe.

At the very least before a hearing Mr. Sherman must set forth in detail the‘
purported “new evidence” and “fraud”. |

This is necessary so that the Board éan analyze whether the situation is
appropriate for an eXceptidn to the finality rule. It can determine whether indeed'new
evide.nce will be presented, or the “néw evidence” is basically evidence which was
excluded at the first heaﬁng or was avaiiable but not presented, and whéther fhé"fraud’
is something different than a pejorative label on “the Iandibrd’s witnesses disagreed with
mine, and mine of course told the trufh, s0 it must be that the landlord defrauded the
hearing ©officer”. |

Most of Mr. Sherman'’s objections to the first hearing and his claims of unfairness

were disagreements with the Hearing Officer’s decisions on what evidence to admit and

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Micheisen)
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what evidence was',per.suasive. Should Mr. Sherinan’s “new evidence” simply be the
evidence previously excluded, or given little weight, then the current petition is exp'osed
as essentially a request for a different hearing officer; it is forum or judge shopping, and
not within the ’Iimited exception to the ﬁnality of exemption decisions.

Similarly, any “new grounds” need an-explanatioh why the contentions were not
raised at the first hearing by Mr. Sherman. Otherwise, a strategy election at the time of

the t' rst heanng on what to focus upon would be transformed after the adverse decision

~ into areason for a second hearing.

While Mr. Sherman’s Petition mentions “mistake”, there is no attempt to describe

or explain what mistake was made. “Mistake” apparently is shorthand for Mr.

Sherman’s disagreement with the fi rst decision.

Under Califomia general law, fraud must be specifically pleaded. General and
conclusmnary allegations are not suft' ment (Stansfield v. Starkey (1980) 220
Cal.App.3d 99, 74; Nagy v. Nagy (1989) 210 Cal.App.3d 1262, 1268). Fraud requires
particularity, that is, “pleading facts which show how, when, where, to whom, and by |
what means” the fraud was accomplished. (Stansfield v. Stafkey (i 990) 220 Cal.App.3d
5_9, 73; Lazarv. Supeh'or Court (1996) 12 Cal.4th 631, 645.) Hall v. Department of
Adoptions (1975) 47 Cal.App.3d 898, 904: Cocper v. Equity General Insurance (1990)
219 Cal.App. 3d 1252, 1262.

B. “New and Different Facts” Mean Facts Which Could Not In The Exerclse of
Reasonable Discretion Have Been Presented At the Initial Hearing.

'Established general law for courts, on which the Rent Board finality approach

seems patterned, furthers the finality of decisions, as does the Ordinance, by limiting

rehearings or overtumihg decided matters to situations of new evidence and fraud.

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Michelsen)
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- However, there are specific legal interpretations of what those terms me_ah for this

purpose. -
Mr. Sherman, in Exhibit A to his Petition, properl'y recognizes that he must
present new evidence in support of his demand for a second hearing. This reflects the

usual rules.

California Code of Civil Procedure subsections 1008 (a) and (b), in substantially
similar Ianguége, allow a party to ask for a rehearing after an adverse decision “baséd
upon new or different facts, circumstances, or law, ... . The party making the application
shall state by affidavit what application‘ was made before, when and to what judge, what
order or decisions were made, and what new or different facts, circumstances, or law
are claimed to be shown.” An appli.cation to reconsider or for rehearing which does not
allege the new or different facts can be treated as a contempt. CCP Section 1008(d).

| Even beyond the explicit requirement to detail the new and different facts, CCP
§1008 is uniformly interpreted, in confbrmanCe with the general rule that a party is
entitled to only one full and fair hearing, to define “new or different facts” as evidence
that was unavailable at the time of the first hearing. Shiffer v. CBS Corp. (2015) 240 | |
Cal. App. 4th 246: | |

“Cdde_ of Civil Procedure section 1008, subdivision (a) provides that a party

affected by a prior court order may, ‘based upon new or different facts,

circumstances, or law, make application to the same judge or court that made the
order, to reconsider the matter and modify, amend, or revoke the prior order.’

(Code Civ. Proc., § 1008, subd. (a).) Similarly, Code of Civil Procedure section

657, subdivision 4 provides that a party may move for a new trial on a showing

~that there is ‘[n]ewly discovered evidence, material for the party making the
application, which he could not, with reasonable diligence, have discovered and
produced at the trial.” (In re H.S. (2010) 188 Cal.App.4th 103, 108.) -

Under both sections, the moving party must provide a ““satisfactory explanation

for the failure to produce that evidence at an earlier time.™ (In re H.S., supra,

188 Cal.App.4th at p. 108, italics omitted; see Even Zohar Construction &

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Michelsen)
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_ Remodelmg, Inc. v. Bellaire Townhouses, LLC (2015) 61 Cal 4th 830, 833; New
York Times Co. v. Superior Court (2005) 135 Cal.App.4th 206, 212 (New York
: Tlmes) )"

The California Supreme Court explained the purpose of these requirements in_
Even Zohar Construction & Remodeling, Inc. v. BellaireTownhouses, Ltd., 61 Cal. 4th

830 (2015):

Courts have construed section 1008 to require a party filing.an application for
reconsideration or a renewed application to show diligence with a satisfactory
explanation for not having presented the new or different information earlier.
(Califomia Correctional Peace Officers Assn. v. Virga, supra, 181 Cal.App.4th at
pp. 46-47 & fns. 14-15; see Garcla v. Hejmadi, supra, 58 Cal.App.4th at pp.
688-690.)
~ Section 1008's purpose is “to conserve judicial resources by constraining

litigants who would endlessly bring the same motions over and over, or move for
reconsideration of every adverse order and then appeal the denial of the motion
to reconsider.” (Sen. Com. on Judiciary, Analysis of Assem. Bill No. 1067 (201 1-
2012 Reg. Sess.) as amended Apr. 25, 2011, p. 4.).

The Board must determine, before a second hearing is allowed, that the “new

facts” are facts or evidence whieh could not have been produced, in the exercise of

‘reasonable diligence, at the first hearing.

C. Extrinsic Fraud is Necessary To Overtum A Decision.
Under California end common law, 'only-"extrinsic fraud®, as distinguished from
“intrinsic fraud” may be the basis to overturn a judgment. A
As explained in In re Mamage of Stevenot (1984) 154 Cal. App. 3d 1051, quotlng one of
California’s “judicial superstars Justlce Roger Traynor:
Over 40 years ago, Justice Traynor wrote, "The final judgment of a court having
jurisdiction over persons and subject matter can be attacked in equity after the
time for appeal or other direct attack has expired only if the alleged fraud or
mistake is extrinsic rather than intrinsic [citations]. Fraud or mistake is extrinsic
when it deprives the unsuccessful party of an opportunity to present his case to
the court [citations]. If an unsuccessful party to an action has been kept in
ignorance thereof [citations] or has been prevented from fully participating therein
[citation], there has been no true adversary proceeding, and the judgment is

ATTACHMENT 1, T16-0258, (Sherman v. Micheisen)
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open to attack at any time. A party who has been given proper notice of an

' action, however, and who has not been prevented from full participation therein,
has had an opportunity to present his case to the court and to protect himself

- from any fraud attempted by his adversary. [Citations.] Fraud perpetrated under
.such circumstances is intrinsic, . . ." (Westphal v. Westphal (1942) 20 Cal.2d 393,
397 [126 P.2d 105}, citing in part to United States v. Throckmorton (1878) 98
U.S. 61, and Caldwell v. Taylor (1933) 218 Cal. 471.) ’

This restriction — that the fraud not be simply presenting evidence which could

have been countered, impeached, or refuted at the first hearing, but must be something

- that is equivalent to having been kept “ignorant” of the proceeding — serves “the policy

that a party who failed to assemble all his evidence at the trial should not be privileged

to relitigate a case, as well as the policy permitting_e party to seek relief from a
judgment entered in a proceeding in which he was deprived of a fair opportunity fully to
present his case.” /d.

Later in Stevenot, the opinion quotes Justice Traynor in another case:

~ Justice Traynor went on to point out, "Relief is denied, however, if a party has

- been given notice of an action and has not been prevented from participating
therein. He has had an opportunity to present his case to the court and to protect
himself from mistake or from any fraud attempted by his adversary. [Citations.]
Moreover, a mutual mistake that might be sufficient to set aside a contract is not
sufficient to set aside a final judgment The principles of res judicata demand that
the parties present their entire case in one proceedmg . [Citation.] Courts ,
deny relief, therefore, when the fraud or mistake is mtnns:c that is, when it 'goes
to the merits of the prior proceedlngs which shouid have been guarded against
by the plaintiff at that time.' [Citations.] [para. ] Relief is also denied when the
complaining party has contributed to the fraud or mistake giving risetothe
judgment thus obtained [citation] 'If the complainant was guilty of negligence in_
permitting the fraud to be practiced or the mistake to occur equity will deny relief. _
[Citation.]" ( /d., at pp. 472-473.) Thus, in Kulchar, the court refused to set aside a
stipulated judgment where a potential tax obligation had been overlooked, since
any fraud or mistake was intrinsic because of a failure to fully investigate.

. Thus, to satisfy the “fraud” groUnd to challenge the eXemption, Mr. Sherman
must show the fraud was extrinsic fraud; a review of the first hearing shows this is

impossible.
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lll.  CONCLUSION"

Thé Reg_ulatidns should nbt be interpreted to allow the same tenant to contest
the finality of an exemption decision after a fair and fLﬂI .hearing, appeal, and writ of
mandate all upheld the exemption.

If a tenant is allowed to'reches‘t“a second hearing on the'basis of new faéts or
fraud, those new facfs and the purported fraud must be stated in the Peﬁtion with
particularity. Only facts and evidence which in the exercise of reasonable diligence
~ could not have been presented at the initial hearing in opposition to the claim of
~ exemption should be considered. Only extrinsic fraud preVenting Mr. Sherman from
‘participating in the first hearing should be considered. |

| In summary, the current Petition should be dismissed outright, becaus_e the
rented'pfope_rty is exempt, and Mr. Sherman is hot a “tenant”. .Addi'tibnally, because Mr.
Sherman’s Petition does not set forth facts which were not available at the time of the
first heafing‘, nor does hé show that extfinsic fraud prevented him from fully participating

at the first hearing, no hearing should be set.
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CITY oF OAKLAND

250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313, OAKLAND, CA 94612

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (5610) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254

HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen

PROPERTY ADDRESSES: 5823-5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

DATES OF HEARING: February 23, 2018; June 22, 2018
DATE OF PRETRIAL

CONFERENCE: October 17, 2017

DATE OF DECISION: November 30, 2018

APPEARANCES: Mark Sherman, Tenant (all dates)
Leah Hess, Attorney for Tenant (all dates)
Charles Abraham, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only)
Sue Doyle, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only)
Daniel Wiener, Witness (by phone, Feb. 23, 2018, only)
Michael Joffe, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only)

Harold Rus Michelsen (by phone, Feb. 23, 2018, only), Owner
Diane Michelsen, Owner (all dates)

SUMMARY OF DECISION

The tenant’s petition is granted. The legal rent for the unit is set forth in the Order below.
CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

The tenant filed a petition on May 20, 2016, alleging that a rent increase from $1,817.80 to
$4,000 a month, effective June 1, 2016, violated the Rent Adjustment Ordinance .
(Ordinance) on the following grounds: the increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is
unjustified or is greater than 10%; no written notice of the Rent Program (RAP Notice) was
given together with the notice of increase; the proposed increase would exceed an overall
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increase of 30% in 5 years; and, that he wishes to contest an exemption from the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance.

The tenant filed an Attachment to the Petition in which he claimed that “the primary claim
in this petition is that the Certificate of Exemption for the tenant’s rental unit was issued as
a result of fraud or mistake.”

Additionally, the tenant claimed decreased housing services and that there is a current
health, safety, fire or building code violation in the unit. The tenant dismissed his claims
regarding decreased services without prejudice on February 27, 2017.

The owners filed a timely response to the tenant petition on July 21, 2016, claiming that the
~ unit was exempt as new construction. The owners filed an Attachment to their Response in
which they claimed that a Certificate of Exemption had already been granted in a prior case
L13-0054, and that the tenant’s petition should therefore be dismissed.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On November 30, 2012, Mark Sherman, tenant at 5825 Occidental Street in Oakland, filed a
petition contesting a series of rent increases in case T12-0332 (the rent increase Hearing).
The owner did not claim a new construction exemption at that time. The tenant prevailed in
his claim, which was upheld on appeal to the Rent Board.

On December 13, 2013, the owner filed a petition in case L13-0054, Michelsen et al v.
Sherman, seeking an exemption for the unit located at 5825 Occidental Street in Oakland
based on new construction. While the original Landlord Petition for Certificate of
Exemption identified the building as a 4 unit building, the attachment to the petition stated
that the only tenant was Mark Sherman at 5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA and that
the:

“Owners will prove the following building history.”

“Chronology of Building Use”

“1975 Michelsen purchases commercial building”

“1976 to 1983, 5823 Occidental rented as commercial space for custom woodworking.”
“1983 to early summer 1984, 5823 Occidental rented as commercial art studio.”
“Appx. June 1984 to October 1984, Michelsen converts 5825 Occidental to live-work
space.” ’

“October, 1984, Building inspected by Housing Authority for Certificate of
Occupancy.”

“November, 1984 Building Permit issued.”

“February, 1985 Certificate of Occupancy issued.”

The Landlord Petition for Certificate of Exemption in that case was mailed only to Sherman,

as he was the only tenant listed on the required attachment to the petition. Sherman filed a
Tenant Response to the petition stating that he contested the exemption.
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A Hearing (the exemption Hearing) was held on February 24, 2014, with the limited
question as to whether or not the unit on Occidental was new construction under the Rent
Adjustment Ordinance. The testimony at the exemption Hearing was primarily about the
Occidental Street unit.

At the exemption Hearing, a Declaration, sworn under penalty of perjury, written by Harold
Rus Michelsen, was admitted into evidence. This declaration stated in pertinent part that:
He was the owner of the commercial building located at 5825 Occidental Street in Oakland
and that he purchased it in 1974, at which time it was vacant. It remained vacant until he
rented it in 1976. The building had previously been used as a print shop. It was one large

* building with no bath facilities, nor kitchen facilities. It had two toilets for employees and a
breakroom. '

The Declaration further states that from 1976 to 1982, the unit was rented as a custom
woodworking studio and then from early 1983 to the summer of 1984 as a custom art studio.
In 1984, a conversion of 5825 Occidental to live work space began. The premises were
rented to Mark Sherman in September of 1985, which was the first time the premises “were
ever rented as a residence...”. At no point in the Declaration does Mr. Michelsen identify the
addresses of the other units on the premises, nor does he say that he lived on the property at
any time.

At the exemption Hearing, Diane Michelsen, Mr. Michelsen’s wife, testified. In pertinent
part her testimony was that she first became familiar with the property in 1982 and
(referring to the Occidental Street portion of the property ) at the time there were no kitchen
facilities, there was no shower or bathing facilities and it did not appear that it could have
been utilized as residential property. It was rented as commercial space in 1983 to an artist
from Boston. In 1983 it was not used for residential purposes. After this artist moved out,
Rus (her husband) converted the property toresidential use. He divided the space into three
units on Grace Street and converted Occidental Street into a residence by putting in a
kitchen, raising the floor, putting in a heating system and a tub.

She further testified that she lived at 927 Grace (the other side of the property) beginning in
1983. Her husband, Rus Michelsen, lived there from the late 1970s. Diane Michelsen
testified that her husband’s legal name is Harold, but that he goes by Rus, his middle name.

At the exemption Hearing the owners produced an email from Rachel Flynn to Greg
McConnell, who was representing the owners at the Hearing, The email stated in pertinent -
part that according to City records the Olympic Press Publishing Company occupied 5825
Occidental starting in 1967. By the mid-80’s, housing went into the structure.

At the exemption Hearing the owners also produced a Certificate of Occupancy for the
building dated February 20, 1985.2 The Certificate of Occupancy relates to all four units ; the
unit on Occidental Street and the three units on Grace Avenue,

! This email was admitted into evidence in this Hearing as Exhibit 1, page 1.
2 This Exhibit was admitted into evidence in the Hearing of 1.13-0054 as Exhibit C.
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Further, at the exemption Hearing, the owner produced a letter dated November 25, 1974,
from the City of Oakland Planning Department, which states that “5825 Occidental Street is
located in the R-50 Medium Density Residential Zone and a residence at that location is
permitted activity. One parking space off street must be provided for the residential portion
of the building.”s 4

At the exemption Hearing, the tenant produced a letter from Charles Abraham, which was
not sworn under penalty of perjury, which stated that he lived at 5823 Occidental during the.
years 1976, 1977 and 1978.5 Additionally, he produced copies of Oakland phone book pages
preceding 1983 showing listings for a Chuck Abraham at that address.

After the exemption Hearing, a Hearing Decision was issued which found in favor of the
owner and stated under the Summary of Decision that the “subject unit is exempt from the
Rent Adjustment Program” and in the Order that the “subject property is exempt from the
Rent Adjustment Ordinance.”

The tenant appealed to the Rent Board arguing that there was prior residential use of his
unit and that the entire property should not be deemed exempt because the other tenants
were not notified about the case.6 The Board affirmed the Hearing Decision but remanded
the case back to the Hearing Officer to determine whether there were other tenants at the
property at the time the Landlord’s Petition for Exemption was filed, and whether these
tenants received notice and opportunity to participate in the hearing. The other tenants were
then notified of the proceeding and a new Hearing, (the Remand Hearing) was scheduled.

Prior to the Remand Hearing, tenant Sherman filed a Request for Rent Adjustment Staff
Intervention on November 25, 2014. In that document the tenant requested for staff to
intervene “for the purpose of better ensuring that all facts relating to the exemption are
presented to the Hearing Officer.” The document also states that “Landlord Diane Michelsen
has given sworn testimony at a prior hearing in this matter that, in the late 1970s, unit 927
Grace Street was formerly a residential space in which Landlord Rus Michelsen resided.”

At the Remand Hearing, the owner’s then representative, Gregory McConnell, addressing
" the question of the process of the remand, stated:

“With regard to this Rent Adjustment Program staff intervention, in addition to it not
being a part of the record, or a part of the Remand, just so that the record is clear, the
Board always has a right, at a future point in time, if a tenant files a Tenant Petition
challenging an exemption, to determine whether or not that exemption was made
based upon fraud or mistake etc. So that if at some point in the future, someone

3 This letter is marked as page S3 in the evidence section of the original file, immediately behind Exhibit A and before
Exhibit B.

*In the instant Hearing, Ms. Michelsen testified that this letter was obtained by her husband soon after he purchased the
building, to establish that he was permitted to live in the building,

3 This Exhibit was admitted into evidence in this Hearing as Exhibit 3. :

§ At that point the tenant attempted to produce sworn declarations from both Charles Abraham and Daniel Wiener.

7 See Request for Rent Adjustment Program Staff Intervention, filed in 113-0054 on November 25,2014,
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wanted to do that, they could do that. So this is not a denial of process to any of the
existing tenants.”8

McConnell also stated that the original petition, filed by the owner, was only seeking a
Certificate of Exemption for the unit at Occidental, and not the other units on Grace Avenue.
However, McConnell noted that since the Board requested that the Hearing be reopened to
consider the other units in the building, the Owner sought an exemption as to all units. At
the Remand Hearing, the owners did not address the issue of their prior residential use of
927 Grace Avenue.

No other tenants (other than Sherman, who was not allowed to participate) appeared at the
Remand Hearing, and the tenants from the Grace Avenue side of the building filed
documents saying they did not contest the exemption.

On December 5, 2014, a Remand Hearing Decision was issued as to the property located at
5825 Occidental Street. The Remand Hearing Decision states that the:

“Owner’s Petition is granted.”
“The subject property is exempt from the Rent Ordinance.”

The tenant then appealed the Remand Hearing Decision to the HRRRB. An Appeal
Decision was issued on June 15, 2015, which determined that the Remand Hearing Decision
applied only to the subject unit on Occidental (and not the units on Grace Avenue) and that
the unit on Occidental was exempt. :

After the Remand Hearing Decision, the tenant filed a writ in Superior Court (Alameda
county Case Number RG15-785257), which was denied. The Court of Appeal affirmed the
Superior Court decision (Case No. A147769).

A Certificate of Exemption was issued for the residential unit located at 5825 Occidental
Street on June 21, 2016.9

In March of 2016, the owner served a rent increase notice on the tenant, purporting to
increase the rent from $1,817.80 a month to $4,000 a month, effective June 1,2016. The
tenant filed the instant petition in response to the rent increase.

After the petition was filed in the instant case, an Administrative Decision was issued on
July 26, 2016, dismissing the tenant’s claim on the grounds of the prior Certificate of
Exemption. The tenant appealed to the HRRRB and an Administrative Appeal Decision was
issued denying the tenant’s claim. The tenant then filed a second writ to the Superior Court.

8 Rent Adjustment Remand Hearing, L.13-0054, 12/1/14 at 3:14-3:54

? While there was argument at the Remand Hearing that the owner sought a Certificate of Exemption for the entire
property, the language of the Certificate of Exemption combined with the Appeal Decision, makes clear that the
Certificate of Exemption is limited to the “unit” located at 5823-5825 Occidental Street. There was never a Certificate of
Exemption as to the units on Grace Avenue and the owner has never filed a petition seeking such.
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During the procedure on the second writ, the City of Oakland argued to the Court that the
City had erred in not providing a Hearing on the merits of the tenant’s claim that the prior
exemption had been granted based on fraud or mistake. The Superior Court granted the
City’s motion and remanded the matter to the HRRRB for further proceedings, and entered
Judgment for Mr. Sherman. On remand, the HRRRB vacated the Administrative Decision
and the Administrative Appeal Decision and ordered the instant Hearing. The owner then
sought a writ to prevent this Hearing from the Court of Appeal, which was denied.

PRETRIAL CONFERENCE

On October 17, 2017, a pretrial conference was held in this case. The Pretrial Conference
Statemnent states: “The Administrative Decision and the Administrative Appeal Decisions
issued in this case are vacated. A Hearing is being held to determine whether or not there
was fraud committed in the prior determination (in case L13-0054), that there was no prior
residential use of the premises in this unit and that the unit qualified for a ‘new
construction’ exemption.” The purpose of the pretrial conference was to determine whether
or not the tenant’s request for findings of good cause with respect to the issuance of
subpoenas would be granted.

At the pretrial conference the owners argued that the case should be dismissed because the
RAP lacked subject matter jurisdiction because the tenant’s claims were barred by collateral
estoppel and res judicata and that the tenant did not allege fraud or mistake with any
specificity. The owners’ request to dismiss the case at the pretrial conference was denied
because the pretrial conference was not the forum to argue whether or not the RAP lacked
subject matter jurisdiction, and that the tenant had alleged fraud or mistake with as much
particularity as is required by this jurisdiction.

After the pretrial conference a Pre-Hearing Conference Order and Amended Notice of
Hearing was issued.

At the pretrial conference, Sherman requested a finding of good cause for a subpoena to be
issued for Mr. Abraham, the person who had issued the initial letter in the exemption case
stating that he had resided on the premises beginning in 1976. The owner objected to the
issuance of the finding of good cause for the subpoena because in the exemption case, and in
the proceedings in Superior Court and the Court of Appeal regarding that case, the HRRRB
and the Courts had refused to allow further evidence from Mr. Abraham. Since the
underlying questions in this case were (1) whether or not fraud was committed by the
owners by denying in the previous case that there was residential use of the premises before
1985, and (2) whether or not a mistake was made in the granting of the exemption, Mr.
Abraham’s testimony was necessary to determine whether or not fraud was committed or a
mistake was made. Therefore, a finding of good cause was issued as to the issuance of a
subpoena for Abraham.

Sherman further requested a finding of good cause for a subpoena to issue for Rachel Flynn,

along with a request for production of documents. Flynn was a prior City of Oakland
employee. At the pretrial conference, the tenant stated that no subpoena was necessary if the
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parties could stipulate that certain communications from Flynn were true and correct. At the
pretrial conference and at the Hearing a stipulation was reached. See stipulation, below.

Sherman further requested a finding of good cause for a subpoena for the production of
certain documents from both the Alameda County Registrar of Voters and the State
Department of Motor Vehicles. The owner objected to these requests on the grounds that the
issue of prior residential use had already been litigated. A finding of good cause was issued
for both these agencies. See discussion below regarding the Voter Registration Records.

The State Department of Motor Vehicles issued an objection to the subpoena, which was
received by the RAP on February 7, 2018, and refused to comply because the requester was
required to first serve a notice to the consumer whose records were being sought when a
subpoena for a consumer’s personal records is requested.o

At the pretrial conference the tenant also requested certain documents from Mr. Michelsen
and requested that a subpoena be issued for his appearance or that he be requested to
appear. This request was granted. (See Document Request below.)

JUDICIAL NOTICE

- The tenant requested that judicial notice be taken of the following:

1. Declaration of Harold Rus Michelsen, dated February 11, 2014, submitted in case
L13-0054. The request to take judicial notice is granted.

2. Transcript of Exemption Hearing on February 24, 2014, from case L13-0054. The
request to take judicial notice is granted.

3. Transcript of Pre-Trial Hearing on October 17, 2017, from the instant case. The
request to take judicial notice is not granted as the pre-trial hearing is a part of the -
procedure of this case and any relevant testimony will be listed herein.

4. Alameda County Voter Registration Application from County of Alameda
Registrar of Voters. Judicial Notice is taken of this document.

THE ISSUES

1. Does the tenant have a right to contest the exemption on the grounds that the

~ exemption was issued as a result of fraud or mistake?

2. Is the tenant’s claim limited to a claim that the fraud committed by the owner was
extrinsic fraud?

3. Was the prior exemption as to 5823-5825 Occidental granted as a result of fraud?

4. If the prior exemption was granted as a result of fraud, how does the agency correct the
Certificate of Exemption?

5. If the prior exemption was granted as a result of fraud, what is the allowable rent?

/1]

19 The State also objected because the department could not provide records without two points of identification and
because the department does not retain records for the time period specified in the subpoena.
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EVIDENCE

Testimony of Mark Sherman: (all dates)

Tenant Mark Sherman testified that he lives at 5823-5825 Occidental Street in Oakland. He
moved into the rental unit in 1985 at an initial rent of $1,225 a month. His lease was
admitted into evidence as Exhibit 5.1 The lease specifies that it was “for a residential and
studio space located at 5825 Occidental, in Oakland.”

The tenant testified that his unit is in a large building which contains units on the front and
back side of the building. There are two addresses on his unit, 5823 and 5825 Occidental 12
He has two front doors to his property which are depicted in Exhibit 4, page 1 and Exhibit 4,
page 2. Exhibit 4, page 3, depicts a wooden loft in his unit. Michelsen informed him that the
woodworker who lived in the unit before him built this loft.

Sherman further testified that Exhibit 4, page 5, is a picture of the back of the property,
which is currently divided into three units. This part of the property borders Grace Avenue
and the units are addressed on Grace Avenue. The center unit is 927 Grace, the unit on the
left is 921 Grace, and the unit on the right is 929 Grace.

Sherman further testified that, based on his research into the building, in the past the
building was one large building with an address only of 5823-5825 Occidental Street, The
front of the building is on Occidental and the back of the building is on Grace Avenue. At
some point additional addresses were added to the back of the building.

Sherman further testified that when he rented the unit it was equipped half as a residential
unit and half as studio space. The bathroom has a mahogany wood panel (described by
Abraham below). '

Sherman further testified that when he talked to Michelsen about moving in, Michelsen did
not tell him he was the first residential tenant. Nor was he ever told that he was the first
residential tenant. In fact, Michelsen told Sherman that he was not the first tenant and that
a woodworker had resided in the unit and had built a loft that is in the unit.

Sherman further testified that when he moved in, Mr. Michelsen was living in Orinda.
Sherman first met Diane Michelsen in approximately 2007, maybe earlier. At the time
Sherman moved into the building, there were other rental units on the property with
addresses on Grace Avenue.

Sherman further testified that many years earlier, he filed a petition with the RAP contesting
a series of rent increases based on the failure of the owner to serve him with the form Notice
to Tenants of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP Notice).»3 The owner responded to the

11 A1l Exhibits referred to in this Hearing Decision were admitted into evidence without objection, except Exhibit 6.

12 This explains why in the historical record sometimes the unit is referred to as 5823 Occidental and sometimes as 5825
Occidental.
13 This case was T12-0332, mentioned above.
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petition and did not claim that the unit was exempt from the RAP. The tenant was awarded
a substantial rent reduction and an award of restitution in that case.

Sherman further testified that in early January of 2014, he was served with a notice from the
RAP that the owner had filed a petition claiming an exemption for new construction (the
“exemption case”.) Because Michelsen had told him that a woodworker had lived in the unit
before him, Sherman believed that the unit was not qualified for the exemption. Since he did
not know the name of the woodworker he began to do some research using Criss-cross
directories (Criss-cross directories are phone books that list addresses first, and then state
the name of the person who resides in that unit.) These directories gave him information
that three people had resided at the addresses listed as 5823 and 5825 Occidental; Mr.
Michelsen, a Mr. Abraham and a Daniel Wiener. He tried to locate the two previously
unknown individuals and was able to find a telephone number for Mr. Abraham.

Sherman further testified that he contacted Mr. Abraham who informed him that he had
lived in the subject rental unit. Sherman drafted the letter that Abraham signed which was
later submitted to the RAP in the exemption case. While Abraham informed Sherman that
helived in the rental unit from 1976-1983, Sherman believed that since he only needed to
prove that Abraham lived there at all he didn’t focus on listing all the years he resided there,
but just listed some of the years of his residence. '

Sherman testified that before the Hearing in the exemption case, he also tried to find Danje]
Wiener, but he was not able to find the correct Wiener as there are many people named
Daniel Wiener. He tried to find the correct Daniel Wiener in the phone books; by checking
the library; by researching on Ancestry.com; by using Google; by calling a variety of Daniel
Wieners he was able to find; by contacting the Registrar of Voters; by contacting PG&E (who
informed him that the unit had residential service in the 1970s); and by calling EBMUD. He
was unable to find the correct Daniel Wiener before the Hearing in the exemption case.
While there was a website for a Daniel Wiener that came up first on his Google search, this
person was an artist on the other side of the country (in New York) and there was no reason
to connect him to the property in question so Sherman did not look further at the website,

After the Hearing in the exemption case, he used Google to again try to find Daniel Wiener
and found the same website related to a Daniel Wiener who lived in New York. At this point
he looked further at the website and found a resume for Mr. Wiener which stated that this
Daniel Wiener went to school in Berkeley in the 1970s. Because of that connection Sherman
emailed Wiener who confirmed that he had lived in the subject unit. This was after the -
Hearing in the exemption case had occurred but before the case was heard at the HRRRB for
the appeal Hearing. Wiener was contacted and provided a sworn declaration. Additionally,
Abraham provided a sworn declaration which was also presented to the HRRRB.

On cross-examination, Sherman testified that the subject unit is 2300-2500 square feet.
When he started researching who lived in the building, he learned that historically the entire
building was addressed as 5823-5825 Occidental Avenue. He learned that Rus Michelsen
listed himself in the phone book with an address of 5823-5825 Occidental and does not
know if Michelsen ever lived in the same area of the building in which Sherman currently
lives. At some point along the way, individual gas meters were installed in the building, and

9
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as far as he knows, PG&E started having records for all the units separately. Additionally, at

some point, addresses appeared for the units on Grace Avenue. And in 1985, a Certificate of
Occupancy was issued dividing the building into 4 units with addresses on Occidental Street
and on Grace Avenue.

Stipulation: The tenant submitted a set of documents that evidence a conversation between
the tenant’s attorney, Leah Hess, and Rachel Flynn, the former Director of the Department
of Planning and Building for the City of Oakland, regarding the subject property that
occurred starting on May 5, 2016.14 The parties stipulated that the contents of the
subsequent conversation between Ms. Flynn and Ms. Hess, beginning with the May 5, 2016
email, as evidenced by the emails between them, are true and correct.’s

These documents reflect the following information. In May of 2016, Leah Hess, attorney for
the tenant, wrote an email to Ms. Flynn asking her to find and review the documents that
were referred to in the earlier email she had written to Greg McConnell that stated that
housing had gone into the structure in the mid-1980s.16 In response, Ms. Flynn provided the
Certificate of Occupancy (C/0) and asked if the C/0 was sufficient information.?” Hess
responded that the C/O did not suffice and asked the following questions:

“What records did you reiy on for the information that Olympic Press occupied the
property starting in 1967?” and

“Was the Certificate of Occupancy the sole source of your statement that ‘by the mid-
80’s housing went into the structure’?”8

Ms. Flynn responded on May 6, 2016:

“Leah, I don’t recall what I referenced when I wrote the email. I most likely called
someone on staff. Here are additional documents.”19

The additional documents included a building permit from 1928 for alterations to the
building, showing that the building was owned by East Bay Print Company (Exhibit 1, page
8); a similar document from 1929 (Exhibit 1, page 9); a similar document from 1937 (Exhibit
1, page 10); an undated application for a building permit to build an addition to the existing
building (Exhibit 1, page 11); and an application from Olympic Press (then current owner),
dated July 30, 1964, for a permit to raise the roof (Exhibit 1, page 12).

Within these documents was also a communication between Rachel Flynn and Aubrey Rose,
another City of Oakland employee. Ms. Flynn was asking Ms. Rose: “Do we have

14 Exhibit 1

15 February 23, 2018, Recording at 11:30-15:14 and Pretrial Conference Hearing Recording, October 17, 2017, 19:19:-
23:16.

16 Exhibit 1, p 1 a.

17 Exhibit 1, p. 2-3

13 Exhibit 1, p. 5

19 Exhibit 1, page 6
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documentation confirming the original use in 1967?20 Ms. Rose replied that the proof of the
prior print shop were the building permits discussed above.2t

" Document Request:

Prior to the Hearing in this case, a pretrial conference was held. After the pretrial conference
an order was issued that Mr. Michelsen was to produce the following documents to the RAP
and the tenant, 7 days prior to the scheduled Hearing. Additionally, as to each category of
documents, Michelsen was to state whether or not such documents exist.

1.

All lease or rental agreements to rent space, for any purpose, in any part of the
subject property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and
921-929 Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 1985.22
All documents which identify the name, last known address and last known
telephone number of each person who rented space, for any purpose, in any part
of the subject property now bearing the addresses 5823/5825 Occidental Street
and 921-929 Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 198s5.
All documents (including but not limited to estimates, bids, billing statements,
letters, receipts, or correspondence) which concern the division of the subject
property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and 921-929
Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA into separate rental units.

All documents (including but not limited to the City of Oakland permit history
records, applications for permits, the actual permits, inspection records and
reports and final sign-offs for permits) which concern permits of any kind for the
subject property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and

921-929 Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 1986.

All documents which concern repairs or improvement performed on the subject
property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and 921-929
Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 1986.

All advertisements to rent any portion of the subject property (including but not
limited to written ads and newspaper ads), for any purpose, in any part of the
property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and 021-929
Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 1986.

All documents (including but not limited to letters, reports, applications or
correspondence) between Rus Michelsen or Diane Michelsen and the City of
Oakland which concern any Certificate of Occupancy for the subject property now
bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and 921-929 Grace Avenue,
Oakland, CA.

. All documents concerning and Conditional Use Permits issued for the subject

property now bearing the addresses of 5823/5825 Occidental Street and 021-929
Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA from the date of purchase through 1986.

20 See Exhibit 1, page 6

2l

22 1t is understood that Ms. Michelsen testified that she believes that none of the requested documents exist. However, this
document production request is being issued to Mr. Michelsen, who might have access to these documents.
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9. All documents which concern the official designation by any governmental agency
of 921, 927 and 929 Grace Avenue, Oakland, CA, as the addresses at the subject
property for the rental units fronting on Grace Avenue. Such documents should
include, but not be limited to, correspondence between either real party in interest
and any government agency, maps, applications or permits.”

On February 2, 2018, the RAP received a letter from Mr. Michelsen, in which he asserted in
response to requests numbered 1, 2, 3, 5, 6 and 8, that no such documents exist. As to
requests numbered 4, 7 and 9, the owner responded that all such documents have already
been filed with the Rent Board in the underlying exemption hearing. A similar letter was
provided by Ms. Michelsen.

Testimony of Diane Michelsen: (all dates) Diane Michelsen testified that the subject
building formerly was addressed only as 5823-5825 Occidental Street, which was the master
address for the building. She first learned of the building in 1982, when she first starting
dating Mr. Michelsen. She married him that same year. Prior to 1982, she had not seen the
building, and had no personal knowledge of what happened there. At the time she started
dating Mr. Michelsen, he was living at the property. She moved to the property in 1983, and
lived in the part of the building known as 9277 Grace Avenue, in which Rus Michelsen was
previously residing. This unit had a work space fronting Grace Avenue, which Rus used as
an art studio, and there was a kitchen, a bathroom, two bedrooms and a living room. She
believes that the unit in which she lived on Grace Avenue shared a wall with the unit on
Occidental Street (the subject unit). When she moved in, there were also two other units on
Grace Avenue that were rented as commercial units.

Ms. Michelsen testified that years prior to her moving into the Grace Avenue side of the
property, the post office only had one address for the entire building. Over the years that Mr.
Michelsen lived in the building, he did work on the different units and over time different
addresses were assigned to the different units.

Ms. Michelsen further testified that when she first viewed the unit on Occidental in 1982, it
was filthy, there was no stove, no refrigerator, and the only thing in the kitchen area was a
luncheonette counter and a sink with a faucet and running water. The bathroom had an old
funky toilet, and she remembers nothing other than that. It was almost decrepit. The
bathroom was approximately 8x10 feet. She first saw the property because she and her
husband were talking about converting them into live/work spaces. When she moved into
Grace Avenue, there was no one living in the Occidental side of the property.

Ms. Michelsen further testified that when she moved into the building mail was delivered to
her unit and there were door slots for the mail delivery in all the units on Grace. After they
moved, she or Rus rented the unit at 927 Grace Avenue either as a live work space or a
residential unit. She believes he “freshened up” the unit prior to renting it. She does not
know how long it was before the unit was rented.

With respect to the units addressed as 921 Grace Avenue and 929 Grace Avenue, sometime
in 1983 or 1984, Rus did work on these units to rent them as live/work spaces. In 929, he
built a second story where he installed a kitchen and a half bath, and put in bedrooms. In

12
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921, he added a loft, and installed a kitchen under the loft, put in wood floors and heat,
water heaters and skylights. As far as she knows, the work was done by her husband. She
does not know if he hired any professionals.

Ms. Michelsen further testified that for the 5823 Occidental street unit, Mr. Michelsen
worked on the kitchen and baths, wood floors, and a heater. As far as she knows, on at least
some on the units, Mr. Michelsen did not take out building permits on the work he did until
after the work was done. After the work was done, her husband did the paperwork necessary
to get the Certificate of Occupancy for the building.

Ms. Michelsen further testified that from 1982 through the receipt of the Certificate of

Occupancy, which was obtained in 1985, neither 921 or 929 Grace Avenue or the unit at
5823 Occidental were rented as residential units. Additionally, during the time she lived
there no written agreements were made for any of the commercial tenants who used the

property.

Ms. Michelsen was asked to review an Unlawful Detainer Complaint filed in Superior Court
on September 24, 1984, regarding a lease agreement made for 929 Grace Avenue in
Oakland, between Rus Michelsen and Eric McDougall, Robert Howe and Michael Gray.23
The Complaint lists Diane Michelsen as the attorney for the plaintiff, Rus Michelsen.
Attached to the Complaint is a lease for the premises at 929 Grace, showing that the tenants
were leased a dwelling unit at that address on July 4, 1984, with a lease term from July 15,
1984 to July 31, 1985. The lease lists those persons that are authorized to “live in this
dwelling.” Upon review, Ms. Michelsen stated that she did not remember any information
about this rental agreement. She acknowledged that it was her signature of the Complaint
and Rus Michelsen’s signature on the lease.

Testimony of Rus Michelsen (by phone): Rus Michelsen testified that he purchased the
entire building in December of 1974. Prior to purchase, the building had been used as a
printing operation with no addresses on Grace Avenue. (The entire building had a single
address on Occidental). At the time he purchased it, he intended to live in part of the

~ building and use it for making metal sculpture. He moved into the building in 1976. During
the year between purchase and move in he was working on the building on the weekends,
putting in dividing walls and installing a foundry. Sometime after he subdivided the
building, in approximately 1976, he put up addresses on the Grace Avenue side of the
building.

During the early years he lived on the premises, from 1976 through the early 1980s, he had
two large dogs in his unit.

Mr. Michelsen further testified that at the time of purchase the inside of the building was
totally open space other than a small part of the unit that is currently addressed as
5823/5825 Occidental. The open space was approximately 4,000 square feet. A part of the
unit that is currently addressed as 5823/5825 Occidental was part of the open space
included in this 4,000 square feet. The construction he did before moving into the building

23 Exhibit 10. This Exhibit was admitted into evidence without objection.
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included adding the back wall between Grace Avenue and the Occidental side of the building
as well as adding the walls that separated 927 Grace from 921 and 929 Grace. He then built
the interior of his living space. He did all of this work without permits.

Mr. Michelsen further testified that after he- moved into the unit at 927 Grace, he rented out
the units at 921 and 929 Grace to artists as studio space. There was no running water and no
toilets in these units. One of the units was rented by a printmaker who used the unit for
many years. The other unit was rented to multiple different artists who used various parts of
the unit for their art work.

Mr. Michelsen testified that in 1979-1980, he started doing the work to convert 921 and 929
Grace to living space. This work was also done without permits.

Michelsen further testified that he never used 5823/5825 Occidental as his address. He did
have a telephone number at the time, and the telephone records showed his address on
Occidental. He was registered to vote and his assumption is that he used the Grace Avenue
address for his voting records.

Michelsen further testified that he rented the unit on Occidental to Charles Abraham in
approximately 1976. He knew Abraham from graduate school but does not remember how
they reconnected or how Abraham found out that he had a unit to rent. He did not have a
written lease with Abraham. At the time Abraham moved in there was a bathroom with two
toilets and a sink and a lunch room area. There was a sink and a counter top in this lunch
room area. There was no stove or refrigerator. The bathroom did not have a bathtub.

Michelsen further testified that he did not know Abraham was living in the building and did
not know if his child ever visited or stayed there. Abraham left the building in December of
1982 after Michelsen gave him a 30 Day Notice to Quit. The reasons Michelsen gave '
Abraham the notice to quit was that there was a dispute about Michelsen’s desire to raise the
rent and because Michelsen believed that Abraham was dealing cocaine out of the unit.
Abraham’s rent was originally $300 a month. He had not had a rent increase and Michelsen
wanted to raise the rent to $500 a month. With respect to the cocaine, Michelsen further
testified that he had no definitive evidence that there was drug activity from Abraham but he
suspected there was cocaine dealing because of the activity on the street and because he saw
bullet holes on or around the property.

Michelsen further testified that he originally rented the Occidental unit to Abraham as a
woodworking studio. He never met Daniel Wiener.

Michelsen further testified that after he had a discussion with Abraham about the possible
rent increase Abraham threatened to report him to the City of Oakland and Abraham said he
couldn’t raise the rent. In return, Michelsen informed Abraham that “it is my space, I paid
for it, and I get to do what I want.....”.24 A few days later he gave him a 30 Day Notice. He

didn’t give him a 3 Day Notice.

2 Tape recording, February 23, 2018, Hearing, 3:03 to 3:03:32.
14
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After Abraham left the Occidental Street unit Michelsen rented the unit to an artist from the
east coast who “stayed there” about a year.?5 It wasn’t a living space, it was just a painting
studio. After he moved out, at the end of 1983, Mr. Michelsen started to renovate the
Occidental Street unit.

Mr. Michelsen testified that he did not rent the Occidental unit to a band nor does he
remember a person named Clint MacKay.26

Mr. Michelsen further testified that the footprint of the unit on Occidental remained almost
the same between Abraham’s tenancy and renting to Sherman. When Abraham rented there
were two bathrooms (toilets and sinks only), back to back, which shared a wall. Before
renting to Sherman he removed the wall and one of the toilets and added a tub to the space.
This is the only wall that was changed between the rental of the space to Abraham and the
rental to Sherman. -

Mr. Michelsen further testified that he does not remember if there was garbage service to
the Occidental side of the property at the time that Abraham was renting the property. In
the beginning of 1983, he started to renovate the Occidental Street unit into a living unit.
'This work was also done without permits,

Mr. Michelsen further testified that after finishing the work on Occidental, he “turned
himself” in to the Housing Authority for doing the work on all the units without permits.27
Inspections were done and the City informed him of deficiencies in the units. He then
corrected those deficiencies, with permits, and received a Certificates of Occupancy for all of

the units.

Michelsen further testified that he filled out the Building Permit Application shownin
Exhibit 11.28 (Since Mr. Michelsen was appearing by phone, Ms. Michelsen testified that the
left hand side of the form contained Mr. Michelsen’s handwriting and signature.) The permit
was to “sheetrock one room” and “repair windows.” This permit was for work done at 5823
Occidental. While Michelsen had already installed sheetrock in the unit, the City wanted
there to be a 1 hour firewall, so Michelsen was required to pull down the prior 1/2” sheetrock
and replace it with a thicker material. :

On the Application the present use of the building was listed as “apt.” Michelsen testified
that it was listed that way because the intended use was as an apartment and he did not
think the form was asking him for the prior use of the building.

During the Hearing, Mr. Michelsen refused to answer any questions as to whether or not the
units on Grace Avenue were rented to anyone for residential purposes prior to the issuance

25 Tape recording, February 23, 2018, Hearing, 3:16-3:16:13,

26 This testimony conflicts with a declaration produced by the owners, from Clint MacKay, which was admitted into
evidence. See below.

271t is assumed that Mr. Michelsen is referring to the City of Oakland’s Department of Building and Planning.

28 This document was admitted into Evidence without objection.
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of the Certificates of Occupancy.2s Michelsen later answered some questions about this side
of the property. At first, he did not recall having a written rental agreement with any tenants
living on Grace in 1984. After having his recollection refreshed by the Complaint and the
Three Day Notice to Quit, Michelsen remembered that he did rent the unit at 929 Grace
Avenue to tenants McDougall, Howe and Grey, and they were asked to move out because
they were growing marijuana.

Michelsen further testified that this rental to these tenants occurred after January 1, 1983;
this was relevant to him because he knows that this is the “new construction” date under the
RAP Ordinance. -

Mr. Michelsen further testified that the door between his unit at 927 Grace Avenue and the
Occidental Street unit had a lock on it, and he kept it locked. It was not utilized without his
permission. Additionally, he testified that when one entered the Occidental Street unit from
927 Grace, the area you walked into was a part of the large studio space and not a part of the
living area. From that part of the unit, you couldn’t tell if someone was using the space as
living space. '

Michelsen further testified that when Abraham moved into Occidental, he was looking for a
woodworking studio. He did not meet anyone that Abraham may have sublet to and would
not have allowed him to sublet. ’

Michelsen further testified that he never told Mark Sherman that a prior tenant had lived in
the unit. He does not recall telling Sherman that a prior tenant had built a sleeping loft.
Further, the loft in question is not something that Michelsen considers to be a sleeping loft,
but rather a place for storage, since there is only about a 3 foot clearance from the top of the
loft to the ceiling.

Michelsen further testified that he “might have” told Sherman that he wouldn’t raise the rent
if he didn’t ask for repairs but if this conversation occurred it was near the beginning of the
tenancy.

Testimony of Witnesses:

Charles Abraham: Mr. Abraham testified that he resided at 5823-5825 Occidental in
approximately 1976 or 1977 and moved out in approximately 1983. He had known Rus
Michelsen from graduate school and ran into him in Berkeley before moving into the unit.
He told Michelsen he was splitting up with his wife and was looking for a place to live, and
Michelsen informed him that he owned a unit that his sister and brother-in-law were
moving out of. Abraham made an appointment with Michelsen, went to see the Occidental
Street property, and rented it from him. Abraham was looking for a place to live (for him
and his daughter) as well as a place to do his woodworking. Michelsen knew that Abraham
wanted to rent the property as a live/ work space and that he lived there.

29 Michelsen was informed that a negative inference would be drawn by his refusal to answer the questions about the
prior residential use of the Grace side of the property. ' :
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Abraham testified that he was clear in his communication with Michelsen that he intended
to live in the unit. The unit had a bathroom and a kitchen. The bathroom had a claw foot tub
with a mahogany surround. At some point after Abraham moved into the unit, he rented a
room in the unit to a man named Daniel.

Abraham further testified that Rus Michelsen also lived in a different unit on the premises at
the time that Abraham moved in. Michelsen lived in a unit on the back side of the structure.
There was a door separating Abraham’s unit from Michelsen’s unit, Abraham visited
Michelsen’s unit on several occasions, which was a large open space, approximately two
stories high, with a walled off bedroom space. Michelsen was a sculptor.

Abraham further testified that Michelsen also entered Abraham’s living area on multiple
occasions. One time he was there to help Abraham install the front doors to his unit to
accommodate his large saw. At the time this occurred, Abraham was already living in the
unit, and his furniture and other accoutrements of living were in the unit, visible to
Michelsen. Michelsen also visited on multiple other occasions.

Abraham was shown a phone listing from an Oakland telephone book showing a listing for
“Chuck Abraham at 5823 Occidental.”3c He testified that this listing belonged to him, and
that this was a residential listing because he never had a business license for his
woodworking operation and did not believe he had a business phone.

On cross-examination, Abraham testified that Daniel was a student at Cal. Berkeley who he,
Abraham, rented a room to. As far as Abraham knew, Daniel did not have any direct
dealings with Mr. Michelsen with respect to the rental.

Abraham further testified that he never applied for a business phone or a business license.

As to his previously filed letters and declarations in support of Mr. Sherman, Abraham
testified that he did not remember why in his initial letter (written on February 1, 2014) he
listed that he lived at 5823 Occidental during the years 1976-1978.3t He does not remember
why he did not state the full amount of time he lived there, but while he does not know the
exact dates of move in or departure, he knows that he lived in the unit for approximately 7
years.

Abraham further testified that he shared custody of his daughter with his wife during the
times he was living on Occidental, and Michelsen knew his daughter was living with him
episodically. He built a loft bed for his daughter in the unit, which Michelsen had seen.

Abraham further testified that as you face the property from Occidental, the two bedrooms
were on the right hand side of the property. Abraham did not remember if Michelsen went
into the bedrooms during his visits to the property. The kitchen area and dining area were

right outside of the main open space where he had his woodworking material.

30 Bxhibit 2
31 See Exhibit 3
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Testimony of Sue Doyle: Sue Doyle testified that she is a paralegal in the Law Offices of Leah
Hess. As part of her job she searched for records for the building located at 5823-5825
Occidental Avenue. She regularly uses the Haines Criss Cross Directories (both as part of her
job and in her personal genealogy research) to find residential information for people for
whom she is searching and these directories are considered reliable.

She further testified that she looked in the Haines Criss Cross Directories for residents living
at that address and found that in 1976-1985 (not including 1980), Rus Michelsen was listed
with the address 5823 Occidental Avenue, in 1978-1981 (not including 1980), Charles
Abraham was listed with the address 5823 Occidental Street, and in 1978-1979, Daniel
Wiener was listed with the address 5823 Occidental Street. At the time she searched she did
not have access to the 1980 directory so she could not say whether or not these individuals
were listed for that year. Ms. Doyle further testified that an asterisk in the directory stands
for a business listing. None of these listings have an asterisk present.

The tenant provided a summary of this information produced by Doyle as page 1 of Exhibit
7, along with the actual Haines Directories attached as Exhibit 7, pages 2-21.32 The Haines
Directories has a “Key to symbols” page which explains that an * (asterisk) is used to denote
a business, or non-residential telephone number. (See Exhibit 7, page 4.)

Doyle also testified that she checked the Oakland Telephone Directories for the years 1977-
1984. She created a summary of what she found, which the tenant produced as page 1 of
Exhibit 8, along with the relevant copies of the telephone directory pages which were
attached as Exhibit 8, pages 2-30.33 In the Oakland telephone directories, Rus Michelsen
was listed at 5823 Occidental Street for the years 1977-1984; Charles Abraham was listed for
the years 1977-1980; and Daniel Wiener was listed for the years 1977-1978.

Doyleé further testified about records she received from Ancestry.com for the same address
regarding people residing at this address in 1918-1928.34 This testimony is not described
here as it is not relevant to the Decision reached.s5

Testimony of Michael Joffe: Joffe testified that he is a licensed private investigator. He was
first contacted by Leah Hess in June of 2017 to determine whether anyone had lived at the
subject property prior to 1985,

In the course of his investigation he spoke with Ted Germann who informed Joffe that he
lived at the property before February of 1985 with members of his band. The band members
included Clint MacKay, who was the manager of the band; Ted’s brother, Tim Germann,
who was the guitar tech for the band; Chris Schroeder, who was the drummer; and Keith
Hinyard, another band member. Germann told him that at the same time that he lived on

32 Exhibit 7 was admitted into evidence without objection.
33 Exhibit 8 was admitted into evidence without objection.

34 Exhibit 9. This Exhibit was admitted into evidence without objection.
35 The prior residential use of the property before it was a printing press is not relevant to whether or not the building is
“new construction” under the Ordinance.
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Occidental he also stayed with his girlfriend who also had a rental unit on Occidental, He
stated that mostly he lived at 5823-5825 Occidental.

Joffe also exchanged emails with Clint MacKay requesting information about his living at
the property. MacKay replied with a terse email saying that he was not renting the unit as a
residential space but as a recording space and studio. McKay did not respond to Joffe’s
request for an answer to the question about whether or not he lived in the unit.

Joffe testified that it is hard to find information about people who lived in rental units back
in the 1970’s and 1980’s. The current databases that he has access to do not go back that far
and the databases he has access to are not available to the general public but are limited
access to people who have certain licenses. '

On cross-examination Joffe testified that Germann informed him he lived in the unit for two
years and that he left the property in either 1984 or 1985. Joffe was unable to reach any
other members of the band.

Testimony of Daniel Wiener: Wiener testified that he moved into the rental unit at 5823
Occidental Street in 1976. He remembers it was in 1976 when he moved in because he
graduated from UC Berkeley in 19777 and he moved into this live work space the year before
he graduated. He rented his space from a man whose name he does not remember but who
lived and worked on the property. They each had a bedroom and they each had a workspace
to do their art. There was a kitchen (with a sink, stove, oven and refrigerator) and a
bathroom which they shared.

The person he lived with had a child who came by about once a week because he shared
custody of the child with his wife.

Behind his apartment there was another unit in which the owner lived. The entrance to the
owner’s unit was entered from the back side of the building. There was a door from Wiener’s
unit that went directly into the owner’s unit which he walked through from time to time to
throw his garbage away. The owner had two large dogs that Wiener remembers. The owner
was an artist working with bronze. ' -

Wiener understood that the owner knew that he was living on the premises because it was
completely and totally obvious that Wiener and his roommate were living there. There were
beds in the unit and a kitchen and nothing was hidden from the owner. He was introduced
to the owner when he moved in and the owner entered the space in which Wiener and his
roommate lived.

Wiener further testified he would not have rented the space if he could not have lived and
worked on the property as he was looking for a live/work unit.

On cross-examination Wiener testified that he paid rent to his roommate, not the owner of
the building. He was introduced to the owner as a subtenant. Wiener did not remember

whether the owner of the property ever entered his bedroom area. Wiener also testified that
he does not have a clear memory of whether or not his roommate’s child lived with them.
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Declaration of Ted Germann:

The tenant produced a declaration from Ted Germann.36

Germann’s declaration, which is sworn under penalty of perjury, states in relevant part that
in the early 1980’s he played in a band and from 1984-1985, he and his other band
members, resided at 5823-5825 Occidental Street in Oakland. The unit was fully equipped
for them to live in. There was a kitchen, running water, a bathroom, and regular trash
collection. At the same time he lived at this address, he also concurrently lived down the
street with his wife. The other people who resided at the property were Keith Hinyard,
Clinton MacKay, Chris Schroeder and Tim Germann (Ted’s brother.)

Declaration of Clint MacKay:

In response to the declaration of Ted Germann, the owners submitted a declaration of Clint
MacKay at the Hearing. This document was not produced prior to the Hearing. Since the
owner did not have knowledge of Ted Germann’s declaration until the day before the
Hearing, it was determined that there was good cause for the admission of the declaration
into evidence.37

MacKay’s declaration, which is sworn under penalty of perjury, states that he rented a large
commercial space from Rus Michelsen for music recording and band rehearsal space circa
1984. The space had one bathroom and a lunchroom kitchen area. No other facilities were
provided. MacKay further stated that Ted Germann never lived in the unit, that he lived
down the street with his wife.

Voter Registration Records: In response to a subpoena, the County of Alameda submitted a
compilation of the voter registration records it has for the units at 921 Grace Avenue, 927
Grace Avenue, 929 Grace Avenue, 5823 Occidental Street and 5825 Occidental street from
1978 through 1985. These records were submitted under seal, in order to protect the privacy
rights of individuals named, and the information provided was restricted. A stipulation was
reached between County Counsel and the Oakland City Attorney’s office that the parties
could view the voter registration list at the Hearing but that the parties would not be given a
physical copy of the list and that only if the individuals testified that they were registered to
vote at the addresses in the document, could they be named. Otherwise, the decision would
indicate that there were voters at the various addresses during the applicable time periods,
without naming them.38

36 The declaration was admitted into evidence as Exhibit 6. The owner objected to the admission of this Declaration
because it was not filed with the RAP 7 days prior to the Hearing, but instead was produced on the day prior to the
Hearing. The tenant’s attorney explained that she had been in contact with Mr. Germann who had agreed to sign the
declaration but then did not send it back. She had to keep contacting him. She was not able to produce the document to
the RAP earlier because she had just received it the day before the Hearing (which is validated by the fax stamp on the top
left of the page showing a February 22, 2018, fax date, and a signature date of February 20, 2018.) The document was
admitted into evidence based on a finding of good cause for the failure to produce the document any sooner.

37 The declaration was admitted into evidence as Exhibit 12.

38 Exhibit 13, the voter registration list, and emailed stipulation agreement are in the file in a manila envelope which
states “Confidential Documents Do Not View or Release Without Approval of City Attorney’s Office.”
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The records show:

@ Voter 1: was registered to vote from September 1, 1976, through 1985 at
5823 Occidental Street.

® Voter 2: was registered to vote from April 12, 1976 through 1980, at 5823
Occidental Street. '

® Voter 3: identified as Harold R. Michelsen, was registered to vote on March 11, 1975, at
5823 Occidental Street and remained registered at this address through 1979. He then
registered at 927 Grace Avenue on April 14, 1980, and remained registered at 9277 Grace
from 1980 through 1985,

® Voter 4: was registered to vote firom April 5, 1982 through 1983 at 5823
Occidental Street.

® Voter 5: was registered to vote from June 22,1982 through October 26,
1984, at 5823 Occidental Street.

® Voter 6: was registered to vote from June 11,1982 through 1985, at 5823
Occidental Street. '

® Voter 7: was registered to vote from September 22, 1982, through 1985, at
5823 Occidental Street. '

® Voter 8: was registered to vote from March 9, 1984 through 1985, at 5823
Occidental Street. :

® Voter 9: was registered to vote from August 31, 1984 through 1985, at 929
Grace Avenue.,

° Voter 10: was registered to vote from August 6, 1984 through 1985, at 929
Grace Avenue.

® Voter 11: was registered to vote on September 7, 1984 through 1985, at 929
Grace Avenue.

® Voter 12: was registered to vote on Septeinber 29, 1980 through 1985, at
921 Grace Avenue.

® Voter 13: was registered to vote on August 22, 1984 through 1985 at 921
Grace Avenue.

® Voter 14: was registered to vote on April 14, 1980 through 1982, at 9277 Grace Avenue.

® Voter 15: identified as Diane Michelsen, was registered to vote on August 31, 1984 and
remained registered through 1985, at 927 Grace Avenue,

The bolded information represents individuals other than Harold Rus Michelsen or Diane
Michelsen who were registered to vote at any unit other than 927 Grace Avenue on the

property prior to the Certificate of Occupancy being issued. Those voters identified as 1, 2,
4,5, 6,7 and 12 were all originally registered prior to the new construction date of J anuary 1,

1983.
/1]
/1]
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Does the tenant have a right to contest the exemption on the grounds that the
exemption was issued as a result of fraud or mistake?

The Ordinance states that “A Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption
absent fraud or mistake” and “(t)imely submission of a certificate of exemption previously
granted in response to a petition shall result in dismissal of the petition absent proof of
fraud or mistake regarding the granting of the certificate. The burden of proving such fraud
or mistake is on the tenant.” Q.M.C. 8.22.030(B)(1)(b) and (c). There is no definition of
fraud or mistake given in either the Ordinance or the accompanying regulations. This
subsection of the Ordinance has been in the Ordinance continuously since 2002.

The Tenant Petition form contains a “ground for petition” that states “I wish to contest an
exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.” This box was checked on Mark Sherman’s
petition in the instant case. Attached to his petition was an Attachment stating that his
primary claim is that the certificate of exemption in case L13-0054 (the exemption case) was
issued as a result of fraud or mistake.

The owners argue that because the tenant has not alleged fraud with specificity, that he
cannot prevail in his claim and it must be dismissed. The law does not require specificity.

Since 2002, the Rent Adjustment Ordinance has provided a remedy to any tenant to
establish that a prior exemption was granted based on fraud or mistake. This remedy applies
to both the tenant who is residing in the unit at the time the exemption is sought and to all
future tenants of the unit or building in question. The pleading and proof requirements are
those set by the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, the Regulations, and the Board and are not
those set forth in the California Civil Code or those cases that interpret Code of Civil
Procedure § 473 (allowing for relief from “a judgment, dismissal, order, or other proceeding
taken against him or her through his or her mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable
neglect.”).

The RAP does not have pleadings beyond that which is provided by the Tenant Petition
forms. The form, as noted above, has a box to check if one wishes to contest a prior
exemption. There is no ability to do anything more than that, and nothing more than that is
required. Nonetheless, the tenant attached a statement to his petition stating that he was
claiming that the prior certificate of exemption was issued as a result of fraud or mistake.
The tenant has plead fraud or mistake with as much specificity as the Ordinance requires.

Additionally, the owners argue that the case must be dismissed because of the doctrines of
res judicata and collateral estoppel. These arguments also fail. Because the RAP is an
administrative agency, where no discovery exists prior to Hearing, the Ordinance provides a
remedy for the tenant involved in the initial Hearing and all future tenants to challenge a
previously issued Certificate of Exemption.39 Unlike the original petition, where the owner

3% There are no interrogatories or depositions permitted in the RAP process. There are no requirements that parties

o exchange documents. Parties are required to send all documents to the RAP 7 days prior to Hearing, allowing the
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had the burden of proof to establish a new construction exemption, in this case, the tenant
has the burden of proof. This is a completely different hearing, with a different burden of
proof, than the initial exemption Hearing and is not a collateral attack on the exemption
case. :

Furthermore, res judicata bars claims that were, or should have been, made in a prior suit
involving the same parties. See DKN Holdings, LLC v. Faerber (2015) 61 Cal.4th 813, 824.
However, since claims attacking a prior exemption can be made by either the tenant
involved in the first case or by the universe of future tenants, a claim attacking an exemption
1s not a claim that should or could have been made in the prior suit. This is a completely
different claim and is not barred by either collateral estoppel or res judicata.

The owners also argue that the great interest in finality of judgment prevents a Hearing on
this matter and should result in a denial of the tenant’s petition. The City of Oakland, on the
other hand, has authored an Ordinance which allows current and future tenants to contest
exemptions granted because of fraud or mistake. While there is always a legitimate interest
in the finality of judgments, that interest does not supersede the interest that all judgments,
especially those that exclude housing from rent control in perpetuity, should not be based on
fraud or mistake.

Furthermore, the owners’ purported concern as to judgment finality is really only their own
self-interest at stake. There is simply no evidence to suggest that allowing a tenant to contest
an exemption in this instance will cause a massive number of cases to be filed repeatedly
contesting previously granted exemptions. In fact, as far as this Hearing Officer knows, there -
is only one other case in which this matter has been litigated in the history of the Rent
Program.40, 41

Finally, if the Rent Adjustment Program was limiting petitions based on judgmentfinality,
the owners would not have been allowed to claim in the exemption case that the unit was
exempt, because they did not make that claim in the original rent increase petition (T12-
0332). That rent increase petition was fully litigated and the owner never raised the claim
that the unit was exempt from the RAP program. Yet the owner was allowed to file the
exemption case. The reason they were allowed to file the exemption case is that the RAP
does not have rules requiring that all claims be decided in one Hearing. The ability of the
owner to file the exemption case after the complete litigation of the tenant’s original petition
is a clear demonstration that the interest of judgment finality does not supersede all other
interests, including the interest of introducing new evidence and of adjudicating the decision
fairly and correctly. It was not possible for the tenant to allege that there was fraud in the

opposing party to review those documents at a file review. Additionally, while a party can request a good cause finding
for the issuance of a subpoena, this procedure is not known by many, is not written in any of the RAP handouts and is not
described in the Ordinance or the Regulations,

40 While other tenants do sometimes check the box on the petition form that they wish to contest an exemption, this box is
often checked before a prior exemption has been granted. See, for example, Peters v. Sullivan, T17-0274 and Cordes v.
Park, T17-0376, for cases where the tenants checked the box that they wished to contest an exemption, when no
exemption had previously been granted.

41 See Scott v. Suh, T18-0150, which is currently pending.
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underlying exemption case until the owners testified that the unit had no prior residential
use.42

The City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance states in its “findings and purpose” section,
that:

“The City Council finds that a shortage of decent, safe, affordable and sanitary
residential housing continues to exist in Oakland. This shortage is evidence by

“alow vacancy rate amount such units through the city and continually
increasing demand for such housing. Many residents of Oakland pay a
substantial amount of their monthly income for rent. The present shortage of
rental housing units and the prevailing rent levels have a detrimental effect on
the health, safety, and welfare of a substantial number of Oakland residents,
particularly senior citizens, persons in low and moderate income households,
and persons on fixed incomes......” 0.M.C. § 8.22.010(A). '

This language, combined with the language allowing any tenant to contest an exemption
based on fraud or mistake, makes it clear that the City gives great weight to returning a
wrongly exempted dwelling unit to Oakland’s stock of affordable housing. '

Is the tenant’s claim limited to a claim that the fraud committed by the owner
was extrinsic fraud?

The owners argue that the tenant can only prevail in his claim if he proves extrinsic fraud,
rather than intrinsic fraud. (Extrinsic fraud is fraud that relates to the underlying litigation,
such as being told that a Hearing is continued, when in fact it was not. Intrinsic fraud is
fraud that relates to the testimony given in the underlying matter.) It is not the law in this
jurisdiction that the only kind of fraud that can be claimed in a case seeking to nullify a
previously granted Certificate of Exemption is extrinsic fraud.

The ability to challenge a fraudulently granted exemption affects the rights of current and
future tenants to rent regulation as well as the interests of the City of Oakland to protect its
tenants from unscrupulous landlords. Since any tenant who resides in a unit after a
Certificate of Exemption has been granted can raise a claim that the exemption was granted
based on fraud or mistake it is not possible to limit these cases to those of extrinsic fraud as
that kind of fraud only occurs between the parties in the underlying proceeding,.

Additionally, the cases cited by the owners in this argument are all cases that interpret Code
of Civil Procedure § 473, which procedurally allows for relief from judgment (by the
underlying parties to a proceeding) based on mistake, inadvertence and excusable neglect. It
is in this context that it has been held that fraud in an underlying proceeding can only be
claimed if it is “extrinsic.” See for example, In re Marriage of Stevenot (1984) 154 Cal. App.
3d 1051. The claims that arise in the instant case are not claims that are limited to the
parties in a proceeding, as are those claims that interpret CCP § 473. Therefore, it would

42 ps noted below, the RAP does not have discovery, which would have allowed the tenant to learn about the owners’
claims in great detail prior to the Hearing,
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severely hamper the investigation of fraudulent misrepresentations by owners who seek to
“defraud the City of Oakland, if these claims were limited to only those cases where extrinsic
fraud was at stake.

Still further, even in those cases that interpret CCP § 473, the courts have held that the rules
about extrinsic and intrinsic fraud are not hard and fast, In cases where discovery is limited
(as in proceedings before the Rent Board, where there is no discovery available between the
parties), courts have held that claims of fraud cannot be limited to only extrinsic fraud.

The case of Pour le Bebe v. Guess?, Inc. 112 Cal. App.4th 810, is instructive. That case arose
out of an arbitration, where discovery is limited. When the plaintiff claimed that fraud had
been committed in the underlying action the Court held:

“Because parties to an arbitration are not afforded the full panoply of procedural
rights available to civil litigants, lacking for example the right to an appeal or to
extensive discovery, courts generally take a more lenient approach when examining
intrinsic fraud in the context of a motion to vacate an arbitration award.” Id. at 829.

For all of these reasons, the tenant’s claim that there was fraud committed by the owner is
not limited to a claim of extrinsic fraud.

Was the prior exemption granted as a result of fraud?

The elements of fraud are “(a) a misrepresentation (false representation, concealment or
nondisclosure); (b) knowledge of falsity (or ‘scienter’); (c) intent to defraud, i.e., to induce
reliance; (d) justifiable reliance; and (e) resulting damage.” Lazar v. Superior Court (1996)
12. Cal. 4t 631, 638.

The first questions then, are these: was Mr. Michelsen’s testimony in the exemption case
that there was no prior residential use of Sherman’s unit prior to 1984 false testimony and
did he know that the testimony was false?

The evidence in this case establishes that the declaration provided by Mr. Michelsen, (and
supported by Ms. Michelsen’s live testimony at the exemption Hearing) that when he rented
the premises to Mark Sherman in September of 1985, it was the first time the premises were
rented as a residence, was false testimony. Both Michelsens’ further testified that there were
no bath or kitchen facilities in the unit prior to the Sherman rental, and this too was false.

There is ample evidence of prior residential use. First, there is clear and convincing evidence
that Charles Abraham and Daniel Wiener resided in the unit at 5823 Occidental. In
Abraham’s case the evidence establishes that he lived there for many years beginning in
1976 or 1977. The fact that Abraham’s move in date is more likely than not to be 1976 is
corroborated by Wiener’s testimony that he moved into the unit in 1976 because, since ‘
Wiener was a subtenant of Abraham’s, he could not have moved in in 1976 unless Abraham
was already residing there.

25

000048



The Michelsens did acknowledge in the exemption Hearing that the unit in question had
previously been a “custom woodworking studio.” The evidence in this case establishes that
the woodworker in question was Charles Abraham.

The testimony from both Abraham and Wiener establishes that they lived in the unit with
Mr. Michelsen’s knowledge and consent. Abraham knew Michelsen from school and, when
he ran into him at the unemployment office, he told Michelsen he needed a place to live and
work. Michelsen volunteered that he had a unit he could rent to him for both live and work
purposes. That they knew each other from before the rental was corroborated by Mr.
Michelsen.

Furthermore, it is highly improbable that under the circumstances Mr. Michelsen could not
have known that Abraham and Wiener were living on the premises. Mr. Michelsen lived in
the same building in a unit that shared a wall and a door with the Abraham/Wiener unit.
Based on Ms. Michelsen’s testimony that she (and presumably Mr. Michelsen as well)
moved to Orinda in 1984, it appears that during the entirety of Abraham’s and Wiener’s
residency in the unit, Michelsen was living in the same building and shared a wall with these
tenants. Both Abraham and Wiener testified that Mr. Michelsen was in their unit and that
they were in Mr. Michelsen’s unit on multiple occasions.43 Wiener remembered two large
dogs, and Mr. Michelsen acknowledged he had two large dogs. Furthermore, while Mr.
Michelsen denies knowing that Abraham “lived” in the unit, he testified that he helped
Abraham install a large door to accommodate his woodworking equipment and testified he
was inside the unit.

There is further evidence to support a finding that both Abraham and Wiener lived in the
unit prior to January of 1983 (the new construction cut-off date) and, obviously, before the
Certificate of Occupancy was issued in 1985. The tenant produced telephone directory
pages for Oakland from 1977 and 19778, each of which show a listing for Chuck (a common
nickname for Charles) Abraham at 5823 Occidental and Danl (shortening for Daniel)
Wiener.44 45 The telephone directory also had a listing for Chuck Abraham at the same
address in 1979 and 1980.46 Additionally, the tenant produced a Haines Criss Cross
directory from 1978 showing that both Chuck Abraham and Daniel Wiener (along with Rus
Michelsen) are listed at 5823 Occidental. Abraham and Wiener remain listed in 1979 and
Abraham alone remains listed in 1981.47 None of these listings have an asterisk next to them,
meaning that they were not business listings but instead were residential listings.

While it is unclear as to exactly how long Abraham resided in the unit past 1981, since he
was no longer listed in the Criss Cross directory after 1981, the fact that his testimony as to

* In fact, Mr. Michelsen testified that no one could have been in his unit without his permission. Since Wiener and
Abraham both credibly testified that they were in Mr. Michelsen’s unit, and provided enough detail to corroborate their
testimony, it is likely true that at the time these visits occurred, Michelsen knew that they were in his unit.

* Additionally, Abraham testified this was his listing.
45 Exhibit 2, pages 4 and 6 for 1977 and pages 8 and 10a for 1978.

46 Bxhibit 2, pages 13 and 17. Although it is difficult to read the name “Abraham” on the Exhibit copy provided by the
tenant from the 1979 and 1980 directories, the name “Chuck” and the address is visible. Additionally, the same telephone
number listed is the same as the two preceding years.

47 See Criss-Cross Diréctory listings at Exhibit 7.
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the dates of his residency might not have been entirely accurate, is not relevant to these facts
and circumstances. Abraham was testifying in 2018 about the circumstances of where he
lived from 1976 through 1984. That he might have moved out earlier than what he testified
to is not of consequence. There is sufficient corroborating evidence from the telephone book,
from the Criss Cross directory, and from Daniel Wiener, to establish that during the key
years of 1976 through at least 1981 Abraham was a resident of 5823 Occidental with Mr.
Michelsen’s knowledge and consent.48

Additionally, Mr. Michelsen’s testimony in the exemption Hearing, and in this case, that the
unit was not fit as a residence when it was in use as a woodworking studio was also false.
Both Abraham and Wiener testified that the unit had a working bathroom and a usable
kitchen during their residency in the unit. Abraham’s testimony about a “mahogany
surround” around the bathtub was corroborated by Sherman’s testimony that the wood
around the bathtub area is still there. This is something a woodworker would notice.

It is important to note that neither Abraham and Wiener have any axe to grind in this case
and no reason to provide false testimony. They are not interested parties. The Michelsens,
on the other hand, have every reason to have provided false testimony (in the past and in the
instant Hearing) that there was no prior residential use of the property as this was the only

way for them to receive the Certificate of Exemption and the only way for them to maintain
it.49 .

There is additional evidence of residential use of the premises after Abraham and Wiener
moved out that disputes Mr. Michelsen’s testimony that Sherman was the first residential
tenant in the unit. The tenant produced a sworn declaration from Ted Germann who
testified that in 19084-1985 he, along with other band members, resided in the unit located at
5823-5825 Occidental.5° Germann acknowledged that while living there he also lived with
his wife down the street. While this residency is after the Ordinance new construction date
of February of 1983, it nonetheless is indicative that Mr. Michelsen’s testimony in the
underlying case was fraudulent.

While Ted Germann’s declaration of residency was disputed by Clint McKay’s declaration
that Germann never lived on the premises because he lived “down the street with his wife”,
McKay’s declaration is more interesting for what it does not say than what is does say.
McKay says he rented a commercial space for a recording studio and that it had a bathroom
and a lunchroom and kitchen area. He never says he did not live on the premises. The
problem with McKay’s declaration is further evidenced by the fact that when Joffe, the
tenant’s private investigator, asked McKay whether he resided in the unit, McKay refused to
answer. Additionally, Germann did not just say he lived on the premises, he said his other

8 The likelihood that Abraham moved out in 1981 or 1982, would line up with Diane Michelsen’s testimony that at the
time she moved into the building in 1983, the unit on Occidental was empty.

* Note that Mr. Michelsen has a history of not following the City’s rules. Based on his own testimony he did the work on
all these units without permits, and then sought the Certificate of Occupancy. Because of this history there is absolutely
‘no documentary proof to show when the work was done on any of these units. And we know that at least some of the
work was done before Mr. Michelsen moved into the building, as he completed the work on his unit before he moved
into 927 Grace in 1976. This work was done long before the new construction cutoff date.

30 Bxhibit 6
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band members did as well. Based on these facts it is found that Germann’s declaration that
he and others lived in the unit is more convincing than McKay’s declaration that Germann
did not reside there.

Additionally, McKay’s declaration establishes that there was a kitchen on the premises while
the Michelsens claimed there was not. The conflict between the owners’ claim in this regard
and McKay’s declaration, which was produced by the owners, is further indication that the
owners’ claim is fraudulent.

Finally, the voter registration records are of significant importance as it relates to a finding
that there was prior residential use of the property. Official Notice is taken that to register to
vote, one must claim residency at the address where you are registering to vote. Current
California Election Code § 349 requires that residence for voting purposes is a person’s
domicile. This law (§ 349) was preceded by Election Code § 200, which was in effect in 1976,
and required the same rules regarding residency.

Registering to vote in a location is evidence of residence in that location at least at the time
of initial registration. See Assembly of State of Cal. V. Deukmejian, 30 Cal. grd 638, 646,
where the court stated that “with minor exceptions, an individual must continue to reside at
the address stated in his or her affidavit of registration in order to be qualified to vote.”
While discussing a different subject, the court in Perham v. City of Los Altos, 190
Cal.App.2d 808 at 811, stated that “(t)he object of the registration law is to prevent illegal
voting, by providing, in advance of election, an authentic list of qualified electors” citing
Welch v. Williams, 96. Cal. 365.

In this case, the voter registration records show that prior to the Certificate of Occupancy,
other than Harold R. Michelsen, Voters 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 were each registered to vote at
5823 Occidental Street in Oakland; that Voters 9, 10 and 11 were each registered to vote at
929 Grace; and that Voters 12 and Voter 13 were each registered to vote at 921 Grace.5t

While the Michelsens argue that the voter registration records are not relevant, because itis
not possible that so many people were registered to vote at 5823 Occidental, this argument
fails based on their own testimony that the building in question only had one residential
address for many years, and that address was on Occidental. So these other people who were
registered to vote may have lived in any of the units on Grace (just like Mr. Michelsen did).

Furthermore, it is important to note that the Michelsens continued to provide false
testimony about residential use in the building in the instant Hearing. Prior to being shown
an Unlawful Detainer and a lease for tenants who rented 929 Grace Avenue, Diane
Michelsen testified that neither 921 or 929 Grace Avenue was rented as residential units
between 1982 and 1985 (when the Certificate of Occupancy was obtained.) This was
obviously not true, as was shown by the lease attached to the Unlawful Detainer entered
into evidence for that unit, dated July 15, 1984.52 The Unlawful Detainer action was signed

o1 Many of these voters (1, 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7 and 12), were all initially registered before the new co'nstruction date as well as
prior to the Certificate of Occupancy.
52 Exhibit 10
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by Diane Michelsen. This is also not true based on the voter registration records showing
registrations at both 921 and 929 Grace prior to the Certificate of Occupancy.

Taking all these facts together it is determined that there was prior residential use of 5823-
5825 Occidental Street prior to both the new construction date and the issuance of the
Certificate of Occupancy and that at least Mr. Michelsen knew of this prior residential use at
the time he testified in the exemption case.53: 54

There is no reason to discuss with any specificity the other elements of a claim of fraud. It is
clear that Mr. Michelsen’s testimony at the exemption hearing was with an “intent to
defraud” as he was seeking a Certificate of Exemption that he could not receive without such
false testimony. It is further clear that the Hearing Officer in the exemption case relied on
h1s testimony and that a Certificate of Exemption was issued as to 5823-5825 Occidental
Street, resulting in damage both to Mr. Sherman and to the City of Oakland, based on the
removal of a covered unit from the Ordinance.

Based on the fraud by Mr. Michelsen in his testimony regarding this matter, coupled with
the testimony by Ms. Michelsen which supported that fraudulent testimony, there is
sufficient reason to find that the prior exemption cannot stand.

If the prior exemption was granted as a result of fraud, how does the agency
correct the Certificate of Exemption?

The Rent Adjustment Regulations state:

“In the event that a previously issued Certificate of Exemption is found to have been
issued based on fraud or mistake and thereby rescinded, the Staff shall record a
rescission of the Certificate of Exemption against the affected real property with the
County Recorder.” Regulations 8.22.030(C)(2).

The Certificate of Exemption was received by the owners based on the testimony in the
exemption Hearing that the unit at 5823-5825 Occidental had no prior residential use
before the Certificate of Occupancy was provided. Therefore, the Certificate of Exemption
must be rescinded.

After the appeal period in this matter is over, in order to effectuate the rescission, the Staff
shall record a rescission with the County Recorder.

/11

33 Since most of these facts preceded Ms. Michelen’s knowledge of the building, it is not possible to say whether she
knew that all of the facts were false, or was simply relying on the information provided to her by her husband. It is
determined that at the time Ms. Michelsen first saw the building there was a kitchen and a bathroom, including a bathtub,
in the unit and that her testimony that these things did not exist was false. What is not known is whether or not she knew
of the prior residential use.

54 The facts also show that there was prior residential use of 921 and 929 Grace Avenue before the Certificate of
Occupancy was granted, contrary to the owners’ testimony in this case.
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If the prior exemption was granted as a result of fraud, what is the allowable
rent as to Tenant Sherman?

Since the prior exemption as to Sherman’s unit was based on fraud, the unit is a covered
unit and the rent increase is invalid. The tenant’s rent remains $1,817.80.

ORDER
1. Petition T16-0258 is granted.
2. The Certificate of Exemption was granted based on fraud.
3. The unit is a covered unit under the Ordinance.
4. The tenant’s rent is $1,817.80 per month.
5. A rescission of the Certificate of Exemption shall be recorded after the appeal period.
6. Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed
appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be
received within twenty (20) calendar days after service of the decision. The date of service is

shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last
day to file, the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Dated: November 30, 2018 W%/ %

Barbara M. Cohen
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

30

000053



PROOF OF SERVICE e
Case Number T16-0258

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612,

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy of it in a sealed
envelope in a City of Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250
Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Hearing Decision

Owner

Diane & Rus Michelsen
PO Box 6363

Moraga, CA 94570

Tenant

Mark L. Sherman
5825 Occidental St
Oakland, CA 94608

Tenant Representative
Leah Hess, Leah Hess, Esq.
610 16th Street Suite M-8
Oakland, CA 94612

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S.Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on December 04, 2018 in Oakland

Barbara Cohen
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program
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- CITY OF OAKLAND
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612
(510)238-3721

CITY OF OAKLAND . : APPEAL

Appellant’s Name

’7/05/\2/ OQV\o/ /1/0((/\/9// /[/4//‘;\2//;@ ROwmer DTenant.

Property Address (Include Unit Number)

5%2.3-4 325 Occilenta ( §7L Oocé//cmo/ 0/4

épellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) # CaseNumber

O Bor €263 Tle=p7 58
Movage . CA A4S 70 Jov. 25‘1 2018

Name of Represgntative(if any) Representative’s Mailing Address or no;zgs)

Frongs Mcfeowin 2550, Mmthor:

202

Beh <<’/(e/\//, @,4 k2 70

Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appesl listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation,

1) There are math/clerical errors that requii‘e the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

a)

b)

c)

d)

Rev. 6/18/2018

OJ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions

of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is, inconsistent.).

[J The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your explanation,
Yyou must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent.)

[ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
You must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

[ The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
Statement as to what law is violated,)

[J The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.
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f) [ Xwas denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (In
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)

h) X Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.)

Submissions to the Board must nof exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

* You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed.
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California thaton /2. = / 7 20/ g

I placed acopy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commer01a1
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows:

:l:e Leczé\ Hze,sg gc,o.
o U814 Founfolin ST #5506
-' Oaf|oued C A 7442

Hj”‘ M awé/ 6/\ Lo PN AN
Address 5& 29 Ores / ~e,m,7£m 1

» City, State Zip
/(’)/r M’
(g

|2--)7-] %
SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

Fvan (% /?/'ckeoouif\

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

This appeal must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, 250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313,
Oakland, California 94612, not later than 5:00 P.M. on the 20th calendar day after the date the decision
was mailed to you as shown on the proof of service attached to the decision. If the last day to file is a
weekend or holiday, the time to file the document is extended to the next business day.

= Appeals filed late without good cause will be dismissed.

* You must provide all the information required, or your appeal cannot be processed and
may be dismissed.

* Any response to the appeal by the other party must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program
with a proof of service on opposing party within 35 days of filing the appeal.

* The Board will not consider new claims. All claims, except jurisdiction issues, must have been
made in the petition, response, or at the hearing. -

* The Board will not consider new evidence at the appeal hearing without specific approval.

* You must sign and date this form or your appeal will not be processed.

» The entire case record is available to the Board, but sections of audio recordings must be pre-
designated to Rent Adjustment Staff.

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018
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ATTACHMENT TO CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM APPEAL OF NOV. 30, 2018
DECISION, T16-0258

The decision is in contrédiction, is contravened and is in contempt of the California Court of ‘
Appeal Decision styled Sherman v. City of Oakland, Case Number A147769 from Superior Court
Case No. RG15785257.

The decision appealed from ignores principles of res judicata (claim preclusion) and collateral
estoppel (issue preclusion).

These matters are the subject of the current appeal before the First District Court of Appeal,
Action Number A152429.
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CITY OF OAKLAND X ftam? 112 38
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRANf
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland, CA 94612

(510) 238-3721
CITY OF OAKLAND : ) APPEAL

Appellant’s Name
‘ 0 Owner XX Tenant

Mark Sherman
Property Address (Include Unit Number)

5823-5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA 94608

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number
T16-0258
Date of Decision appealed
November 30, 2018
Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For notices)
Leah Hess : Law Office of Leah Hess, 610 16th Street, M-8

Oakland, CA 94612

5823-5825 chidental Street, Oakland, CA 94680

Please select youi‘ ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.

1) There are math/clerical errors that fequire the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please cledrly
explain the math/clerical errors.)

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):

~a) [0 The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations or prior decisions
of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or prior Board
decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.).

b) X The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (I your explanation,
Yyou must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is inconsistent) See Attachment.

¢) - [0 The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your explanation,
you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favor.).

d) [1 The decision violates federal, state or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a detailed
statement as to what law is violated.)

€) [0 The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.)

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.
Rev. 6/18/2018 -
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1) I I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s claim. (I
your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your claims and what
evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every case. Staff may issue a
decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not in dispute.)

g) [ The decision denies the Owner a fair réturn on my investment. (You may appeal on this ground only
when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically state why you have been
denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.) \

h) - X Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation.of your grounds for appeal.)
See Attachment.
Submissions to the Board must not exceed 25 pages from each party, and they must be received by the Rent
Adjustment Program with a proof of service on opposing party within 15 days of filing the appeal. Only the first
25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(5).
Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of pages attached:

* You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties or your appeal may be dismissed. e
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on _December24 2018 |
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid,
addressed to each opposing party as follows:

Name Diane Michelsen
Address Post Office Box 6363
e Zi '
Moraga, CA 94570
Name Harold Rus Michelsen
Address Post Office Box 6363
City. State Zip Moraga, CA 94570

Jamilah Jefferson, City of Oakland, Office of the City Attorney, One Frank Ogawa Plaza, Oakland
CA 94612;. trancrs F. Mckgown, 1550 97 Sftféurtp 202, Bee l_c.elé;// CA 94710

- 12/24/2018

SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE DATE

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018
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ATTACHMENT T16-0258: PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN’S APPEAL OF THE
HEARING DECISION

Introduction

This appeal seeks to correct only the amount of monthly rent the Hearing Officer determined
that Mr. Sherman must pay. He does not challenge any other determination made in the
Hearing Decision.

The Hearing Officer has found that Landlords Diane and Rus Michelsen obtained a )
Certificate of Exemption for Mark Sherman’s rental unit by means of fraud. They gave false
testimony during the hearing on their petition for exemption. (L.13-054). They continued to
make false statements in these proceedings, at the remand hearing of Sherman’s petition to
rescind the Certificate of Exemption.

In this case, after a full hearing on the merits, the Hearing Officer determined that the
exemption was obtained through fraud. Contrary to the Owners’ testimony, there had been
extensive residential use of the property prior to Mr. Sherman’s occupancy. Two witnesses
testified credibly that they resided in the property in the 1970's. Another former tenant
presented a declaration stating that he, and several other roommates had lived there before
Mr. Sherman’s occupancy. Copious corroborating evidence of prior residential use of the
premises was admitted. The Hearing Decision concluded that fraud was clear:

It is clear that Mr. Michelsen's testimony at the exemption hearing was with an
“intent to defraud" as he was secking a Certificate of Exemption that he could
not receive without such false testimony. It is further clear that the Hearing'
Officer in the exemption case relied on his testimony and that a Certificate of
Exemption was issued as to 5823-5825 Occidental Street, resulting in damage
both to Mr. Sherman and to the City of Oakland, based on the removal of a
covered unit from the Ordinance.

Based on the fraud by Mr. Michelsen in his testimony regarding this matter,
coupled with the testimony by Ms. Michelsen which supported that fraudulent
testimony, there is sufficient reason to find that the prior exemption cannot
stand. Page 29. Remand Hearing Decision T16-0258, Page 29.

The Appeal decision declared that the Certificate of Exemption had been obtained by means
of fraud, declared the unit to be covered by the Ordinance, ordered that the Certificate of
Exemption be rescinded after the appeal period, and set Mr. Sherman’s rent at $1,817.80 per
month. 1.13-0054 Remand Hearing Decision, Page 30.

Mr. Sherman appeals that portion of the Hearing Decision which sets his rent at $1,817.80
per month. That amount of rent was one. of a series of unlawful rent increase which were
stricken in an earlier RAP case, Sherman v. Michelsen T12-0332. Sherman requests that the
Board correct the lawful amount of rent owed each month to no more than $1,225, the

I | 3.
000061



amount which was set as the lawful rent in Rent Petition. Because the Order in this case
invalidates the Certificate of Occupancy, Mr. Sherman is entitled to have his rent rolled back
to the last Jawful rent, the rent specified in the Sherman v. Michelsen Hearing Decision. He
also seeks a rebate, of all rent overpayments made during the time that he was required to pay
$1,817.80 per month.

If the portion of the Order setting rent at $1,817.80 is permitted to stand, Mr. Sherman wili
6lose the benefit of the Decision in this case. The Michelsens will be unjustly enriched,
retaining money they obtained through fraud.

STATEMENT OF FACTS/PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND
Sherman’s First Petition

Mr. Sherman began his tenancy in 1985 at a rental rate of $1,225. In 2007, the Michelsens
began a series of substantial rent increases, none of which was accompanied by the required
RAP Notice. Sherman paid all of these increases until 2012 when the Owners attempted to
raise the rent from $1,687 to $1,817.28. He did not pay that increase, but instead, filed a
petition to the RAP seeking to invalidate the rent raises. Sherman v. Michelsen T12-0332.
(“Rent Petition™).

At the hearing, Owner Diane Michelsen acknowledged that they had not served a RAP
Notice with any of the notices of rent raises.! The Hearing Officer ruled in Sherman’s favor,
ordering the rent rolled back to $1,225 per month, and ordering a rebate of rent overpaid in
the form of reduced rent. (Exh. A: Rent Petition, Corrected Hearing Decision, issued
4/17/2013.)

The landlords appealed to the Rent Board. The Board affirmed the Hearing Officer’s
Decision. (Exh. B: Rent Petition,. Appeal Decision Issued 10/28/2013)

The Michelsens then filed a petition for writ of mandamus to the Superior Court, which was
ultimately denied. (Michelsen v. Oakland Rent Program Alameda County Superior Court
RG14-771450, “Owners’ Writ”)

Michelsens’ Exemption Petition

After the Board’s Decision in the Rent Petition, but before filing the Owners’ Writ, the
Michelsens filed a new RAP petition. seeking issuance of a Certificate of Exemption for
Sherman’s rental unit as “new construction” under the Ordinance . Michelsen v. Sherman
L13-054 (“Exemption Petition”.) They claimed that the unit met the requirements:1) that the
property had been issued a Certificate of Occupancy after to J anuary 1, 1983 and 2) that there

'"The Michelsens did finally send a RAP notice in March 2013, but did not serve a notice
with their subsequent attempt to raise the rent.

“.
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had been no prior residential use of the rental unit. (Oakland Municipal Code §8.22.020.A.5).

Sherman knew that the claim of no prior residential use was false. Rus Michelsen had once
told him that a woodworker had lived in the unit in the 1970s. Sherman located the
woodworker and, at the hearing of the Exemption Petition, submitted an unsworn, one-line
letter from him stating he had lived there in the 1970s.

At the hearing Rus Michelsen submitted a sworn declaration that, when Sherman rented the
unit, it was the first time it had ever been rented as a residence. Ms. Michelsen testified at the
hearing that when she first viewed it in 1982, it had no kitchen or bathroom, and that it was
dirty and full of cobwebs. She testified that it appeared that it never had been, and never
could have been occupied residentially.

Unfortunately, Sherman did not understand evidentiary rules. The Michelsens’ sworn
falsehoods about the lack of prior residential use outweighed Sherman’s deficient

- presentation of an unsworn letter from a prior tenant. The Michelsens’ petition was granted
and the property was declared exempt.

Mr. Sherman appealed to the Board. By the time of the appeal hearing, he had obtained
detailed declarations from two prior residents of his rental unit. He requested a remand to
present the declarations as “new evidence”. The request was denied. The Board determined
that Sherman had not been diligent in searching for the evidence prior to the initial exemptlon
hearing. The Hearing Officer’s decision was affirmed.

The Exemption petition was delayed in Rent Board proceedings for many months, as the
Board struggled to deal with due process rights of other residents of the building. Numerous
continuances at the Board held up a final Board Appeal Decision, until June 15, 2015. The
final decision affirmed the Hearing Decision.

Superior Court Disposition of Rent Writ and Exemption Writ

When the Board decision in the Michelsen’s Exemption Petition became final, Sherman filed
a petition for writ of mandamus. Sherman v. City of Oakland, RG15-785257 (“Exemption
Writ”) At this point, there were now two writs pending before the Court: the Landlords’ Rent
Writ and the Tenant’s Exemption Writ.

In September 2014, the Judge required Sherman to put up $1,817 rent each month while the
two cases were pending. Part of the payment was to be paid directly to the Michelsens and
the remainder was to be paid into the Court. The Court stated that this was “the most
reasonable status quo [as it] .is the tenant’s most recent rent.”? (Exh. C, Owners’ Writ, Order,

®The judge’s assumption was incorrect. $1,817.28 was the most recent rent raise.
Sherman had never paid the most recent raise after filing his Rent Petition with the RAP. He paid
$1,687.35 in rent prior to his Rent Petition. (See Exh. A, Rent Petition, Corrected Hearing

3
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Motion Granted, 9/18/2014)

On February 23, 2016, Sherman’s Exemption Writ was denied. (Exh D, Pages from
Exemption Writ RG15-785257.

After further proceedings, the Court also denied the Michelsens’® Rent Writ. (Exh. E, pages
from, pages from Final Statement of Decision (1) Denying Petition and (2) Accounting for
Rents Due and Paid Michelsen v. Oakland Rent Adjustment Board , Alameda County
Superlor Court RG14-711450.

During the proceedings, the judge requested that the Board inform the Court of when the
Exemption Petition Decision became effective. The Board determined that it became
effective on the date that the Final Appeal Decision had been issued on June 15, 2015. The
exemption was not retroactive. Thus, the Rent Petition Decision ordering repayment and rent
roll back for Sherman was in effect up to June 15, 2015. The property became exempt only
after that date. :

Sherman’s Appeal to the Court of Appeals

Sherman filed an appeal to the Court of Appeals in March 2016. He met with no success. The
Court affirmed the decision of the Superior Court. (Sherman v. City of Oakland, First District
Court of Appeals, 4/26/2017, unpublished No. A147769.

Sherman’s Petition to the Board for Rescission of Certificate of Exemption.

Mr. Sherman continued to pay rent at the rate $1,817.28 per month, However, on March 21,
2016, the Michelsens served a rent increase notice, demanding that he begin paying $4,000
per month on June 1, 2016. (Exh. F)

On May 20 2016, Sherman filed the instant petition asserting that the Michelsens had
obtained the certificate of exemption by means of fraud. When the Hearlng Officer issued
an Administrative Decision denying him a hearing, he appealed to the Board. The petition,
however, never reached the Board. The Program Administrator issued an Administrative
Appeal Decision, denying him a hearing before the Board. Mr. Sherman, again, filed an
petition for writ of Administrative Mandamus alleging the decisions denied him his due
process right to the hearings.

Subsequent to the filing, the Board held a closed meeting in which it determined to move the
Superior Court to grant the petition, and remand the matter back to the Rent Program for
hearing on the merits. In its motion for dismissal/remand, the Board agreed with Sherman’s
contention that he was denied due process, and requested that the Court remand the matter
back to the Board for hearings and dismiss the petition. The Court granted the motion and

Decision)
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remanded the case back to the Rent Board. The Board remanded to matter to a Hearing
Officer for hearing on the merits. '

The Hearing/Decision in Sherman’s Favor

After four years, Mr. Sherman finally obtained what he had sought: An evidentiary hearing
on the merits of his case. He presented clear proof that at least two, and very possibly more,
persons resided in his rental unit prior to 1983. Rus Michelsen knew they lived there because
he rented the property to them. He lived on the property in a unit that shared a wall with
them. He was present in their rental unit at time. Both Owners proved themselves to be
untruthful in their testimony. Their statements were intended to deceive, to obtain an
exemption to which they were not entitled.

Mr. Sherman was harmed by their deception. He has paid, and continues to pay, rent to which
his landlords are not entitled. Unsatisfied with the $1,817 which they receive each month,
they served him with a rent increase to $4,000. In 2016, they served a three day notice to quit
for non-payment of the $4,000 rent.

Sherman won a roll back of rent to $1,225 per month in his Rent Petition. He has paid
$1,817.28, dating from June 15, 2015, the date that the Exemption Petition went into effect,
to the present.” Now the Exemption has been proven fraudulent. Mr. Sherman has thus been
overpaying by $592 each month for the past 42 months.

This Board cannot reimburse Mr. Sherman for the anxiety and distress that he has endured
during since this grueling quest for justice began. But the Board can order that he be repaid
(in the form of rent reduction) the amount that he has overpaid. And the Board can also order
that his base rent be set to the amount he obtained in his Rent Petition-$1,225.

Alternatively, the Board could remand to the Hearing Officer for the sole purpose of
determining the amount of overpayments made, ordering reimbursement via rent reduction,
and setting the rent at $1,225.

Respectﬁ;lly submitted,

eah Hess
Attorney for Mark Sherman

*Payments of $1,817 prior to June 15, 2015 were adjusted in the Statement of Accounting
in the Trial Court’s Final Statement of Decision in the Rent Writ, bringing the parties even up to
that date.
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94612-2034

CITY oF OAKLAND . | .
250 FRANK H: OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313, OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA |
(510) 238-3721

FAX (510) 238-3691.
TDD (510) 238-3254

Housing and Community Development Agency
Rent Adjustment Program :

'CORRECTED HEARING DECISION

CASE NUMBER: To12-0332, Sherman v. Michelsen
PR_OPERTY ADDRESS: 5825 OCcidéntal Street, Oakland, CA
APPEARAN CES: | Mark Sh;arman " Tenant

~ Diane Michelsen = Owmer
DATEOFHEARING: - March4, 2013
DATE OF DECISION: April 17, 2013

DATE OF CORRECTED DECISION: May 13, 2013

ACKGROUND

The undersigned Hearing Officer issued a Decision on April 17, 2013,
which granted the tenant restitution for rent overpayments in the amount of -
$16,080.56. However, the amount granted for restitution was for forty months,
which is in excess of the three year period allowed by Board decision.! The
correct amount of the restitution is $15,035.64. This Decision is an entirely new
decision and sets out a new ppeal period. ' -

INTRODUCTION

Mark Sherman filed a petition on November 30, 2012, which co_ntésts
several rent increases, and alleges that he has never received notice of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) or a RAP notice with the notice

~of the rent increases.

The owner filed a timely response to the petition, and acknowledges that
she has not provided the tenant with the RAP notice. :

! Barajas/Avalos v. Chu, T06-0051 (2006)

Exht 4 AR 052
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EVIDENCE

Tenant Sherman testified that he has never received the RAP notice. He

moved into his unit in 1985 at a monthly rent of $1,225.00. Both parties agree

that he received the following rent increases:

9/1/86 from $1,225 to $1,264

12/1/07 t0 1,399.56 o
12/1/08 to $1,486.23

12/1/09 to $1,574.02

12/1/10 to $1,687.35

12/1/12 to $1,817.28

~ The owner testified that she has not provided the tenant with the RAP
notice but the tenant is very aware of the Rent Ordinance.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The tenant’s petition, the owner’s response and the parties’ testimony
establishes that the tenant has resided in his unit since 1985 at an initial rent of
$1,225.00. In 1986 the tenant’s rent was increased to $1,264.00 monthly. He

- has paid the past rent increases from 1986 and 2007 through 2010 and is

currently paying $1,687.35 monthly.

NOTICE AND FILING REQUIREMENTS

The Rent Ordinance réqtiiljes an owner to serve notice of the existence and
scope of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) at the start of a tenancy? and
together with any notice of rent increases. :

 The 'Not'ice‘ requirement of the Rent Ordinance was passed in November
19834 and requires the following:

“Landlords are hereby required to notify tenants in writing of the
existence of the Residential Rent Arbitration board. Said notice shall be in
the form of an addendum to any lease in effect at the time of the effective
date of this ordinance or any lease entered into after the effective date of

this ordinance”.

The purpose of the RAP is to inform a tenant of his or her rights under the
RAP so that he may exercise his rights under the ordinance in a timely manner.

2 0.M.C. Section 8,22.060(A)
> O.M.C. §8.222.070(H)(1)(A)
4 Ordinal_mce No. 10402 C.M.S.
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No evidence was presented that the tenant received written notice of the RAP.

The owner acknowledged that she has not provided the tenant with the RAP

‘notice. Therefore, the rent increases for 1986 and 2007 through December 2012

are invalid.

However, a tenant’s claim for rent overpayments is limited, by Board
decision, to three years prior to the filing of the tenant petition.s See also Cal.
Code of Civil Procedure, Section 338. Therefore, the rent overpayments are
computed for the period November 31, 2009 through December 2012, as follows:

11/31/09-11/31/2010'-$_1,225-$1,486.23 = $261,23 x8= $2089.84
12/1/10- 11/31/2012- 1687.35-$1,225= $462.35x24= ~ $11,096.40
12/1/2012-4/1/13=$1,687.35-$1,225=$462.35 x 4= $1,849.40
TOTAL RENT OVERPAYMENT | $15,035.64

Rent overpayments are usually amortized over twelve months. However,

the large amount of rent overpayment constitutes an amount far in excess of the . -

tenant’s monthly rent, which is an extraordinary circumstance, and is amortized
over a penod of 18 months or $835 31 monthly.6 Under the current ordinance,
the owner is not permitted to raise the rent until six months after she has
provided the “Notice to Tenants” required by the RAP.

Furtherrnore, the tenant’s rent is rolled back to $ 1,225.00, the beglnnlng

of the tenancy. There is no limitation for a rent roll-back due to the owner’s -

failure to provide the RAP notice.?

The tenant’s rent payment for May 2013 should have been $389.69. In the
pnor Hearing Decision the temporary monthly rental amount was set at $331.64.
Therefore, the tenant has underpaid rent in the amount of $58.05. The rent

_ payment for June 2013 is $447 74

For the reasons stated above, the tenant’s petition is granted.
ORDER
i. - Petition T12—6332 is granted for the reasons stated above.

2. ' Therent ove'rpayment due to lack of the RAP notice is $15,035.64.

Baralas/Avalos v. Chu, T06-0051 (2006); 12 Mitchell v. Leslie. et al (1995) 46 Cal. Rptr. 423-Court held that

restitution of excess rent is not a penalty and claim for actual damages is subject to 3 yr. statute of hmltatlons per Code
of Civil Procedure, Section 338, subdivision (A)

- 13 Ordinance 11758, Section 6 (12/1994)

§ - 8.22.110 (F)(4)(d)
Barajas/Avalos v. Chu, T06-0051 (2006).

AR 054
000068
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Baserent ' $ 1,225.00
Plus rent underpayments. $ -$835.31 -

$15,035.64/18=$835.31 ‘
Rent payment for June 2013 due to $ 447.74
underpayment of $58.05 for May 2013
Rent payment commencing July 1,|$ 389.69
2013 and ending October 1, 2014 ,

3. The owner may also impose rent increases to which she is-otherwise
entitled under the Rent Adjustment Ordinance beginning six
months after first serving the tenant with a copy of the Rent
Adjustment Program Notice to Tenants and in accordance with the -
Rent Ordinance and California Civil Code Section 827.

- 4. Right to Appeal: This decision is the Final Decision of the
~ Rent Adjustment Program Staff. Either party may appeal this

Decision by filing a properly completed appeal- using the .form

- provided by the Rent Adjustment program: The appeal must be
received within twenty (20) days after service of this decision. The

date of service is shown on the attached Proof of Service. If the last

day to file is a weekend or holiday, the appeal may be filed on the

next business day.
Date: May 13, 2013 % /7. é%( |
. T /.

ol y4 : A
BARBARA KONG-BROWN, ESQ.
Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

AR 055
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CITY oF OAKLAND

P.0. BOX 70243, OAKLAND, CA 94612-2043
Housing and_ Community Development Agency ' ' (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program . _ FAX (510) 238-6181
. B : ' TDD (510) 238-3254

October 28, 2013
Housing, Residential -Rént
and Relocation Board (HRRRB)

" APPEAL DECISION |

CASE N!JMBER:' T12-0332, Sherman v. Michelson
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5825 Occidental Street, .Oakland, CA
APPEAL HEARING: October 10,2013

APPEARANCES: . Mark Sherman  Tenant

Diane Michelsen Owner

Procedural Background

The tenant filed a petition on November 30, 2012, contesting several rent
increases -on the ground that he has never received the Notice of the existence of the
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP). The Hearing Officer issued a Hearing Decision on
May 13, 2013, which granted restitution in the amount of $15,035.64, for a period of
three years prior to the filing of the petition, and. set the base rent at $1,225, the amount
the tenant paid upon move-in in 1985. ' :

Grounds for Appeal

. The owner filed an appeal on June 3, 2013,and contends that.to roll back the rent
28 years to the amount the tenant paid in 1985 for 2,550 square feet, does not consider
increased cost of housing services, insurance, garbage, or water. The tenant has not
had a rent increase until after twenty years. The tenant is very aware of the rent control
ordinance and the owner has discussed the rent control program with him. The owner

~does not live in Oakland and was not aware that the RAP notice was required as the

Rent Adjustment Program web site did not provide specific information about the RAP
notice form. This decision penalizes the owner who substantially- complied with all
procedures with only one rent increase in the past 28 years and this was a harmless

~error. This decision is inconsistent with Rent Board Regulatioris or prior decisions of the

2 L B
| AR 001 12
000070
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Board, and déprives the owner of a fair return on her property.

Appeal Decision

- After the parties’ arguments, questions for both parties and Board discussion, E.

Lai moved to remand the Hearing Decision for recalculation. After further
discussion, E. Lai withdrew his motion.  T. Singleton moved to affirm the Hearing

_Decision because no RAP notice was given to the tenant. B. Williams seconded.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: N, Frigault, T. Singleton, B. Williams, B. Scott,
Nay: E. Lai, L. Lonay A
Abstain: M. Bowie

The Motion carried.

NOTICE TO PARTIES
Pursuant to Ordinance No(s). 9510 C.M.S. of 1977 and 10449 C.M.S. of 1984, modified
in Article 5 of Chapter 1 of the Municipal Code, the City of Oakland has adopted the
ninety (90) day statute of limitations period of Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1094.8.
YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT YOU HAVE NINETY {90) DAYS FROM THE

DATE OF MAILING OF THIS DECISION WITHIN WHICH TO SEEK JUDICIAL
REVIEW.OF THE DECISION OF THIS BOARD IN YOUR CASE,

%4// o 4'/0/3&//34

_2ONNIE TAYLOR DATE 7 ’
BOARD DESIGNEE | :

CITY OF OAKLAND

" HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND

RELOCATION BOARD )

AR002
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Harold Michelsen Oakland Rent Adjustment Board
1033 Bollinger Canyon Rd
Moraga, CA 94556

Superior Court of California, County of Alameda
Rene C. Davidson Alameda County Courthouse

Michelsen : ' No. RG14711450
Plaintiff/Petitioner(s) .
Order
Vs.

Motion

Oakland Rent Adjustment Board Granted

’ Defendant/Respondent(s)
(Abbreviated Title)

The Motion was set for hearing on 09/18/2014 at 01:30 PM in Department 31 before the Honorable
Evelio Grillo.

The matter was argued and submitted, and good cause appearing therefore,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

The motion of petitioher Harold and Diane Michelson to stay the 5/13/13 Decision of the Oakland Rent
Adjustment Board is GRANTED IN PART.

In the 5/13/13 Board Decision (Decision I), the Oakland Rent Adjustment Board applied OMC

8.22.070(H)(3) and held that because the Michelsons had not provided tenant Mark Sherman with the

required Rent Adjustment Program notices that all the rent increases since 1985 were invalid and the

}$\/Iichelsc))ns were required to pay tenant the overcharges for the past three years (approximately
15,000).

In the 2/26/14 Hearing Officer Decision (Decision II), the Hearing Officer held that the property is
exempt from the Rent Adjustment Program. This matter is on appeal to the Board. On 9/11/14, the
Board continued the matter to 9/25/14 to allow tenants to brief the issue of whether the matter should be
remanded to permit additional tenants to brief the merits of the matter. (Jefferson Dec. filed 9/12/14.)

Tenant's initial rent in 1985 was $1225, tenant's rent during a 21-year period of no rent increases was
$1264, tenant's rent just prior to the petition was $1817.28, and tenant's rent through April 2015 under
Decision I will be $389.69.

The Rent Adjustment Board cannot authorize tenants to withhold their rents as means of recovering
alleged overpayments before landlords have an opportunity to obtain judicial review by petition for writ
of mandate. (McHugh v. Santa Monica Rent Control Bd. (1989) 49 Cal.3d 348, 376-378.) Therefore,
the court may restore the status quo. The court holds that the most reasonable status quo regarding
monthly rent payments is the tenant's most recent rent, which was $1817.28 per month.

Therefore, until further order of the court in this matter, tenant Mark Sherman must pay $389.69/month
rent directly to the Harold and Diane Michelson as required under Decision I and pay the balance of
$1,427.59/month into court. Tenant will, therefore, be paying $1817.28 per month, The first payments
are due on October 1, 2014, and subsequent payments are due on the Ist of every subsequent month.

Based on the ultimate resolution of the Rent Adjustment Board proceedings and any challenges to those
proceedings in court, the court will direct that tenant's funds deposited into court will either be returned

Order

ZXH.C |
2 0000727



to tenant or will be paid to Harold and Diane Michelson:

Dated: 09/18/2014

%

Judge Evelio Grillo

Order
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ALAMEDA COUNTY
FEB 2 3 2016

By Aﬂ’a//f—j/

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA |
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

MARK SHERMAN, | Case No. RG15-785257 .
Petitioner . JUD GMENT
V.

OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT BOARD,

Respondent

The two petitions in the related cases of Michelsen v. Oakland Rent Aab’u(sthent Board,

RG14-711450 (the “Rent Case”), and Sherman v. Oakland Rent Arz_’]'ustment Board, RG15-

78525 7 (the “Exemption Case”) came on for hearing on December 9, 2015, in Department 14 of

this Court, the Honorable Evelio Grillo presiding. Qn December 30, 2015, the court issued an

order in Sherman, the E\:emptlon Case. The court has not yet entered a judgment in this case.
Pursuant to the order of December 30, 2015 JUDGMENT is entered as follows:
1. The petition of Mark Sherman (“Tenant”) to direct the Oakland Rent Adjustment.
Board (the “Rent Board™) to vord the Appeal Decrslon in Case # L13 0054 in the
Exemption Case is DENIED as stated in the Order of December 30, 2015

2. Judgment is hereby entered in favor of the Rent Board.

P x>
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3. Any party may file a memorandum of costs or make a motion for an award of

attorney’s fees. (CCP 1032 and 1033.5; CRC 3.1700 and 3.

Dated: February _, 2016

‘ _ &velio Grillo
Judgs-of the Superior Court

00(
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N 16 2018

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALTFORNIA
- IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

HAROLD AND DIANE MICHELSON, Case No. RG14-711450

Petitioners .
v . - FINAL STATEMENT OF DECISION (1)
Lo : " | DENYING PETITION AND (2)
ACCOUNTING FOR RENTS DUE AND

OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT BOARD ‘PAID.
Respondent '

A

The two petitions in the related cases of Michelsen v. Oakland RentAdJustment Board
RG14-711450 (the “Rent Case” , and Sherman 12 Oakland Rent Adjustment Board RGI5-
785257 (the “Exemptlon Case™) came on for hearmg on Deeember 9,2015,in Department 14 of
this Court, the Honorable Evelio Grillo pre51dmg J udgment has been entered in'Sherman, the
Exemptlon Case. ThlS order concerns only Mzchelson the Rent Case

After consideration of the briefi ng and the argument ITIS ORDERED “The petition of
Harold and Diane Michelson (“Owners’) to dlrect the Oakland Rent Adjustment Board (the
“Rent Board”) to v01d the Appeal Decision in Case #TI12- 0332 in the Rent Case i is DENIED.

10076
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10N 16 2018

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA L
INANDFOR THE COUNTY.OF ALAMEDA ’

[

HAROLD AND DIANE MICHELSON | Case No. RG14-71 14SQ

Petitioners ) _
v. - : . FINAL STATEMENT OF DECISION (1)
- T ' ' 'DENYING PETITION AND (2 )]

OAKL AND RENT AD JUSTMENT B O ARD ‘IJ},EI%OUNTING FOR RENTS DUE AND
Respondent ‘

5]

The two petitions in the related cases of Michelsen v. Oalkland Rent Aabustment Board .
RGI4-71 1450 (the “Rent Case” R and Sherman 12 Oakland Rent Adjustment Board RGI15-
785257 (the “Exemptlon Case™) came on for heanng on December 9,2015,in Department 14 of

this Court the Honorable Evelio Grillo pres1d1ng Judgment has been entered in Sherman the
Exemption Case, Th.lS order concerns only Mzchelson the Rent Case '

' After con31derat1on of the bneﬂng and the argument, IT IS ORDERED The petition of

Harold and Diane Mlchelson (“Owners”) to dlrect the Oakland Rent Adjustment Board (the
“Rent Board”) to voxd the Appeal Decision in Case #T12- 0332 in the Rent Case § 1s DENIED.

T
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the Rent Control Ordmance (OM.C. section 8, 22 070(D)(6) and final decision of HRRRB re .
eﬁ‘ectrve date of rent increase:) |

_ The Unit was exempt from the Ordmance as of June 15,2015. On and after June 15
2015, the rent for 5825 Occrdental Street was the $l 837.50. The court reasons that Mlchelson

gave Tenant notice that Tenant s monthly rent would be increased to $1 817.28 effective

 December 1, 2012 (AR 57 ) Although that monthly rent increase was not lawful at the time 1t
‘was announced, the rent increase became lawful when the Unit became exempt from the.

Ordrnance on June 15, 2015

sum 0£$15,035.64, the amount of the overpayments as determined by the hearmg ofﬁcer and
affirmed by the HRRRB s October 28 2013 decrsron, (2) for the 30.5 months from December 1,

2012 through June 15, 201 5 Sherman was obligated to pay monthly rent to Mrchelsen in the

|| amount of $1 225, or $37, 362 50; and 3) between December 1, 2012 and June 15, 2015,

in the amount of $81687.35 for December 2012 to October 31,2013) plus $7 014.42 .
(representing eighteen payments of $389 69 (November 1, 2013 to June 1, 2015), or $27,262.62.
Therefore as of the date 5 825 Occrdental Street was detenmned to be exempt from the

Ordinance exclusrve of any payments made into escrow as ordered by the court, a credlt was

1due from Mrchelsen to Sherman in the amount of $4,935.76, calculated as follows

Sherman’s Rent Obhgatron to Mrchelsen $37,362.50
(30.5 months x $1,225) : : :
Less Refund Order By HRRRB : ($15,035.64)
(Covers 3 _years preceeding 11/30/12 pet1tron) _y ’
Less:Direct Payments By Sherman to Michelsen ($27,262,62)
Balance Owing to Sherman from Michelsen (As of 6/1/2015) | $4,935.76

14

Y

In summary ( 1) as of December 1,2012, Michaelsen was obligated to repay Sherman the | -

Sherman paid rent directly to Michelsen in the sum of $20 248.20, (representmg twelve monthly ’

—
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ACCOUNTING AFTER 6/ 15115, WHEN THE PROPERTY WAS EXEMPT FROM THE
RENT CONTROL ORDINAN CE

| Going forward ﬁom June 15 2015 the date the property was declared exenrpt, through"
June 15, 2016 the effective date of this order Sherman s rent obhgahon to Michelsen was
$1,817 per month. Sherman Is entitled to a credit of $194.85 during this penod for one-half of
the rental payment of $389.69 made on J une 1, 2015. Sherman s rental obhgatron to Michelsen
durmg thrs penod is therefore $21,414, 30 representmg twelve months rent at $1, 817 per month

(($21 804) less the credit of $194.85,

From July 1,2015 through June 1, 2016 ‘Sherman has pald drrectly to Mrchelsen the rent

payments in the amount of $10,969. 07 representmg rent payments in the amount of $389. 69

per month for the three months of July, August and September 2015 ($1,169.07) , and §1 225

per month for the eight months of November and December 2015 and January ‘February,
March, April May and June 2016 (59,800).

Therefore, exclusrve of any payments made into escrow as ordered by the court, for the
period from June 15,2015 through hine 16, 2016, a credrt was due from Sherman to Mrchelsen

in the amount of $$10,445.23, calculated as follows:

Sherman’s Rent Obhgahon to Mrchelsen $21,414.30 ‘ y
(3 months x $389.69 + 8months x 1225) , L
Less Direct Payments By Sherman to Michelsen 1 (510,969.07)
{I Balance Owing to Michelsen from Sherman - _ -$10,445.23
(As of 6/15/2016) o : |
m
15

Y
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ACCOUNTING ~ CONCLUSION.

Michelsen in the amount of §, 509 47 calculated as follows:

Based on the court’s calculation of the pre-exemption payments and credits and the post-

exemption payments and credits, the court has dete_rmined that a credit is owing from Sherman to

Balance Owing to Michelsen from Sherman $10,445.23
-(Period from 12/1/2012 to 6/15/2015) . S
Balance Owing to Sherman from Michelsen $4,935.76
(Period from 6/15/2015 to 6/15/2016) b '
Payment due to Michelsen from Escrow | $5,509.47

The court ORDERS that the sum 0f $5,509.47 shall be released from the escrow to Michelsen.

The Balance of the escrowed funds are to be released to Sherman.

Dated: June/ 72016

16

(7 S - , '
Evelio Grillo
Jygge of the Superior Court
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NOTICE TO INCREASE RENT

* NOTICE to Mark Sherman, and any and all others in possession of the premises at 5825 Occidental,
Oakland, CA. :

Pursuant to the lease signed August 14, 1985, you are in possession of the premises at 5823 Ocudental
Oakland, CA. Your rental agreement is now a monthly periodic tenancy and continues from month to
month.

In accordance with your lease and the statutes and laws of California and Oakland, | am hereby giving .
you (more than) 60 days notice of a change in'your rent.

Your rent will be i mcreasmg to $4,000.00 (four thousand) per month. ‘This increase will take effect June
1 2016.

" Yours truly,

AN

23
000081



LEAH HESS WIBFEB 16 PM 4: 56
Attorney at Law
1736 Franklin Street, 10" Floor
Oakland, California 94612
Telephone: (510) 451-3103
Facsimile: (510) 444-1704

February 16, 2018

BY PERSONAL DELIVERY

Barbara Cohen, Hearing Officer

c/o Roberto F. Costa, Program Analyst
City Of Oakland-Rent Adjustment Program
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 5th Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

Re: Legal Brief and Evidence for Remand Hearing
Sherman vs. Michelsen, Case No: T16-0258

Dear Ms. Cohen,

Enclosed please find the following documents filed for the Remand Hearing scheduled for
February 23, 2018 in the above case:

1. Petitioner’s Remand Hearing Brief
- 2. Photographs of the subject property
- 3. Haines Criss-Cross Directory Listings (re: subject property)
Oakland Residential Telephone Directory Listings
5. Occupancy Records (re: subject property) (1918-1928)
6. City of Oakland Building Department records
7. Mark Sherman’s Lease for subject property
8. Statements and Declarations from previous residents at subject property
9. Notice of Rent Increase to Mark Sherman

b

Please call us if you have any questions.

Thank you,

Leah Hess

000082
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To whom it may concern,

I Charles Abraham lived at 5823 Occidental St. Oakland Ca. 94608 during the
years 1976, 1977, 1978. .

Charles Abraham

Lk o
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Declaration of Charles Abraham

1. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated in this declaration and, if called to testify,
could and would testify thereto.

2. My name is Charles Abraham. I currently feside at 813 56™ Street, Oakland, CA 94608.

3. My daughter and I resided at 5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, California 94608 from
about 1976 until about 1983,

4. | found this rental unit through Harold Rus Michelssen, whom I knew as Rusty. Rusty
was a friend of mine from graduate school, who owned the bulldmg and lived in an
adjacent unit in the building.

5. Trented the unit from Rusty as a live/work space. Rusty was well aware that I lived in the
space with my daughter during those years. He himself lived in the same warehouse, and
an interior door connected our two living spaces.

6. My daughtel and I each had a bedroom in the unit. Next to our bedrooms was a large
open room in which I did fine woodwork. Adjacent to that open room was another large
room which served as our living room, dining room, and kitchen. This room had a sink, a
refrigerator, an oven, and a stove. 1 distinctly remember that the bathroom in the unit had
a claw foot tub and a mahogany surround.

7. ‘When Mark Sherman recently contacted me by phone about the current. dispute-with his
Jandlord, T was reluctant to get involved because of my past friendship with Rusty. But I
- was willing to provide Mark with a letter stating that Ilived at the property in question
for some years in the late 1970s. I gave that letter to Mark when he dropped by my place
to pick it up in February 2014,

8. When Mark told me that the hearing officer had disregarded my letter in her decision, I
immediately agreed to prepare a second declaration for Mark in support of his appeal. I
hope this written declaration is sufficient, but if necessary, T am willing to offer my
testimony at a hearing to help clear up any confusion in this case.

1 declare under penalty of petjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct and that this declaration was executed on _AndyyY LS‘ /- 204 in

ONAKARSID , California.

i, Al

Charles Abraham
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9.

Declaration of Daniel Wiener

I have personal knowledge of the facts stated in this declaration and, if called to testify,.
could and would testify thereto.

My name is Daniel Wiener. My address is 156 Hoyt Street, Brooklyn, New York 11217.

To the best of my recollection, I nioved into the unit at 5823 Occidental Street, Oakland,
CA. 94608 in 1976 and resided there until about 1978. I distinctly remeiber that I moved,
into the unit shortly before I graduated from college (I graduated it 1977) and lived in the
unit for about one or two years.

I lived at 5823 Occidental Street with one other tenant, who had a large room in the unit;
We each rented and used the unit as a live/wotrk space.

Becauise I lived at this unit for 4 short petiod about 36 years ago, I cannot recall the name
of the other tenant who lived in my uni.

I had a small bedroom and a small studio space in the unit.

The unit had a large kitchen with the basic amenities, including a stove, a refrigerator,
and a sink. -

The unit had one bathroom, which I shared with the other tenant.

10. There were other people residing in the building at the time that I lived there.

11. The attached copy from the residential phone book listings includes my listing for the

time périod during which I lived at the property. My tame was listed as Danl Wiener.

12. Mark Sherman first reached out to me regarding this dispute through my website,

http://danielwiener.com, in March 2014,

I declare under penalty of petjury under the laws of the State of Calif_bmia that the foregoing is

true qndcorrect'a,nd that this declaration was executed on _Yuw § : g/) {f’ in

, New York.

Signed: ,@[}MM& \f\) ;V\/l/(/

Daniel Wiener
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NOTICE to Mark Sherman, and any and all others in possessuon of the premises at 5825 Occidental,
Oakland CA. :

Pursuant to the lease signed August 14, 1985, you are in possession of the premises at 5823 Occidental,
Oakland, CA. Your rental agreement is now a monthly periodic tenancy and continues from month to

month

In accordance with your lease and the statutes and laws of California and Oakland, | am hereby giving
: you (more than) 60 days notice of a change in your rent.

Your rent will be increasing to $4,000.00 (four thousand) per month. This increase will take effect June
1, 2016.

Yaurs truly,

000087
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DECLARATION OF THD GERMANN

I, Ted Germann, declare: '

[.  Thave personal knoWIedge of the faots stated in this declaration and, if called as a
Witness, I could competently testify thereto. |

2. My current address i512505 SE River Road, Portland, Otegon,

3. In the early 1980s, Iplay.ed in a band that performed at various vepnes in the San
Franciseo Bay Area. Around 1984-1985 I resided, with other bﬁnd members, at 5823-5825
Qccidcnta! Strect, Oakland, California, [ dcﬁnitély Iivedfhcr.c priot to February 1985.

4, The promises of 5823-5825 wore fully cqnipt to live in, There was 4 kitehen, running
| water, bathroom and regular trash collcotion, v

5. .. Other band members who lived at the Occidental Strest propert}; with me included Koith
Hinyard, Clinton MacKay, Chris Sch;'ocdcr and my brother, Tim Germann, Mr.MucKay located
and rented the place and handled jssues with the landlord such as rent payment,

6 During the time T lived at the Oceidental Street property, T also rented u place with my
‘wife up the street. However, T did reside at both addn?sscs.

I'deolare under penalty of porjury of the laws of California that the forgoing facts are

“known to me personally, that they aro Ltuc and vorreet, and that this declaration was exeouted in

Port land, Oregon on F. cbmary&@_, 2018.

- : ‘3:}
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Agreement between Rus Michelsen, Owner and Mark Sherman, Tenant,
for a residential and studio Space located at 5825 OCCIDENTAL, in
Oaklandg, California 94608.

The TERM of the lease jig one yvear, beginning September 1, 1985
and ending August 31, 1985, fhis lease ig reae ahés for one vear
at a monthly rental of £1225 pPlus or m 'L‘:S%, i‘gn fgtant with the
cost of living index based on the index changes from July 1, 1985 to
July 1, 1986¢. RENT for September 1, 1985 to August 31, 1l9gs is
$1225,00 pPer month, payable in advance. Rent is pPayable on the
first day of every calendar month to Owner at 80 La Espiral, Orinda,

California 94563, telephone 415 254-1qpy.

The SECURITY /CLEANING DEPOSIT on this Property is $1225.00. 14
ig refundable, with bank passbook interest if Tenant leaves the Property

bly c1 a und d. "
x;afz v c’ean and undamage M‘Qwa«{(}hW 'WMMM

30 days written notice before the lease runs out. Otherwise, he will be
regarded as automatically Switching over to a month-to~month tenancy
Unless and until Tenant receives a 30 day advance notice of rent

change, rent will be deemed at $1225,00 per month during this period. -

in this Space at 5825 Occidental. wo other persons Gmpeies may live
there without Owner's written permission.‘ These Premises may NQT BE
SUBLET, ' without Owner's written permission. Owner agrees not to
withhold permission unreasonably.

Use of the washer and drver are included in the rent, Boenand
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Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen
P.O.Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570
925 683 3693
Diane@lodm.com

Sherman v. Michelsen # T160258
CLOSING BRIEF RE FRAUD AND :MISTAKE

L :
GENERAL DISCUSSION

The City of Oakland’s body of law must comply with CA law. The City has
no special dispensation to create a nhew nonconforming body of law.
Although the City’s regulations allow a fraud action, this in and of itself
does not preclude the specific tenets which must be pleaded in a fraud
action under CA law and does not nullify due process requirements such -
as collateral estoppel and res judlcata

The judicial analysis of what facts and circumstances may allow a
challenge to a final judgment for fraud are briefed in Owners Reply
Attachment 1, filed July 2016, and more specifically in Memo filed
2/2/2018. (Both are incorporated by reference.)

" A. NEWLY DISCOVERABLE EVIDENCE IS REQUIRED.
. The facts alleged must be newly discoverable; i.e. not available previously

even with diligent effort. It is not enough for facts to be newly discovered.
If any other interpretation was allowed, certificate of exemp_tion- hearings
would be just practice for tenants -- opportunities to refine one’s case unitil
one wins. Without the new evidence reqwrement upon a loss, a petltlon
cla|m|ng fraud can always be filed.

. Although in his initial Fraud Petition, Tenant posits “new evndence” he

reveals no “new evidence” at the time of filing this Petition or indeed even
by the conclusion of this matter. Tenant made no attempt to demonstrate
that the further evidence introduced here was “new evidence” or to show
why, had Sherman prepared diligently for the first exemption, he could not
have produced the evidence at the first hearing. That Sherman did not
CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman Page 1
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endeavor to hunt for further facts before the first heanng does not make

: hls counsel s later discoveries relevant

Sherman makes no showing that upon filing this fraud petition, he had
sufficient facts previously undiscoverable that the first hearing was fatally
corrupt. In fact, there is no showing he had any more evidence upon filing
the Fraud petition than when he first appealed the Hearing Officer’s
issuance of the Certificate of Exemption. The allegations and submissions
in the record when Sherman filed this Petition are virtually identical to
when that Appellate Panel ruled. The Appellate Panel refused to remand
the matter, or reverse, and instead affirmed the issuance; as did the
Superior Court and the Court of Appeal. The outcome here must be the

- same; fraud petitions must be something more than eternal evidentiary

fishing (and harassing) actions. |

Demanding “new evidence” was the express and correct legal analysis
followed by the Superior Court and the Court of Appeal. Under that
analysis, the more formal Abraham submission, and the Weiner
submission were repeatedly determined not to be “new evidence”. By
extension, other evidence which Sherman produced for the fraud hearing
would also be determined to be not new evidence; all of it was
discoverable prior to the first exemption hearing.

A correct legal analysis confirms the initial dismissal of this Petition by the
Rent Board. No more encompassing review of the record is needed.

B. CALIFORNIA STATUTES AND JUDICAIRY REQUIRE CLAIMS OF
FRAUD TO BE PLED WITH SPECIFICITY.

Under the approach taken by California statutes and judiciary, this
requires that a tenant claiming fraud or mistake in the issuance of a
Certificate of Exemption allege with particularity the specific facts then
known to the tenant which make that claim plausible. Owner believes this
is the approach properly taken by the |n|t|al Hearing Oﬁ" icer on this Petition
in dismissing the Petition. o

C. THE HEARING OFFICER RULED THAT THE CASE DOES NOT FAIL
BASED ON FAILURE OF THE TENANT TO ALLEGE FRAUD AND
MISTAKE WITH ANY MORE SPECIFICITY THAN HE ALREADY HAS
BECAUSE THE FORM ONLY DEMANDS A BOX BE CHECKED.

Owner contends that the form-does not comply with the requirements of
CA law and that this “loophole” ostensibly interpreted here as allowing
tenant to redo the entire rent exemption:action should not be allowed. At
the very least, Tenant, at the onset of the fraud hearing or shortly after

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16 0258 Michelsen v. Sherman _ A‘ | Page 2
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filing his action, should have been required to detail with particulal:i‘ty what
facts constitute his allegations of fraud or mistake.

Before the issues of fraud and mistake (as properly defined for purposes
of a collateral challenge to a final decision) are entitled to disrupt that

- respite and subject the formerly victorious party to discovery, hearings,
evidentiary hearings, the law imposes requirements that the challenging
party demonstrate a likelihood of prevailing by pleading the fraud and
mistake with particularity. (Please see page 6 of 1/14/17 Memo.) The law
typically does not allow the respite from further litigation on the same issue
of the exemption earned by the Owners through prevailing at the original
hearing on their Petition for Exemption, then before the Appeals panel a
lengthy and hard fought appeal, then in the Superlor Court and then in the
Court of Appeal to be so easily lost.

Unless the pleading requirements imposed by CA law are respected,
whenever a Tenant loses, an immediate new petition could be filed, based
on the continued disagreement, implying to the losing party that the
decision was reached by fraud or mistake. Tenant could relitigate forever
the issue of the Certificate of Exemption without alleging any new facts to
support his allegations and use the new action as a fishing expedition to
find facts to buffet his claim. There would be no end. ("To withstand a
demurrer, the facts constituting every element of the fraud must be alleged
with particularity, and the claim cannot be salvaged by reference to the
general policy favoring the liberal construction of pleadings.” Goldrich v.

. Natural Y Surglcal Spemaltles Inc., 25 Cal App4th 772, 782 (1994))

The necessity of specific pleading is also consistent with traditional legal
principles that frown upon the use of fraud claims as a post-hoc insurance
policy. As in this case, without the initial inquiry of what facts the petitioner
had at the time of filing his petition of fraud of mistake, the administrative
proceéding would become a huntmg expedition to seek facts supporting

- the allegation.

D. INTRINSIC FRAUD SHOULD NOT BE ALLOWED TO BE THE BASIS
OF A FRAUD HEARING.

Under CA law, fraud must be extrinsic, such as misleading a litigant about
the time, place, or purpose of a heanng Intrinsic fraud, a witness telling
falsehoods or making a mistake is not enough. (Please see previous
submissions for case law.) Extrinsic fraud did not exist here: Sherman
participated knowingly and energetically at the first hearing.

Sherman alleges that the r:e‘nt.bo?a;rfc'i hééring is equivalent to an arbitration
hearing and therefore intrinsic‘fraud should be allowable grounds fora

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16 0258 chhelsen v. Sherman Pége 3
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fraud hearing. However, this is not true. Typically arbitrations do not
have the right to appeal, and may have crippling time constraints and
arbitrators who may not be independent. Rent Board hearings are mini
trials, with the right of discovery, and appeal. Should litigants need
further time for discovery, they may make motions to reschedule or
continue the case for cause. :

Additionally, the nature of the Rent Board proceedings are such that a
party could anticipate and effectively counter fraud arising in the hearing.
For example, in the exemption hearing the issue was whether there was
residential use prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy.
Sherman presented his evidence and by his choice, did not have his .
witness appear. Landlord, as anticipated, denied such use and presented
affidavits and testimony. Sherman used his right to appeal in the Rent
Board Appeal Panel, the Superior Court and the Court of Appeals and
then_,ﬁied this fraud action when he didn’t prevail.

There are already hundreds of millions of United States administrative

hearings. If an exception were recognized for such hearings from the
- need for intrinsic fraud, Sherman would have dozens of cites for the

propositions from all jurisdictions and in federal law. He has none. -

Ii.
EVIDENCE PROFERRED.

Typically in an administrative hearing ali evidence is admitted and itis up
to the hearing officer to decide how much weight to give each item.
Owners’ contention is that none of this evidence is new; all could have
been presented in the first hearing had the tenant been diligent; therefore
all of this further evidence should be excluded. For illustrative purposes,
some of the evidence/testimony is itemized below.

A.RUS MICHELSEN S TESTIMONY Michelsen testified when he
purchased the building, it had been zoned commercial and was newly
zoned residential. He sought and received a letter from the City of
Oakland giving him permission to live in it and do art. At that time, the
building did not lend itself to being residential due to its configuration. All
rentals prior to Certificate of Occupancy issuance at 5823-25 Occidental
were for commercial use. He had no knowledge of any abrogation of the
- contracts. : :

B. SHERMANS TESTIMONY. In the exemption hearing, Sherman
testified about his unit, gave hearsay and described his efforts at locating

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16 0258 Mlcheisen V. Sherman ‘ Page 4
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information. None of this is new lnformatlon Only his original testimony
should be given weight. '

C. OCCUPANCY RECORDS PRE 1974 WHEN MICHELSEN
PURCHASED THE BUILDING SHOULD BE GIVEN NO WEIGHT AS TO
WHETHER THE PROPERTY WAS USED FOR RESIDENTIAL.
PURPOSES. From records. Sherman introduced, it appeared the
_building in the early 1900s was used/zoned for residential purposes.
However; the configuration of the building, (if it was the same building and
not just on the same land), was totally different. According to 8/30/1924
and.1/25/1925 newspaper ads, the building was composed of one nine
room house for two families. That the building had been used for/zoned
commercial prior to his purchase was confirmed by Rachel Flynn’s original
email and in her email of May 06, 2016 wherein she referred to the
buﬂdmgs permits in 1931 and. 1964 as proposed use of building as
“painting- company” and “pnntmg plant”. ‘

Michelsen testified that when he bought the building it was a large open
space with a lunch room and toilet facllltles and it had been used as a print
shop.

Certainly these early instances of residential use were before the
building’s usages, zoning and configuration changed, much before any
consideration of the rent control ordinances and exemptions. This clearly
is not what the regulation refers when speaking of the building not being
used for residential purposes prior to the certificate of occupancy being
issued. . .

The documents Sherman introduced from the early 1900s, including but
not limited to the newspaper ads advertising the property for sale, the
early census records, the occupancy records from 1918-1928, city
directories, and voter registration records should be given no weight as to
~ whether the property was used for residential purposes prior to the

- certificate of occupancy. Additionally, these records are and have been

~ available and cannot be considered as “new” or previously unavailable
ewdence : '

D. & E. DECLARATIONS AND (FURTHER) TESTIMONY OF ABRAHAM
AND WEINER WERE PREVIOUSLY CONSIDERED AS “NOT NEW-
EVIDENCE” AND WERE EXCLUDED. THEY SHOULD CONTINUE TO
BE EXCLUDED. The revised declarations and further testimony from
Abraham and Weiner were excluded previously. They should not be able
to be kited back into court under a fraud allegation. Further testimony and

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman : Page 5
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declarations should be given no weight. Please see Brief Attachment 1,
Owners Response 7/21/16 page 5 et al.

It is undisputed that Abraham leased space; it was Michelsen'’s testimony
that he leased it for commercial purposes. Abraham'’s declarations and
testimony are at odds with themselves as to time frames, and who lived
there and also at odds with Weiner's as to time frames and who occupied
the space. Further, accepting Abraham’s testimony/declarations requires
the hearing officer to believe he would have exposed his child to a toxic
atmosphere of sawdust, glue, varnish and other contaminants of artistic
and woodworking use and raucous band practice.

Weiner testimony: The Weiner declaration was not accepted as new
evidence in any of the former appeals. Weiner, who claimed he moved in
sometime in 1976, rented from a roommate. He indicated he met with
Michelsen from time to time, but Michelsen rebutted this and denied any
knowledge of him. That Weiner indicated Michelsen had dogs does not
indicate he lived there or that Michelsen knew of him as a resident; it is not
a stretch to believe, if anything, that he rented studio space only. Weiner
also said the child came by every once in a while, but never mentioned
living with a child which was in conflict with Abrahams earlier declarations.
Weiner's testimony is not proof that Michelsen knew of him or that he
resided in the unit.

F. TESTIMONY OF TED GERMANN WAS REBUTTED BY MICHELSEN
AND BY CLINT MACKAY. Germann’s testified the band lived at the
premises; that the premises were fully equipped with a kitchen, full
bathroom and regular trash collection and that he also lived with his wife
up the street.

This testimony was rebutted by Michelsen who testified that the premises
were composed of a commercial lunchroom, including a sink, not a stove,
and a bathroom toilet and sink, not a shower. The premises were rented
for commercial purposes. Trash pick up was provided for the commercial
space.

Declaration of Clint Mackay, further rebutted Ted Germann'’s statement.
Mackay stated that he located and rented the space for commercial
purposes, for a music recording and band rehearsal business and had
limited contact with Michelsen. His declaration stated the premises had
limited lunchroom and bathroom facilities. He stated that Ted Germann
never lived there, noting the other declarant had a separate residence with
his wife.

S T O I PP A N SV
CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman Page 6
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Former tenants were available at the time of the original exemption
hearing. While the evidence may be newly discovered, this is not newly
discoverable evidence. Given that Germann’s testimony is rebutted by
Michelsen’s and Mackay’s testimony, Germann’s testimony should be -
accorded little or no weight.

G. THE UNLAWFUL DETAINER COMPLAINT IS NOT FOR THIS
ADDRESS AND SHOULD BE GIVEN NO WEIGHT. The Uniawful
Detainer Complaint was for 929 Grace Street, a completely autonomous
unit. The Superior Court Eviction Complaint has been part of the court
records, easily searchable, since at Ieast 1985, and thus cannot be
considered new evidence.

H. THE HAINES CRISSCROSS DIRECTORY AND OAKLAND
RESIDENTAL PHONE BOOK LISTINGS WERE ENTERED AS
EVIDENCE AND CONSIDERED BY THE FIRST HEARING OFFICER. It
is unclear where Crisscross got its information from as to
residential/commercial usage, although it appears it came from the ph,one
books. Businesses and residence listings are both on same page in the
books, therefore are not proof of residence. This is not new evidence.

I. CITY OF OAKLAND BUILDING DEPARTMENT RECORDS AND
RACHEL FLYNN'S EMAIL. All of these items were previously submitted
and accepted as evidence during the orlgmal exemption hearing and
considered by the hearing officer. There is no showing that these
documents were fraudulent. Further examination and amplification of this
should not be allowed.

J. THE VOTER REGISTRATION RECORDS ARE INCORRECT AND
CONFUSING. Tenant did not have this information in his possession at
the time of filing the fraud complaint and had no idea what it would show.
This is a fishing expedition at its best and the time for such would have
been at the initial heanng discovery, not in the fraud action.

According to Chuck Abraham'’s first declaration, he was in residence from
1976 to 1978. Later his declarations changed the dates and that he lived
there with his daughter. He made no mention of other renters. According
to the voter registration forms, he was registered there from 1978-1985.
His alleged roommate, DW ‘was not registered.

According to voter registration records in

1978, there were 3 registered voters showing this address

1979, there were 3 registered voters showing this address;

1980, there were 2 registered voters showing this address;
W

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman Page 7"
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1981, there was 1 registered voter showing this address;
1982, there were 4 registered voters showing this address;
1983, there were 2 registered voters showing this address;
1984, there were 5 registered voters showing this address;
1985, there were 4 registered voters showing this address.

Who were these people who reglstered to vote showing this address?
How could there have been 5 people in the space and Abraham doesn't
mention them? Either the voter registration information is not accurate or
Abraham’s declarations are not accurate.

Further, the evidence produced nothing that could not have been
discovered previously. The history was always there. The information
was findable with reasonable diligence; if more time was needed, a
continuance could have been sought.

Owners believe that the so called fraud is just a continuation of Sherman’s
attempts to present the “newily discovered” evidence he attempted to
introduce on the appeal of the Decision finding the unit was exempt. ‘The

- Appeal Board, the Superior Court and the Court of Appeals all determined
that such “new evidence” did not constitute new evidence, but was

~ evidence which Sherman should have introduced at the first hearmg that

evidence legally cannot be the bas:s of a fraud claim.

In reviewing the record, we must keep in mind that the evudence first must
be sufficient to show fraud mvahdatlng the first hearing before any
evidence relevant to the underlying issue ~ the Certificate of Exemption —
is considered. What do we mean by “fraud” at the first hearing (if not
what the law defines as fraud permitting a collateral challenge)? To
respect the dignity of hearings, it would have to be some showing that
wholly or in good conscience invalidates the first hearing. Simply rebutting
some evidence is not sufﬂcnent That criterion cannot be met here.

i,
TENANT HAS MADE NO SHOWING OF FRAUD IN THE LEGAL SENSE

Who committed the alleged fraud..or, what the alleged fraud was that was
committed has been articulated by Sherman only in his Remand Brief. He
-accused his landlords of giving “false testimony.” This leads to the
argument that this would. be intrinsic fraud and not the type of fraud to be
included in a fraud complaint.

This is not a case where a,finding of fraud ‘sufficient to invalidate the prior
Decision is possible. Even assuming that Mr. Michelsen falsely stated he

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman ' Page8
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was unaware of any prior residence use, if the uncontested evidence
remains sufficient to support the Decision, questionable statements cannot
be sufficient to invalidate the decision. A litigant’s statement on the
ultimate issue is rarely given much weight by itself in an administrative
hearing. The officer looks at the totality of the evidence to make the
ultimate decision. How can there be fraud if the hearing officer could have
rationally decided the same way completely ignoring the challenged
testimony? How could one find fraud in this case without simply saying
that any prior hearing officer’s decision is subject to eternal review upon
disagreement with what evidence was given what weight?

Tenant has made no showing of actual fraud/perjury. Mr. Michelsen may
not have been aware of his tenants’ purported unpermitted use of the
space on the opposite side of the building, or considered such use as
random or sporadic, rather than actually residential. The newly offered
evidence here simply does not include any inconsistent prior statement,
whether oral or written, in which Mr. Michelsen is quoted as admitting
residential use, nor any inconsistent document with his signature. Any
additional evidence offered which, by making a finding of residential use
~ earlier more likely than not, still does not prove Harold Michelsen’s
contrary testimony was knowingly false. No showing of fraud, even in the
common sense, is made. :

Additionally, there is insufficient evidence to establish perjury by Mr.
Michelsen even when we range far afield from the legal view of how a
fraud collateral challenge to a final judgment should be handled or even if
we consider all the evidence, irrespective of whether it is “new evidence”
or was known when the fraud petition was filed. The burden, by a
preponderance of the evidence, is on Sherman, to make the fraud
showing. He has not met the burden.

' . VA :
RES JUDICATA AND COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL SHOULD APPLY TO
- THIS FRAUD PROCEEDING.

A. THIS ACTION IS A COLLATERAL ATTACK ON THE EXEMPTION
JUDGMENT. S :

The definition of collateral attack is a legal action to challenge the ruling in
‘another case. Sherman writes he.is not attempting to vacate the judgment
in the exemption case, and is alleging a new cause of action, therefore
there should not be any res judicata or collateral estoppel. However, the
distinction of vacating a ruling as opposed to getting relief not withstanding
a final judgment is not supported by authority nor logic. This is as circular
as a distinction without a difference. If every fraud case was considered a

e e P S e
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wholly new action, nd fraud case would ever be precluded under res
judicata or collateral estoppel and that entire body of law wouldn’t exist.

B. PRIMARY RIGHTS THEORY BARS AND DEFEATS THE FRAUD
PETITION UNDER RES JUDICATA. '

The “primary right theory” which determines whether res judicata bars a
second action, is discussed in Memo to Rent Board, Feb 2, 2018 Page
4A2. |t states “...the invasion of a primary right gives rise to a single
cause of action, even though that cause of action may find expression
under the law in a number of different counts or legal theories.” Fujifilm
Corp. v. Yang, 223 Cal.App.4" 326 (2d Dist. 2014). “For the purposes of
res judicata, causes of action are considered the same if based on the
same primary right.” Citizens for Open Govemment v. City of Lodi (2012)
205 Cal.App.4™ 296,325. “The primary right is simply the plaintiff's right
to be free from the particular injury suffered,” (Mycogen, supra 28 Cal.4™
at p904.) as opposed fo the particular theory asserted by the litigant or
legal theory advanced. (emphasis added) Boeken v. Phillip Morris USA
(2010) 48 Cal.4™ 788, 798.

~ The primary right here is Tenant's right to be free from the exemption of
his unit from rent control. Tenant claimed (Attachment A of his initial fraud
petition) that “he will prove that his rental unit was used residentially prior-
to the enactment of the rent ordinance and prior to the issuance of the
certificate of occupancy.” This is the very same claim that was at issue
in all the exemption proceedings and that claim was given a full and fair
hearing and three appeals! :

The concepts of finality—one hearing and one final decision on an issue—
sometimes called issue preclusion (Collateral estoppel) and claim
preclusion (res judicata) cannot be immediately evaded by a rote saying of
fraud or mistake. If it were that easy, the respite from litigation which
those doctrines are supposed to provide would be nugatory.

. C. THAT THE STATUTES AND REGS ALLOW FOR A SEPARATE
FRAUD ACTION DOES NOT PRECLUDE RES JUDICATA OR
COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL.

Sherman has argued that res judicata and collateral estoppel do not apply
to the Rent Board hearings because fraud contests are authorized by
regulations. The fact that the ordinance explicitly provides that a
certificate of exemption may be challenged in a separate subsequent
proceeding does not demonstrate an intent that res judicata and collateral
estoppel not be applied. There may well be instances where collateral
challenges are appropriate, (e.g. extrinsic fraud,) just not in this case. The
very fact that the regulation allows for a second action demonstrates an

e 5 PER =
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intent to recognize doctrines of issue and claim preclusion by Citing the
very principles which allow a challenge.

Tenant's position is indistinguishable in practice from having Certificates of
~ Exemption being forever temporary. As soon as one is issued, a tenant

can freely allege fraud, begin a fishing expedition through administrative
dlscovery devices, cease paying the increased rent since a rent board
action is “pending”, and obtain another full hearing. Like shampoo
instructions, ...wash, rinse, repeat.., it could be endless. This is nota
procedure properly within-a set of admlmstratlve regulations governlng
important business. It is a recipe for harassment. Yet, this result is
unavoidable unless the considerable body of law protecting the finality of -
judicial decisions is respected.

D. FORUM DOES NOT CONTROL CALIFORNIA LAW.
The City of Oakland demonstrated no particular right to invent a one sided
approach giving tenant numerous opportunities to litigate an exemption
case and ignore established California law. If the Oakland Rent
Ordinance throws out doctrines of issue and claim preclusion for

~ exemption hearings, and the need to plead fraud with particularity, then
where did it get the power to override generally applicable CA law in this
matter? How. can it preclude issue and claim preclusion which are part of
due process in American law? How can it give new definitions to legal
fraud and mistake? Why didn't it make its position clear rather than
choose language which seems to identify recognized exceptions to the
doctrlnes of collateral estoppel and res judicata?

 GENERAL DISCUSSION OF MISTAKE.

Under California law, no “mistake” of the type recognized as allowing a
challenge to a prior final decision (a “collateral challenge”) is possible
here. California case law holds that “mistake” allowing collateral challenge
can only be of essential facts, not actually litigated, where the mistake was
mutual between the parties and shared by the hearing officer or judge.
(please see: Owners’ Reply to the Petition)

Even if the legal approach to analyzing mlstake/collateral challenges is
abandoned, a mistake case should not be allowed here. A tenant is not
entitled, by clalmlng “mistake”, to.countless further hearings until the
Hearing Officer, in the tenant’s opinion, “gets it right”.

Sherman’s “mistake” claim i |s apparently simple disagreement with the
- prior outcome. Allowing such collateral challenges would depnve Rent

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Miéhél'sen v.'Sherman \ Page 11
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Board exemption decisions of finality or respect. Sherman’s “mistake”
claim must be denied.

o , | L |
WHOSE MISTAKE IS BEING EVALUATED? DOES IT DIFFER FROM
THE APPEAL PROCESS ALREADY LITIGATED? |

Sherman has never explained what “mistake” underlies his current
challenge to the exemption decision, which was upheld by the Superior
Court and by the Court of Appeal in denying his appeal from that decision.
No evidence submitted in the current proceeding supports a claim of
mistake. - ,

If the purported mistake was by the Hearing Officer, it should have been
corrected by the Appellate Panel of the Rent Board. Additionally, it is
impossible to distinguish that situation from what was asserted and argued
during the writ of mandate proceeding and appeal. Sherman raised
literally dozens of issues in his writ of mandate and appeal, alleging inter
alia that he had “new evidence”, that the Hearing Officer improperly
rejected or discounted his evidence, was biased in favor of landlords,
denied Sherman due process, etc.; each complaint was analyzed and
dismissed by the Superior Court and by the Court of Appeal.

Sherman fares no better if the purported mistake was by Sherman himself,
in believing that the short Abraham letter necessarily determined the
matter, so that he then abandoned any further investigation or preparation
for the initial exemption hearing. Accepting that interpretation—that this
qualifies as a mistake to set aside a verdict-- means that all exemption
hearings would basically be practice sessions for the tenant. Whenever a
tenant loses, a new hearing will be provided automatically on a claimof
“mistake”, until that tenant exhausts the research which should have been
done for the initial hearing, or the tenant prevails.

However, Rent Board hearings should have import and be respected,;

California Maxims of Jurisprudence (Civil Code Sections 3517 and §3527

apply here fully: “No one can take advantage of his own wrong.” “The law

helps the vigilant, before those who sleep on their rights.” If it was

" Sherman’s mistake, there was no showing he wasn’t fully aware of issues
and what evidence was relevant. -

VI
CONGLUSION.

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman ' Page 12
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The outcome of this case is entirely dependent on whether the City of
Oakland follows CA law or creates its own body of law and ignores due
process. This brief speaks to the specific requirements of fraud actions:
a) that it be extrinsic fraud, rather than intrinsic, b) that the allegations be
pleaded with specificity and c) that the evidence be newly discoverable. It
also speaks of res judicata and collateral estoppel, even though the
Hearing Officer ruled it had no application to this case.

Sherman states, “the purpose of the rescission hearings in which tenants
may challenge previously granted Certificates of Exemption is to correct
erroneously granted permanent exemptions.” However, whether this
granting is erroneous depends on whether there was external fraud,
precluding a full and fair hearing on the issues, not whether claimant
continues to believe the case had the wrong outcome. A fraud petition
must be something more than disagreement with the hearing officer's
weighing of the evidence.

Sherman ignores this; he writes that the methodology of this hearing
should be to completely ignore all previous hearings and appeals (which
decided that Sherman could have in the exercise of reasonable diligence
have presented the declarations and witnesses at the initial hearing and
that therefore none of this is “newly discovered evidence.” ) He writes in
order to discover fraud which he equates with “wrong outcome”, all the
evidence which is relevant to that question, new and old, must be
considered including testimony from previous witnesses. He states (page
14 remand brief), “this includes witnesses who might have been
discovered prior to the initial exemption hearing.” Sherman’s position is
that all the evidence now presented should be reviewed to determine
“whether the first decision was correct, irrespective of whether it is “new’--
virtually eliminating any need to show fraud or mistake independently and
ignoring some five plus years of litigation! This is-not what Fraud or
Mistake in the legal sense means and flies in the face of legal principles of
finality. ' ‘ :

But even arguendo accepting a novel view that “fraud” in the popular
sense is relevant, Tenant must show the previously unavailable evidence
which demonstrates — not just that on further submissions a hearing officer
could have decided the prior petition in Tenant's favor —that the evidence

. presented by Owner at the prior hearing was so infected with conscious
falsehood or absolute invention (e.g., afabricated document) that even

assuming the prior Hearing Officer gave little weight to Owner's testimony
(since it was contested), the prior decision cannot stand.

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman Page 13
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The evidence presented is not newly “discoverable” evidence and goes to
intrinsic rather than extrinsic fraud. No extrinsic fraud is shown. The
declarants were available; all could have been located much earlier so as
~ to be presented at the initial hearing. The evidence is insufficient to
“overturn the original decision and should be deemed not persuasive ina
fraud hearing because of this. A; '
If the first evidence submitted by Sherman was the only evidence to
consider, then it is not difficult to understand that the first hearing officer
could have easily decided in favor of Michelsen. It was a judgment call
made by the hearing officer. Michelsen, aged 76, is suffering from
debilitating disease. Even if parts of his testimony are challenged by
others, there is no inconsistency in writings from one hearing to next.
Even without considering the portions of Michelsens testimony which are
contested, there was sufficient evidence for the first hearing officer to find
in favor of the certificate of exemption. The building permits, Certificate of
Occupancy, email from Rachel Finn, testimony of Diane Michelsen all
supported the exemption finding.

There is no newly discoverable evidence to prove Michelsen's testimony
was false or fraudulent. Had the tenant provided all his newly discovered
evidence at the first hearing, he may have prevailed, but in this fraud
hearing, new evidence which was not newly discoverable should be
excluded. With these exclusions, by law, the tenant did not meet his
burden of proof. ' :

Respectfully submitted,
. ya oy ¢ CAltbizeal S
‘Diane Iﬁichelsen '

In Pro Per for Diane and Rus Migh;elsen..‘

July 13, 2018

CLOSING BRIEF Rent Board T16-0258 Michelsen v. Sherman Page 14

000103



Leah Hess, SB No. 126800 o

chn
.-

Attorney at Law IGJUL 13 PK e 38
610 16" Street, M-8 ‘

Oakland, CA 94612
~ Tel. 510.451.3103

SRR ——leahhess2@sbcglobal.net

. Attorney for Petitioner

Housing and Community .Dev'elopmenf Départment
Rent Adjustment Program

CASE NUMBER: - T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  5823/5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

PARTIES: Mark Sherman, Tenant ‘
: : Diane and Rus Michelsen, Owners

PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN’S REMAND HEARINGBRIEF

000104



- IL

1.

IV.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

BRIEF HISTORY OF PRIOR PETITIONS

A. Sherman’s Petition (Failure to Serve RAP Notices)

B. Michelsen’s Petition for Certiﬁcate of Exemption

C. The Superior Court Judgments in the Rent and Exemption
Petitions :

D. Court of Appeals Opinion on Exemption Petition

E.. Sherman’s Petition for Resclssmn of the Certificate of
Exemption ’

LEGAL ISSUES

The Rent Ordinance Prov1des Safeguards Against Fraud in the
Grantmg of Certificates of Exemption; It Should Be Liberally
Interpreted to Promote the Beneficial Purposes for Which Those
Safeguards Were Enacted

Mr. Sherman Has a Different Duty in Thls Petition than His Duty
in the Exemption Petition

1. The Board has Taken the Position that Mr. Sherman’s Present
Claim Is Different from his Claim in the Exemption Petition

2, Participation in the Exemption Hearings Should Not Impinge .

on Sherman’s Fraud Claim; His Position Is the Same as Any
'Other Tenant Seeking Rescission Based on Fraud:

THE CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION WAS OBTAINED AS A
RESULT OF FRAUD ON THE PART OF DIANE AND HAROLD
RUS MICHELSEN

'A.  Basic Nature of the Fraud

11

- 11

000105



B. Petitioner Need Not Show Extrinsic Fraud; He May Challenge
the Certificate of Exemption Based on Intrinsic Fraud

THE EXEMPTION HEARING: HOW THE MICHELSENS
FRAUDULENTLY OBTAINED THE CERTIFICATE OF

EXEMPTION

A.  Evidence submitted at the EXemptidn Petition Hearing
THE REMAND HEARING
A. Remand Pre-Trial Hearing

B. The Remand Hearing

'THE EVIDENCE PROVES THE ELEMENTS OF FRAUD

A. False Statement

~B. Scienter
-C. Intent to Induce Reliance/Justifiable Reliance

D. Damage to Sherman
REMEDY SOUGHT

i

12

15

15
18
18
19
29
29
30
31
31

31

000106



i

Leah Hess, SB No. 126800
Attorney at Law

610 16" Street, M-8
Oakland, CA 94612

Tel. 5104513103
leahhess2@sbcglobal.net

Attorney for Petitioner

Housing and Community DeVelopmént Department
Rent Adjustment Program '

CASE NUMBER: T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 582375825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

PARTIES: Mark Sherman, Tenant
Diane and Rus Michelsen, Owners

PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN’S REMAND HEARING BRIEF

L INTRODUCTION
Petitioner is not pursuing his initial claim of fraud and mistake and proceeds on his fraud
allegations only. After review of the entire record.to date, including the hearing tapes, it is
difficult to conclude that the certificate of exemption was the reéﬁlt of anything but fraud.
Harold Rus Michelsen and Diane Michelsen obtained the éertiﬁcate of exerﬁption through their
false and misleading statements to the RAP in the initial exemption case. The falsehoods were
made for the purpose of inducing the RAP to issue a certificate of exemption for the rental unit

inhabited by their tenant, Mark Sherman. They succeeded in obtaining the certificate, to the

detriment of Mr. Sherman and the City of Oakland .

10f course, it is possible that the Hearing Officer may take a less harsh view of the
Michelsen’s representations about their property, finding that they resulted from the remoteness
of the events and the vicissitudes of memory. Petitioner however regards this as the less likely
explanation for the award of a certificate of exemption.

1
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IL. BRIEF HISTORY OF PRIOR PETITIONS

A.  Sherman’s Petition (Failure to Serve RAP Notices)

- In 2012, Mark Sherman filed a tenant petition protesting rent increases that his landlords,

Diane and Ha:old Rus Michelsen, had imposed over thé yéars. (Sherman v. Michelsen, T12-

0332). He prevailed in his claim, teceiving an order for overpaid rent and his rent was set back to

the initial 1985 level. The Michelsens appealed to the Rent Board, which sustained the Hearing

Decision. During the course of the petition, the landlords did not raise permanent exemption as a
defense. The Michelsens‘petitioned the Superior Court fér a Writ of Mandate to remand the case
back to the Board. (Michelsen v. Oakland Rent Adjustment Boarjd, Alameda County Superiof
Court No. RGl4-71 1405) |

B. Michelsen’s .Petition for Certificate of Exemption

In December 2013, the Michelsens filed their petition for a certificate of exemption.

(Michelsen v, Sherman , 1.13-0054). Sherman responded, challenging their claim that 5825/5823
Occidental Street, Oakland had never been used residentially.

He located a former tenant, woodworker Charles Abraham, and obtained a one-sentence

- unsworn letter from him, stating he had lived at 5823 Occidental in 1976, 1977 and 1978.(Exh.

2) Sherman submitted the letter and a copy of Abraham’s 1977 and 1978 residential telephone
directory listings. (Exh. 3)

The Michelsens submitted Rus Michelsen’s sworn declaration statingvthat Sherman’s unit
had never been “rented as” residénﬁal property prior to the 1985 certiﬁéate of occupancy.» Diane
Michelsen testified that the rental unit was not habitable in 1982, and described the conversion of

the property into residential rental units in 1984. A certificate of occupancy was issued in 1985.

~ The owners submitted an email from a city official to their representative, Greg McConnell,
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which stated that ﬁousing “went into” the property “by the mid-80's”. (Exh 1)’

The Michelsens prevailed. The Hearing Officer found that Mr Sherman’s showing was
outweighed by the owners’ evidence. Her order granted the landlords’ petition, Zdeclared the
property exempt, and ordered issuance of a certificate of exemption. (Hearing Decision, 113~
0054)

Sherman appealed to the Board. By that timé, he had obtained a sWom_declaration from
Mr. Abraham, describing his tenancy and offering to testify in person. He located a second
former tenant, Daniel Wiener, who also lived in Sherman’s unit prior to 1985. Wiener provided
a sworn declaration detailing his residence at Occidental Street. The Board. upheld the Hearing
Deéision and rejected Sherman’s assertion that the matter should be remanded for considefation
of the declarations as “new evidence.” (Appeal Decision, Ll 3-0054) |

C. The Superior Court Judgments in the Rent ‘an‘d Exemption Petitions

Sherman challenged the Board;s exemption determination in a petition for writ of mandate in
the Superior Court, seeking a remand back to the Renthoard. (Shérman V. Oakland Rent Board
Alameda County Superior Court No. RG15-785257) The Superior Court deemed Sherman’s writ
petition and the Michelsen’s previqusiy filed writ petition to be related matters. The two
proceeded together.

The Michelsens prevailed in the exemption petition. The trial court found that the Rent
Bbard did not err in failing to remand for consideration of new evidence. Rather, it found that
Sherman did not employ reasonable diligence in locating and presenting the evidence at the

hearing level. The Trial Court also found that the Hearing Decision was supported by substantial

>The evidence submitted by the owners in the initial exemption petition hearlhg will be
- examined in greater detail infra. Mr. Sherman’s claim is based upon the knowmgly false
statements made by the landlords in the exemption proceedings.

3
000109



. | ("

evidence. (Judgment—Writ Denied, Case No: RG15-785257, dated 2/23/2016).

Mr. Sherman prevailed in his writ petition for laci( of RAP notices, meaning that the rent
abatement was not invalidated, and the rentvremained rolled back‘ fof the months prior to thé final
Rent Board order exempting the property. (J udgment—Wﬁt Denied Rent Petition date)

D. Court of Appeals Opinion on Exemntionv Petition

In an unpublished decision, issued April 26, 2017, the Court of Appeals upheld the
Superior Court’s judgement, finding that Mr. Sherman was not deﬁied due process when the Rent
Board refused to remand. The Court found that Sherman had not shan sﬁfﬁcient diligence ‘when
he failed to locate Mr. Wiener in time for t'he RAP hearing. The Court also found that the
Hearing Decision was supported by substantial evidence. (Sherman v. City of Oakland (Rent
Board) Casé No. A147769, Opinion 4/26/ 17.

E. Sherman’s Petition for Rescission of the Certificate of Exemption

On March 21, 20 16, the Michelsens served Sherman with érent increase notice which
more than doubled his rent, to $4,000. He timely filed a RAP petition, challengiﬂg the increase.
His primary claim was that the certificate of exemption had been obtained through fraud and
mistake. (Tenant Petition, Record on file herein)

Unfortunately, instead of providing a hearing, the Hearing Officer and later the RAP
Adminis&ator issued summary administrative decisions dismissing his petition.

Mr; Sherrﬁan sought a writ of méndate from the Superior C_ouﬂ, aéserting denial of due -
process. (Sherman v. City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, Alameda Cbung Superior
Court, Case No. RG16-843773) After consideration by the Board in a closed meeting, the City
of Oakland agreed that the RAP had denied.his due process rights. The City moved the Supérior

- Court to remand the matter back to the Rent Board and dismiss the writ petition. The motion was

000110



( C

granted and this remand is the result. (Alameda County Superior Court, Case No: RG16-843773
Order Granting Motion to Remand_and Dismiss, dated 7/12/2017). |

Il LEGALISSUES |

The Hearing Officer ordered the parties to address certain issues presented by this case.
They are directed to address Whéther any of the facts upon which the tenant rélies were known or
should have been known prior to the underlying RAP case and whether that impacts his claim;
‘whether he had a different duty to establish whét could have been_dete;rmincd in the prior
decision; and whether Shefmén’s position is Idiffer_ent from other tenants alleging fraud in a
challenge to a previously issued exemption, be.cause he was the tenant in the underlying case.
Finally she directed the paﬁies to brief, in detail, the legal and factual standards applicable to
claims of fraud and to specify the féctual basis of the claim — who comrﬁitt’eci the fraud, the
nature of the fraud, and what was done that constitutes fraud. |

A.  The Rent Ordinance Provides Safeguards Against Fraild in the Granting of

Certificates of Exempt_ion; It Should Be Liberally Interpreted to Promote the
Beneficial Purposes for Which Those Safeguards Were Enacted

This action examines whether the certiﬁcate of exemption resulted from fraud. The
Ordinancelpro{(ides the statutory authority for rescission based upon fraud. }

Certiﬁcates of eXemption are permanent. They remove vrental units from Oakland’s stock
of affordable housing. Thus, a wrongfully issued certificate of exemption robs both the City and

| resident tenants of the protections afforded by the Rent Ordinance.
The Regulations provide for certain safeguard's against wrongful issuance:

Whenever an Owner seeks a Certificate of Exemption the following
procedures apply: ’

a. The petition cannot be decided on a sumrriary basis and may only
be decided after a hearing on the merits; ' '
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b. Staff may intervene in the matter for the purpose of better ensuring
that all facts relating to the exemption are presented to the Hearing
Officer; '

C. In addition to a party’s right to appeal, Staff or the Hearing Officer
may appeal the decision to the Rent Board...

Regs., 8.22.030.C.1.(a) - ©

These Regulations ensure that a certificate cannot be gfaﬁted by default. If no tenant
appears at the hearing, the hearing must nonetheless go forward and the owner mﬁst present:
evidence to prove each élement of the claim. However, despite their “permanent” natufe, '
certificates can be res;:inded if they were issued as a result of fraud or mistake. (OMC
8.22.0_30.B.1.b; 822.030.B1.c) These provisions dembnstréte a policy of caution in granting
permanent exemptions, and a policy of permitting rescission of Wrongﬁilly granted certificates of
‘exemption. They promote the goal of protecting affordable.housing ‘in Oakland. The necessity for
this “safety valve” of rescission is clear. There are many potential afenues for owner ﬁaud.3
- Given their importance they have in preventing fraud and protecting affordable hoﬁsing, these
provisions of the Ordinancé should be liberally intel_'preted in a manner so as to prorﬁo’te their
beneficial purposes. |

Although the provisions of the Ordinance are clearly intended to prevent wrongful

> A Landlord could, for example, wait until a unit was empty before applying for a
certificate, in order to guarantee no opposition. Or a landlord might, as the owners have done
here, delay seeking a certificate of exemption until long after the certificate of occupancy has
been issued. That way, proof of former residential occupancy would be extremely difficult. If the
landlord applies for an exemption (rather than raising exemption as a defense to a tenant petition)
the landlord gains the advantage of time. The landlord may take as much time as he or she wishes -
to put together his or her exemption case. The tenant is then required to gather evidence from
decades past to prove the property was residential prior to issuance of the certificate of

occupancy.
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issuance of certificates of occupancy, they provide little in the way of actual guidelines for how-
vfraud or mistake cases should proceed. No doubt, this is because there has been little opportunity
to “flesh out” those provisions. According to the City, the RAP has not previously held “fraud or
_ mistake” hearings. “This is somewhat uncharted territory....Given the Appellate Court
ruling,...Mr. Sherman is precluded from using prior evidence and arguments to challenge whether
his unit is exempt. Although it is a fine and somewhat biurred line, Mr. Sherrnan is, however,
able to use (new or prior) evidence and/or testimony to prove whether there was “fraud or
mistake” when the hearing officer determined the unit was exempt.” (City of Oakland, Reply to

Opp051tion to Motion for Remand and Dismissal Alameda County Superior Court Case No.

RG16-843773).

In this case, Mr. Sherman now presents both new and prior evidenee to demonstrate
fraud. He should not be penalized for his unsuccessful efforts in prior proceedingsA The
rescission prov151ons of the Ordinance allow for this new and different claim. Unlike the
- landlords, who took eleven months after Mr Sherman’s initial rent petltlon to claim exemption,
they had plenty of time to prepare. Mr. Sherman received notice of their exemption petition less
than a month and a half prior the hearing. He should not be prevented from vmaking afull
presentation of his case by prohibiting him fromusing “prior” evidence. Full pfesentationof the
facts promotes the beneficial purposes of the ordinance provisions permitting rescission. The
rescission provisions of the Ordinance him to make this new and different claim and do not
prohibit him from presenting previously raised eVidence.

B. Mr. Sherman Has a Different Duty in This Petition than His Duty in the
Exemption Petition ' :

1. "The Board has Taken the Position that Mr. Sherman s Present Claim
Is Different from his Claim in the Exemptlon Petition
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In its motion for remand to thev Superior Court, the Rent Board ;cook the position thét Mr.
Sherman ‘is not attempting to set aside the final judgment of the Court of Appeal. This is not a fe-
litigation of the original exemption hearing. A chailenge to a previously issUe& certificate of
exemption based upon fraud or mistake is not the same claim as opposing a landlord’s petition
for a certificate of exemption even though it méy involve oveflapping evidence.

| As stated by the City in its motion:

Although Ms. Michelsen argues that the California Court of Appeal decision -
finally decided the exemption finding was proper, Mr. Sherman’s tenant petition
argues something different — there was “fraud or mistake” in the facts leading to
the underlying finding. The evidence and declarations that Mr. Sherman initially
presented to the hearing officer in 2014 and 2015 were designed to refute Ms.
Michelsen’s claim that the property was exempt. The California Court of Appeal
decision reviewed Mr. Sherman’s evidence on this ground only. Even if My.
Sherman offers similar evidence in the instant tenant’s Dpetition, he now does so in
an attempt to prove a different theory, with a different legal standard, and having
the burden of proof. [Emphasis added] .

(Alameda County Superior Court RG16-843 773, Michelsen v. City of Oakland, et al.
City’s Reply Brief in Support of Motion to Remand and Dismiss, at p. 3:22-24)

The Ordinance and Regulations provide that a claim of fraud or mistake will arise after
issuance of the certificate of exemption. They speak of tenant challenges to “previously
granted (OMC 8.22.030.B.1.¢) and “pfeviousl_y issued” certificates of exemption. (Regulation
- 8.22.030.C.2) Undér the Ordinance, no cause of action for fraud could arise until a certificate has
been granted. Once it is issued, the tengnt has a different duty from 6ppqsition to a petition for
exemption in which the landlord bears the burden of proof. |

Sherman’s burden in this action is heavier that at the exemption ﬁearing. In the exemption
hearing,_Sherman only had to disprove a single element of the owners’ claim in order to prevéil.
He had to prove that thq property had not b'een used residentially prior to issuénce of the

certificate of occupancy. Now, he must prove every element of fraud. He must show, not only
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actual residential use prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, but that the
Michelsens knew of that use and lied when they repeatedly represented that there had been no
such prior‘ use. |

2. Participation in the Exemption Hearings Should Not Impinge on Sherman’s

Fraud Claim; His Position Is the Same as Any Other Tenant Seeking '
Rescission Based on Fraud

Nothing in the Rent Ordinance bars a tenant who unsucceésﬁllly opposed a landlord’
exemption petition from filing a petition challenging the resulting certlﬁcate of exemption on the
basis of fraud. Nor should such a tenant be held to a different standard than a tenant opposing a
landlord’s exemption petition. |

The Court of Appeal has determined that there are facts that were, or should have been
known by Mr. Sherman prior to the hearing in the landlord’s exemptl(_)n petition.* However, his
failure to have presented those facts at the earlier should net preclyude him from introducing
evidence of those facts into these proceedings. He should not be penalized in the present case,
whlch 1s a separate and new

The only way that Mr. Sherman’s position now has changed from the position he was in
at the hearing on the landlords’ exemption hearing is that, in this petition, he has had more time
to gather evidence. The results are obvious,

Sherman should not be barred frorn presentingv the live testimony of witness he located
prior to the initial exemption hearing (Mr. Abraham), or the witness he found prior to the Board
Hearing (I\/ir. Wiener). Nor should he be prevented from presenting other evidence he “could
have” or “should have” located earlier. That evidence has been nresented here to prove the

elements of fraud. He must show that the Michelsens’ representations that there was no prior

*A conclusion with which we vigorous disagree.
9
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residential use were false, and knowingly so.

Fraud is difﬁc.:ultAto prove where, as here, the underlying facts go back 42 years. At the
- remand hearing, Mr, Sherman testified about his attemi)ts to locate prior tenants in the brief time
between notice of the landlords’ petition and the exemption hearing. Private Investigator Michael
Joffe also testified about the difficulty of locati»ng and obtaining informétion from the 1970s and
1980s, even with his more sophisticated resources. It stands to reason that Mr. Shermén’s
petition claiming fraud in the issuance of a certificate of occupancy must, of necessity, have
included evidence frém the initial hearing and elsewhere. Sherman has put considerable effort
and resources into gathering this evidence.

The Michelsens have argued that permitting Sherman to proceed with his petition gives
him a “second bite of the apple.;’ But he has a d.iffl;erent task now. He must provevfraud, a
different theory, with a different legal 'standard. Moreover, he now bears the burden" of pfoof.

In all likelihood, the Michelsens prevailed at the Hearing level in their exemptioﬁ petition
because Mark Sherman, who was unrepresented, did not know how to effectively gather and
present his evidence. Since that time, he has obtained and presented the testimony of Mr.’
Abraham an(i Mr. Wiener, and other, compelling evidence qf prior residential use of the property
and of deception on the part of thé Michelsens.

In order to deprive Sherman of the benefit of the evidence he discovered at the prior
hearing, it would be necessary to ihf_er a clause into tﬁe Ordinance, limiting the evidence which a
party that participated in the initial exemption hearihg may proffer to prove fraud or mistake.
There is no rule and no reason that the brior éxemption case sﬁould impinge on his right to |
present all of the evidénce of fraud that he has gathered. Moreover, doing so would imposea -

form of collateral estoppel, which has been ruled out in these proceedings.

10
000116



Finally, treating Mr. Sherman differently from tenants who were not parties to a landlord
exemption petition could lead to inconsistent results. If Sherman were restricted in his
presentation of evidence, a future tenant petitioner, being unrestricted might prevail using
evidence which Mr. Sherman was prevented from using. |

According to the City, this case is the first RAP case determining the issue of fraud in

issuance of an exemption certificate. (Alameda County Superior Court RG16843773, Michelsen

v. City of Oakland, et al. Motion to Remand and Dismiss, at p. 5:28) The Ordinance and
Regulations provide few, if any, guidelines for tnese proceedings. All Mr Sherman wishes for is
to finally have the evidence he has obtained given full consideration. He should not be hindered
by restrictions which are not included in the Ordinance or regulations | |

IV. THE CERTIFICATE OF 'EXEMPTION WAS OBTAINED AS A

et o v g e —AtAL AN WAD VD IALNED AS A

-RESULT OF FRAUD ON THE PART OF DIANE AND HAROLD RUS
Mty o e LA AL PUANE AND HAROLD RUS
MICHELSEN _

A.  Basic Nature of the Fraud

To obtain a certificate of exemption as “new construction” the Michelsens needed to
prove: 1) That the rental unit received a certificate of occupancy on or after January 1, 1983; and
2) that the rental unit was either entirely newly constructed or created from space that was
formerly entirely non-residential. (OMC 8.2‘2.350.>I.2) They easily met the first element, as they
received a certificate of occupancy for the unit (and all other units in the bnilding) in February
1985. But they knew that Mark Sherman’s unit at 5823/5825 Occidental had been occupied asa
live work space continuously from at least 1976. They obtained the exemption certificate for
5823/5825 Occidental by knowingly presenting false testimony at the exemption hearing.

The elements of fraud are: ( 1) a misrepresentation (false representation,

concealment, or nondisclosure); (2) knowledge of falsity (or scienter); (3) intent to
defraud, i.e., to induce reliance; (4) justifiable reliance; and (5) resulting damage.

11 = 4
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Robinson Helicopter Co., Inc. v. Dana Corp. (2004) 34 Cal.4th 979, 990.

The evidence presented by the Michelsens fulfills the elements of fraud. Their claim of
lack of prior residential use waé comprised of “deliberate, intentional misref)resentations,
untruths, half truths and deceitfully misleading declarations...”v Beresh v. Sovereign Life Ins. Co.
92 Cal.App.3d 547 (1979). They madé these representations in o‘rder to induce the RAP to 'issu/ev a
certificate of exemption. The certificate was issued, to the detﬁment of Mr. Shennaﬁ and the
City. The details of hoW they effected this fraud will be set forth below after a brief discussijon of
intrinsic and extrinsic fraud. ‘

 B. Petitioner Need Not Show Extrinsic Fraud; He May Challenge the Certificate
of Exemption Based on Intrinsic Fraud

The Michelsens obtained their certificate of exemption for the rentél unit through direct
intentional misrepresentations made to the Hearing Officer. Now they claim that the type of fraud
they engaged in — intrinsic fraud — cannot be used to demonstrate ﬁaﬁd under. OMC
8.22.030.B.8.b. |

It is well settled in California law that a final judgment may be set aside if it is the result
of ektﬁnsic fraud, but not if it is the result of intrinsic fraud.’ Fraud is extrinsic if it prevents a
party from having a fair heariné, such as a falée promise of settlement, or purposely keéping the
party in ignorance of the suit. Intrinsic fraud, on the other hand, is fraud committed at the trial,
such as perjury or submitting forged documents. (Pico v. Cohn 91 Cél. 129, 133-134 (1891) ; 8

Witkin, Cal. Procedure (5" ed. 2008) Attack on Judgment in Trial Court, § 225, p. 832). Intrinsic

*We emphasize again, that Mr. Sherman is not attempting to vacate the judgment in the
exemption case. We are alleging a new claim, authorized by the Ordinance. Most of the case law
cited in this section involves requests that a Judgment be set aside based on equitable principles.
The Ordinance provisions permitting rescission provides a legal, rather than an equitable
foundation for the remedy.

12
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fraud consists of matters such as “deliberate, intentional misrepresentations, untruths, half truths
and deceitfully misleading declarations...” Beresh v, Sovereign Life Ins. Co. 92 Cal.App.3d 547
(1979).
If the aggrieved party had a reasonable opportunity to appear and litigate his claim
or defense, fraud occurring in the course of the proceeding is not a ground for
equitable relief. The theory is that these matters will ordinarily be exposed during
the trial by diligence of the party and his or her counsel, and that the occasional
unfortunate results of undiscovered perjury or other intrinsic fraud must be

endured in the interest of stability of final judgments.

(8 Witkin, Cal. Procedure (3d ed. 1985) Attack on Judgment in the Trial Court, §
221, p. 625) ' '

Despite this harsh and oﬁ-repedted view, it is nonetheless recognized that the terms

- “extrinsic” and “intrinsic” do not constitute an infallible formula for diséerning whether relief
from judgment may be ordered in a parf_icula;r case.’ .The pélicy éf finality of judgménts musf be
balanced agéinst the policy of relief from judément when a party was prevented a fajr opportunity
to present his case. In this case, the policy of preventing wrongﬁllly-obtained certificates of
exemption must also be given great weight.

The Ordinance specifically sets out a separate basis for challenging a previously issued
certificate, indicating that the City of Oakland gives greater weight fo retui'ning a wfongfully |
exempted dwelling to the City’s stock of affordable housing than it does to ehsui‘ing finality to a
decision awarding a permanent exemption. That policy is further demonstrated in the Board’s

stated position in its motion for remand that this case involves a different claim and different

SThere are certain types of cases in which the principle of stability of judgments often
does nof win out. They occur when the nature of the proceedings is such that a party could not
anticipate, or effectively counter, fraud arising in the hearing, See, e. g cases cited in Pour le
Bebe v. Guess?, Inc.112 Cal. App.4th at 829-830. And, while a motion to vacate for intrinsic
fraud will not lie, the same result may be achieved through a timely C.C.P. § 473 motion. Beresh,
supra, at p. 552 ' :

13 o
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issues than were determined in the landlord’s exemption petition.

A further reason for permitting Mr. Sherman to rescind the certificate based on intrinsic

. fraud is that the Ordinance does not provide the tools necessary for uncovering fraud prior to the

hearing.

Because parties to an arbitration are not afforded the full panoply of procedufal

rights available to civil litigants, lacking for example the right to an appeal or to

extensive discovery, courts generally take a more lenient approach when

examining intrinsic fraud in the context of a motion to vacate

an arbitration award.
Pour le Bebe v. Guess?, Inc.112 Cal.App.4th 810, 829 (2003).

6akland’s Ordinance does nof provide for “the full panoply of pfocedural righfs available
fo civil litigants.” There are no provisions in the Ordinance or in the Regulatioﬁs for discovery.
vthe parties submit documents seven days prior to the hearing. As abpracticallmatter, the
doéuments become available to Opposing parties a little léter. There is little that can be done in
the nature of investigation or impeachment in a few days time. Here, Sherman was permitted to
‘ViéW records compiled pursuant to a subpoena to the Registrar of Voters only on the day of the
hearing. Because the Ordinance does not provide for full discovery, which is crucial in civil
proceedings, evidence of intrinsic fraud should be permitted. |
In this case, the City’s policy of remedying the effects of wrongfully-obtained certificates

of exemption must also be accorded respect. Nothiﬁg in the Ordinance hints that its drafters
intended fraud to be Iimitéd' to extrinsic frau‘d. énly. The fact that the Ordinance speéiﬁcally »
provides for rescission of fraudulentlylor mistakenly issued certificates, indicates the importance
the City gives -to returning wrongfully-exempted dWellings to the City’s stock of affordable

housing. That policy is further demonstrated by the Board’s stated position thét Sherman is

entitled to a new hearing to prove his claim. The City does not regard this challenge as an attempt
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to re-litigate.

V. THE EXEMPTION HEARING: HOW THE MICHELSENS ,
FRAUDULENTLY OBTAINED THE CERTIFICATE OF EXEMPTION -

A, Evidence submitted at the Exemption Petition Hearing
In their exemption petition to the RAP the Michelsens claimed their property was “New

Construction” and attached the following history:
Section 3: Landlords Claim of Exempﬁon—'owners will prove the following
building history. '

Chronology of Building Use:

1975 Michelsen Purchases commercial building
1976 to 1983, 5823 Occidental rented as commercial space for custom
woodworking, :

- 1983 to early summer 1984, 5823 Occidental rented as commercial art studio.
Approx. June 1984 to October 1984, Michelsen converts 5825 Occidental to live-
work space. : , '

October, 1984 Building inspected by Housing Authority for Certificate of
Occupancy . ' '
November 1984 Building Permit Issued

February, 1985 Certificate of Occupancy issued.

Both owners signed the documentA under penalty of perjury.
At the hearing on February 24, 2014, Mr. Michelsen submitted his notarized declaration,
“sworn under penalty of perjury. He stated that “the property” remained vacant after his 1974‘
purchase until 1976. He described “the property” as running from Occidental Street 'oﬂ the east to
Grace Avenue on the west. He described it as “one large building with no bath faéilities, nor
vkitchen facilities. It had two toiléts for employees and a break room.” He stated 5825 Occ_idehtal
Street “was rented” as a custom woodworking studio from 1976 to 1982 and “wés rented” as a
custom art studio from 1983 to early summer 1984 . In 1984 he began the conversion of 5825
Occidental to live/work space and obtained a Certificate of Occupancy in February 1985. When

Mark Sherman rented the unit in September 1985, it was the first time “the premises were ever
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rented as a residence...”

(Declaration of Harold Rus Michelsen, Judicial Notice Requested) -

The declaration fails to state that, to the best of his knowledge, the Occ_idental unit had
never been used residentially. Nor does he méntion that he had resided in the property from 1976
until the early to mid-1980s. |

Diane Michelsen also testified at the exerhption hearing. She described her first view of
5825 Occidental in early summer 1982. She testified that it was dirty, with cobwebs hanging. It

had a toilet and two sinks. It had no kitchen facilities and ho shoWer. It was comprised of several

open contiguous spaces. Transcript of Exemption Hearing. (“Transc. 1), p 5:7-18, Judicial

Notice Requested..

Greg McConnell: - So, when you visited the property in 1982, summer of 1982, is it
' your belief that it had been or it could be rented as residential

property?

Dianne Michelsen: There was no kitchen facilities, there was no shower. It certainly
' did not appear that it could have been utilized as residential

property. ’

Transc. 1, p. 6:8-11

Asked whether she spoke to her _husband about whether the property had ever been used
- for residential purposes, she replied: “His answer was that the property had been rented as

commercial property. It was not residential prbpérty.” Transc.1, p. 6:12-17 She testified that it

was not used for residential purposes. Transc. 7:7-9.“on occasion to collect rent”. Transc. 1,v p.
7:4-6. She stated that that she began living in the building with Rus, at 927 Grace Avenue, in |
1983. Transc. 1, p. 11:3-5. |

Ms. Michelsen ﬁn‘ther testified that in 1984, “Rus divided the living space into three units

on Grace Avenue and he converted Occidental Street into a residence. He hung doors, he put in a
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kitchen, he raised the ﬂoor; he put in a heating system, he put in a tub. He made it so that it had
bedrooms, a kitchen, a living room, bathroom, cabinets, and studio vspaces”. The work was done
“right prior to the certificate of occupancy”. Transc. 1,p.7:14-8:1. She testitied that he did not
obtain permits for the work. He obtained permits—electricel, plumbing and general building
permits—in 1‘984 and 1985, after the work was nerformed. Transc. 1, p.8:2-21. The certificate of |
occupancy was issued in February 1985, Transc. 1. p. 9:9-11. :

The Mlchelsens submitted two applications for permlts—A November 1984 permlt to
sheet rock a room and repair a window at 5825 Ocmdental Street, and a February 1985 electrlcal
permit for work being done at 921 Grace Avenue. On examination, these applications do not
reﬂect the extent of the work described in Ms. Michelsen’s testimony. The building permit
_ application described the “present use” of the unit as “Apt.” (Exh. 11).

The owners submitted an email from Rachel Flynn, Director of Planning and Building
which stated:

Greg, According to our records, the Olympic Publishing Company Occupied 5825
Occidental Street starting in 1967. :

We don’t know how long they remained open, but by the mid- 80’s housing went
into the structure. Hope this helps. Rachel

- No testlmony was given about the circumstances surrounding the obtaining of this email.
The ema1l does not include or describe the documents Ms. Flynn relied upon to make the‘
determination that housing “went into” 5825 Occidental in the mid-1980s. From the documents
Ms. Flynn later provided to petitioner’s counsel, it appears that the only document wh1ch could
have suggested that the property was ﬁrst used residentially in the m1d—1980s was the certificate

"of occupancy. (Exh. 1). Of course, the existence of a certificate of occupancy demonstrates
nothing about when the property was actuatly first occupied as a residen_ce. |
i
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At the hearing, Sherman attempted to disprove the owners’ evidence by presenting
Charles Abraham’s unsworn on-line letter which stated:

To whom it may concern,

I, Charles Abraham lived at 5813 Occidental St. Oakland Ca. 94608 during the
years 1976, 1977, 1978.

The letter was signed and it provided Mr. Abraham’s currént résidence address. (Exh. 3).
Sherman testified that Rus had told him that a woodworker had lived in his rental unit in the late
1970s. Mr. Sherman é,lso submitted pages from the 1977 and 1978 Pacific Teléphone Company
résidential telephone directory listings for “Chuck Abraham” at 5823 Occidental Street. (Exh.
2). This was the extent of his evidentiary showing.

VL. THE REMAND HEARING .

A..  Remand Pre-Trial Héaiing

After the instant case was remanded back to the Board a Pretrial Hearing was held on
October 17, 2017 for the purpose of determining whether good causev existed for issuaﬁce of
subpoenas for witnesses and docunients.

At that hearing Mr. Sherman and Ms. Michelsen were sworn in as witnesses. (Pretrial
Hearing Transcript, p 6:3-9)

Petitionef requested that Rus Michelsen bé required to éppea.r and produce docu:ménts at
the remand hearing. One of the document demands was for all lease or rental agreements to rent
space in any part of the property at Oc‘cidental‘ Street and Grace Avenue, from the time of Rus
Michelsen’s purchased the property through 1985. Iﬁ discussing the demanci, Ms. Micheisen

testified:

Ms. Michelsen: I know on number 1, there are no — there was nothing in writing in terms
of leases or rental agreements for any space.
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Ms. Hess: For any spéce in the property?

Ms. Michelsen: For any space.

Ms Heés: ‘ ~ Prior to when?

Ms. Michelsen: Prior to ‘85

Ms. Hess: Prior to ‘85 there were no written agreem¢hts?

Ms. Michelsen: And I think, actually it was much later than that because there are certainly

nothing now. When I asked Rus about this, he said it was after
(unintelligible) _

Ms. Hess: And you resided in the property from — in ‘83'?

Ms. Michelsen: Yes.
" Ms. Hess: And when did you reside there?
Ms. Michelsen: ~to be specific. It was ‘83, ‘84. That’s what I remember. | don’t remember
anything else.
Ms. Hess: - Okay. But before the issuance of the certificate of occupancy, there were

no written leases?
Ms. Michelsen: Oh, no. Because it was commercial space; not residential space.

Hearing Officer: I understand that but I don’t — I know there might not have been
residential leases, but, generally speaking commercial leases...

Ms. Michelsen: - This was very informal. There was somebody that had a band at one point,
somebody that did woodworking, somebody who was an artist, somebody
who use to come into the space that Rus built and fixed bicycles. It was
really a dog-patchy kind of thing.

(Pretrial Hearing Transcript, p 28-30)
B. The Remand Hearing
The Michelsens consistently represented in their petition, in Mr. Michelsen’s declaration

- and in Diane Michelsen’s testimony, that 5823/5825 Occidental Street had only been rented

commercially prior to 1985, when Mr. Sherman took up residence. They continued to make these
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assertions at the remand hearing. However, their statements were contradicted by the testimony
of two witnesses who lived in the rental unit prior to 1985, The witnesses testimony at the
Remand Hearing describing their residential use of the property was detalled and convincing:

Charles Abraham testified that he lived and worked at.5 823/5825 Occidental Street from

1976 to 1983, approximately. He and Rus Michelsen knew eaéh other from graduate school,
One day they encountered each ofher by chance and had a conversation. Mr. Michelsen
- mentioned that he owned a renta] pf_operty. His sister and brother-in-lavx:f were living there, but
they were moving out, Mr. Abraham told ‘Mr. Michelsen that he and his wife were splitting ui)
and he.needed a place to live for himself and his minor daughter. After viewing the property,
Abraham moved in. He rented it as a live work space.
Rus Michelsen lived in the adjacent linit on vGrace Avenué. He knew that-
Abraham lived there. Some time after he moved in Rus helped him install double doors to
accommodate his woodworking equipment. There was furmture and personal belonglngs there
indicating Rus knew he was living there at the time. | |
When Abraham moved in, the space had a full kitchen, béthroom, bedrboms and studio
" space. Thé bathroom had an old claw foot tub with a mahégany surround. He built a loft for his
daughter in oné of the bedrooms when they were living there. |

\Diane Michelsen: As far as you know was Rus ever aware that there was a child living in the
place?” . » '

Char_les Abraham: Oh yes, Yes, |
Diane Michelsen: And how do you know that?
Charles Abraham Because he saw her. She was there.
There was a door between his rental unit and Rus Michelsen’s space, Wthh fronted on

: Grace Avenue. Abraham would call ahead if he had any reason to go into Rus’s space. Rus had a

20 |
000126



large studio with a walled in bedroom. He made metal sculptures in his studio space. Rus
occasionally came into Abraham’s space. Mr. Abraham identified a 1977 Oakland Telephone
Directory Listing for Chuck Abraham as a residential phonelisting for him. He didn’t have a
business listing.

Sometime after he moved in, Daniel, a student a Cal Berkeley moved in arrd rented a
room from him, |

Daniel Wiener testified that he had lived at 5823/5825 Oc01denta1 Street for
approxrmately one year. He was an artist attendlng school. He moved before his graduation in
1977. He was anxious to make sure he had a place to hve and to do his artwork after graduating
He knew that Mr. Abraham had shared custody of his daughter and was aware of Mr. Abraham S
daughter visiting, about once a week.

He, too, remembered the door between the Occidental Street unit and the landlord’s unit
on the other side of the building. He had to carry his trash through the landlord’s studio space to
use trash bins on Grace Avenue. side. He remembered that the owner had a large studio where he
made metal sculpture. The landlord had two large black dogs that Wiener was afraid of. The
landlord would “corral” them so he could go through to dump the trash.

Wiener stated that his understandlng was that the landlord knew he lived at 5823/5825
Occidental Street. When asked how he knew that the owner knew he lived there, he testified
| “Because it was completely and totall_y: obvious.” There were beds, rooms, a kitchen. He
remembers the landlord coming into the rental unit “very caeually.” | “Nothing was hidden.” He
was “pretty sure” that the other tenant introduced him to the owner as a subtenant livrng at the
* property. | |

He would not have rented at Occidental if he had not been able to live and work there. He
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idéntiﬁed his residential listing in the phoné book.

Ted Germann Declaration

Petitioner also submiﬁed a sworn declaration from Ted ‘Germaﬁn, another former resident
of 5823/5825 Occidental Street, (Exh. 6). Mr. Germann’s declaration stated that in the early
1980s he played in a band that played in the Bay area. Around 1984-1985, he resided with othér
band members at the 5823/5825 Occidental Street unit. He ‘;deﬁnitely” lived there prior to 1985.
The premises were fully equipt to live in with a kitchen, bathroom and regular trash collection.
He named four other band members who lived there with him, incl'udihg Tim Germann, Keith
Hinyard, Clinton MacKay and Chris Schroeder. He also rented a place with his wife up the street.
However, he resided at both addresses.

Private detective Mic;,hael Joffe, testified aboﬁt his attempts .to locate persons who lived at
the Occidental Street property prior to 1985. He located énd spoke to Ted Geﬁnarin. German said
he definitely lived at the property before 1985. He lived there for a couple of years. He'was a
member of a band that played around the Bay Aréa. They practiced a lot and had parties at the
Occidental property. He identified otﬁer ﬁembers who lived at the property: Band manager Clint
Mac:l\(ay, his brother Tim Germann, Keith Hinya_rd and Chris Schroeder, Ted Germaﬁn said he.
had another place on Occidental where he lived with his gir_lf'riénd. Mostly he lived at 5823/5825
Occidental Street. | \

Joffe also communicated with Clint MacKay, who sent him a “terse” email saying he was
not renting Occidental as a residential space, but a commercial space for a recording studio and |
discussing the zoning of the property. MacKay did not address the question “Did,yéu live there
and did the band members live there.” |

Joffe testified that Germann told him that he left the building in 1984 or 1985 and that he
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had resided there for about 2 years. He deﬁnitely lived in the building before February 1985.

Joffe also testified about the difficulty of locating people from the 1980s as digitalized |
records were spotty in that time period. The data bases he subscribes to are not available to the
general public.

Paralegal Sue Doyle described hef search for prior residential reeords for Occidental
Street. Using the Haines Criss-Cross directory, she found Rus Michelson, Chuck Abraham, and
Daniel Wiener listed as residents in the late 1970s and early to mid-1980s (Exh 7) She found Mr.
Michelsen and Mr. Abraham listed around the same dates in the Oakland Residential Telephone
D1rect0r1es She also found Daniel Wiener listed in the 1977 and 1978 Oakland Re51dent1al
Telephone Directories. (Exh. 8)’

Mark Sherman Testimony

Mr. Shenhan testified he moved into 5825/5 823 Occidental Street in September1985. He
identified photographs of the property, including a photo of ‘a loft that Rus Michelsen told him‘
that the woodworker who had lived there before him had built. (Exh. 4) He identiﬁed the lease
which he negotiated with Rus Michelsen (Exh 5) The_urﬁt was rented as a live work space. The
had studio space, where he manufactured perfumes and incense for his retail store. He is now
retired. The other half of the unit Was living' space, with carpeted rooms, a kitchen, a dishwasher
and a refrigerator and a stove. It had a bathroom. The bathtub still has a-m‘ahogany surround.

" Rus Michelsen never told Sherman that he was the first tenant to live in the unit. Nor did

he recall Rus telling him that he once lived in the building. Initial rent was $1,225.

M. Doyle also found documents from 1919 through 1928, demonstrating an early
history of residential use: Military Draft Registration cards, census records, and voter registration
records.. However fascmatmg as these original source documents are, they are far too remote in
time to have any bearing on fraud.
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Sherman testified that began imposing a series of rent after she took over managing the
property in about 2007. This lead to his petition based upon lack of notice of the RAP program.
back fo $1,225. The Michelsens then filed the exemption petition. |

Mr. Sherman provided extensive testimony about his search for former tenants at the
property to prepare for the hga.ring. Using the Haines Criss-Cross Directory hé found three names
of people living at 5825/5823—Rus Michelsen, Charles Abraham and Daniel Wiener. He began
looking, checking sources at the library, ancestry.com and other listing. He got a current phone
number and found Abraham who verified that he had lived at the propérty and agreed to sign a
letter. Mr. Sherman wrote the letter, listing orﬂy three years of Abraham’s tenancy.

He also éttempted to locate Wiener. He found some 20 to 50 listings for “Daniel Wienér”.
He aiso attempted to contact persons nafned Daniel Wieners listed in the Bay Area, without luck.
He attempted to get records fbr the property from PG&E. EBMUD, ﬁcﬁtious business record and _
othef sources, all before the exemption hearing. He googled a.ﬁd found many listings for Daniel
Wiener, but was unable to locate the Wiener who had lived on Occidental prior to the exemption
hearing. After the hearing, he finally located Wiener, an artist in New York. He sent an efnail and
Wiener responded. He was able to submit detailed declarations by Wiener and Abraham fof the
Appeal Hearing, but fhe Board rejected his plea for a remand.

Diane Michelsen was called by ﬁetitioner to testify. Hér testimony followed the script she
had set out in the exemption hearing: When she first saw the building in 1982, the Occidental
unit was uninhabitable: Filthy, no kitchen, nb stove or reﬁ‘igerator, just counter with a sink, an
old dirty toilet. Rus lived at 927 Grace AQenue and she rﬁoved in “probably” in early 1983. She
did not remember there being any door between 927 Grace and Occidental.

She testified that she and Mr. Michelsen moved to Orinda in late 1983 or early 1984.
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Rus converted all of the units at the property to residential use. He did the work himself,
He did not obtain permits. He obtained them later, prior to the certificate of occupancy.

There was a hot tub on the roof, when she moved in. They removed it when they moved
out.

She testified that during the time she lived at the property, there were no written rental

~agreements with any residential tenants. She was then shown Exhibit 10, an unlawful detainer

complaint filed September 24™, 1984. The attorney was Diane Michelsen, Rus Michelsen was the
plaintiff, and the defendants were three tenants of 929 Grace Avenue.
Leah Hess: Do you recognize this document?

Diane Michelsen: - I recognize my signature, but I don’t recognize the document... It
just was too long ago, I guess.

Leah Hess: Ok. Did you file this document?

Diane Michelsen: It says I did. So I must have.

Ms. Hess directed her to the third page; which showed that Rus Michelsen agreed to lease
“This dwelling” to the tenants for one year. Ms. Michelsen recognized the signature on the
document is Mr. Michelsen’s signature. The attached lease agréement said that a hot tub was
include in the rent. It also referenced a third bedroom which was to be built.

Ms. Michelsen testified that she did not remember whéther she lived at the property when
the lease was negotiated, did not remember whether Rus told her he had entered into a lease with
three people for 929 Grace, did not remember Whether he told her he rented any place
residentially prior to February 20, 1985.

Ms. Hess: - Was 929 rented residentially prior to - ‘

Diane Michelsen: 1 think I already told you I didn’t _remembver. I don’t even remember
exactly when we moved out.

Harold Rus Michelsen testified immediately after Diane Michelsen.
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He testified that he purchased the property in 1974 with the intent of living in it and as a
metal working studio. The entire building, except for Occidental was all one large open
continuous space. He constructed a foundry and a living space for himself on Grace Avenue. Part
of what is now Occidental was part of the open 4,000 square footage of the building. In 1976, he
put in the wall that Separates 921 and 927 Grace from Occidental. He put numbers on the Grace
Avenue unit, but many records still show 5825/5823 Occidental as the only address. He said he
never used the 5823 unit for any purpose. He said his residential telephone listing was at
Occidental Street, but he didn’t live there. He registered to vote. “I assume I ‘used Grace
Avenue,”

He said he and Ms. Michelsen moved out in 1985,

He rented the Occidental unit to Charles Abraham in 1976, Abraham left at the end of
1982, when over a dispute about a rent raise. Mr. Michelsen said it was about a rent raise and also
said that Abraham was engaging in criminal activity. He acknowledged that he had “no evidence”.
It became apparent that the dispute was about raising the rent. When Abraham told him he .
couldn’t raise the rent and threatened to bring in the City, he responded “...this was my space. I
paid for it. I get to do what I want...within aday or so. He served the 30-day notice soon after.

" Rus Michelsen also testified that he didn’t know there was rent control in the City until
Sherman filed his petition.

Michelsen testified that at the time Abraham moved in to Occidental,_ there was a “lunch
room” with a counter and sink but no refrigerator or stove, There were two toilets and a sink but
no bathtub He knew Abraham had a child but Wwas unaware of a child being in the rental unit. He
denied that the structure depicted in Exh 4 was a loft because it was built so close to the celhng

and had no ladder.
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He began converting 921 and 929 Grace to live work space in 1979 or1980. Prior to that
they had been artists’ studios. The conversion took about two years. He started converting
Occidental into a living unit around early 1983, when Abraham moved out,

None of the work was done with permits. He testlﬁed that he went to the ¢ ‘Housing
Authorlty and turned myself 1n...for doing this work without permit.” The Housing Authonty told
him what deficiencies to remedy, “which I did. Permits signed off. Then I got my certlﬁcate of
occupancy ”? Among the deficiencies » Was the need for a one-hour firewall at Occidental. When

‘questioned about that permit, which said the present use of the building was “APT”, he seid that
was the intended use, “not What it currently is.” (Exh. 1 D
When asked if, to the best of his knowledge nobody lived at either Grace or Occ1denta1
" until after F ebruary 20, 1985, he answered that to the best of his knowledge nobody lived at
Occidental. When asked if anyone had lived on the Grace Avenue side, Diane Mlchelsen stated:
“Ifail to see the relevance of this, |
The Hearing Officer explained that the question goes to the issue of fraud. “Are you saying

that no one lived on the Grace side other than you?”

Rus Michelsen: I’'m not saying that,

Leah Hess: When did someone else live on the Grace side?

Rus Michelsen: I’m not saying that either. T don’t think it’s relevant.

Hearing Officer: I believe it is relevant Mr. Michelsen. And so I need you to ansvifer the

question to the degree you can.

- Rus Michelsen: I think it’s time fore me to talk to my attorney.
Hearing Officer:  You don’t get to do that. You have to answer the question first,
Rus Michelsen. Well no, I'm not going to answer the question.
27
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Hearing Officer: I'mean I will draw a negative inference from your failure to answer the
' question. So you’ve got one more chance to answer the question.

Rus Michelsen: Nope.

Mr. Miéhelsen testified that he had two dogs from 1976 until the early eightigs. They were
great Danes, one “darkish” and the other brindle. He never met Daniel Wiener. No band ever
rented Occidental and he did not know a pérson named Clinton MacKay. He again refused to
an‘swerb questions about prior residential use of the Grace Avenue units; When asked if he ever
field a complaint for unlawful detainer, he responded, “Seem so. You. have a copy”.

On cross examination, he acknowledged that there was a door between 927 Grace and
Occidental. He said he kept it locked and would not have gpné into “their” space. He did not
know if “they” had a lock on “théir” side. He never told Mark Sherman that someone had lived in
- the rental unit before him.v He could not.recall the arrangements for trash or garbage service.

The Michelsens submitted a sworn declaration from Clinton MacKay, which basically said
the same‘information he had told the private investigator. He said he rented the apartment for a
sound studio. It did not say whether he had resided in the space. (Exh. 13)

Yoter Registration Records |

A subpoena to the Registrar of Vofers sought registration information for all units at
5 823/5825 Occidental and 921, 297, and 929 Gréce Avenue from 1977 through 1985. k.The
Registrar’s office provided a suminary of the information sought: It stated voter names, address
where registered, date ﬁrstl.registere‘d, ahd years subséquently listed on the rolls. ’The Hearing
Ofﬁcer assigned numbers to each registrant, to avoid diéclosure of names (other than Rus
MiCheIsen), in order to comply with an agreement between counsel for thé City and for the

counsel.
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The Hearing Officer is asked to take Judicial Notice of the fact that voters must provide
residence addresses, residence information is necessary to ascertain that voters are votihg in the
pr’oper geographical area (Precinct, city, county) Petitioner submrts for informational purposes a
blank current Registration Form obtained from the Registrar’s office.

It is likely the date first regrstered is a highly accurate record of resrdence on that date. -
The Registration list may be less so, as we do not know how the Registration list is updated.

The summary provided corresponds closely with the other evidence of residential use
provided at the hearing. |

Voters are shown to be registered at Occidental during the entire time period from 1975 |

'through 1984. The long-term tenancy shown for Voter 1, corresponds with evidence presented at

the heanng Of the five band members about whom there was testimony three were reglstered to
vote in the early 1980s. The Grace Avenue property also shows registered voters prior to issuance

of the certificate of occupancy.

VI THE EVIDENCE PROVES THE ELEMENTS OF FRAUD

A. | False Statement

In his initial declaration in the exemption hearing, Harold Rus Michelsen stated that, prior
to Mark Sherman’s occupancy, 5823/5825 Occidental had never been “rented as” residential
property It had been rented as commercial space to a woodworker and an artist. Diane Mlchelsen
test1ﬁed that, when she first viewed it in 1982, it lacked kitchen and bath and did not look
habitable. At one point in her she testified that “It was not residential property.”
(Trans. »1, p 7:7-9.) At that point, neither said that no one had resided in the unit prior to the
certificate of occupancy, that was the message they conveyed at the hearing.

The statement was false. Mr. Abraham and Mr. Wiener provided testimony that they
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resided in the property. Ted Germann provided a declaration to that effecf. The voter registration
rccords evidence eight persons registering to vote at the address between 1976 and 1984,

B. Scienter |

The statement was knoWingly false. Both Abraham and Wiener described the apartment as
a completely liveable space with full kitchen and bath, bedrooms. and work space. Abraham |
describes renting the unit from Rus, who rented it to him asa ﬁve-work space. Wiener, who
rented as a subtenant from Abraham, also described it as live-work space. Both testified that Mr.

| Michelsen knew they lived in the space. Both testified that there was a door between the units.
Both testified that Rus came into their unit through the door. “Very casually” according to
Wiener, “Nothing was hidden.”. Mr. Michelsen confirmed there was a door, but denied he
éntered. He denied that Wiener came through the door, bﬁt acknowledged he had large dark dogs
a’; the time. |

It is difficult to prove another’s state of mind. Ahd that it what we must do now, in order
to prove an element of fraud. But given the number of persons who resided in the unit over time,
and their proximity to the Mi_chelsen’v.s unit, it is hard to imagine the Michelsen dz'dn 't know they
lived af Occidental.

There is no réason to disbelieve petitioner’s witnesses. They were straightforward and they
have nothing to gain by testifying. Nor is Mr. Germain’s declaration to be disbelieved. Whether or
not one resided at a particular place for years is hardly somet}ﬁng 6ne would be mistaken about.
But to believe the Michelsens, one has to,disbelieve these three witnesses.

The owners testimony was often in contradiétion with ea;:h other and sometimes they
contradicted‘themselves. For example, at the remand hearing, Mr. Micflelsen denied that a band

rented at the property. Diane Michelsen volunteered, at the pretrial hearing that there was a band
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that rented at the property.

Diane Michelsen was revealed speaking a major untruth. She testified that neither the
Occidental unit nor Grace Street had written leases. Then she Was shown the unlawful detainer »
case that she, herself had filed. Subsequently Mr. Michelsen, refused repeatedvly to answer
questions about Grace Street, He continued testifying that to his knowledge, there had been no
residential tenants at 0001denta1 during his ownership. At this point,

The Michelsens’ testimony was characterized by their _
consciousness of guilt.

C. Intent to Induce Reliance/Justifiable Reliance

The goal of the Michelsens in making these knowing falsehoods was to induce the RAP to
issue a certificate of exemptlon In addition to thelr own statements, they submitted an email from
a city official, Rachel F lynn, Wthh they knew to be untrue. As a result, the Heanng Officer found o
in their favor and they obtained the certificate granting them permanent exemption from the Rent
Ordinance. |

D. Damage to Sherman‘

In this case, the falsehoods presented to the RAP were aimed at causing damage to Mr.
Sherman Once they obtained a permanent exemption, they could raise his rent. They have
attempted to do so. The false testimony was made to a third party but they were 1ntended to
impact Mr. Sherman The Rent Ordinance prov1des tenants with the nght to file a petition to stop
the fraud. |

In addition to losing the ongoing benefit of his award in the pet1t10n for failure to serve
RAP notices, Mr. Sherman has been paying rent at the level of the Mlchelsen s last rent raise prior

to his filing petition for failure to serve RAP notices This was the amount set by the Trial Court in
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his writ petition in Sherman v, Oakland Rent Board Alameda County Superior Court No. RG15-
785257.
VL. REMEDY SOUGHT
Mr. Micheisen Respectfully requests:
D) An order rescinding the Certificate of Exemptlon for 5825/5823 Ocmdental Street
Oakland, Cahforma

2) An order setting his rent back to §1 ,225 with reimbursement of amounts paid in
~excess of that amount during the past three years

Respectﬁllly Subn%

Leah Hess
Attorney for Petitioner
Mark Sherman

July 13,2018
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PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Tam over the age of eighteen (1 8) and not a party to the within case. My business address
is 610 16" Street, Suite M-8, Oakland CA 94612

On July 13,2018, I served a copy of the following document:

MARK SHERMAN’S REMAND HEARING BRIEF

By Flrst Class Ma1l to the following addresses:

Barbara Cohen Hearing Officer

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, 6" F loort

Oakland, CA 94612

Diane Michelsen & Harold Rus Mlchelsen

PO Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570

I declare under penalty of per_]ury under the laws of the State of Cal1forn1a that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Oakland, Cahforma

/sﬁSANnﬁYLE l
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ERRATA
Petitior.ler’sv counsel inadvertently omitted the following section (Conclusion) from the
Remand Heéring Brief. Petitioner requests its inclusion in the brief. It should be labeled section
VL

The section following it (“REMEDY SOUGHT?”) should be re-labeled section VII.

VI. CONCLUSION

Thoughout his ownership of the property, Harold Rus Michelsen has behaved as though
no laws applied to his use of it. As he testified, he informed Charles Abraham when Abraharh
objected to a rent raise, “this was my space. I get to do what I want” and he promptly served a
notice terminating Abraham’s tenancy.

In his testimony, Michelsen described extensive work performed at the property as early
as 1974, including building a foundry with a crucible, and creating his own living space. (927
Grace Street) Part of his construction work included building a wall separating Grace from
Occidental, apparently apportioning some of the Occidental space to Grace Street in the process.

At some point — Rus and Diane Michelsen claim it was in 1983 and 1984 (the dates vary)
—he converted 5823/5825 Occidental and 921 and 929 Grace Street into livable rental units.

Residential use of the Occidental unit, however, began at least eight years earlier.
Although Michelsen denies it, it scems obvious from Mr. Abraham’s testimony that Michelsen
had created a residential unifc with a fully functioning kitchen and bathroom at Occidental Stréet
by 1976.

All this work was done without permits. |
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According to Mr. Michelsen, he didn’t begin the convers.ion of Occidental and 921 and
927 Grace Street into residential units until about 1980. Then, in approximately1984, he “turned
himself in” to the “Housing Authority” for building without permits. Despite the improbability
that the scrutiny of the City was self-initiated, the Michelsen’s history of the property submitted
with their exemption petition states that the property was inspected by the “Housing Authority
for Certificate of Occupancy” in October 1984. (Approximately one month after the Michelsens
sued to evict tenants at 929 Grace Avenue.)

Rus Michelsen testified that, after inspection, the Housing Authority informed him of
deficiencies at the property which needed remedy. He remedied them and obtained a certificate
of occupancy for all units in the building on February 20, 1985.

Both of the Michelsens lived at tile property-Rus from 1976, Diane from 1982 or 1983.
Diane collected rent from the tenants. They moved out, according to Rus, in 1985, when they
purchased a home in Orinda. From 1976 until Sherman filed his petition challenging illegal rent
increases in December 2013, the Michelsens did not bother learning their responsibilities under
the rent ordinance. (According to Rus Michelsen, he was not aware of rent control until Sherman
filed his petition.)

The Michelsens have steadfastly maintained that the property was not used residentially
before issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. Their statements - from the filing of their
petition for exemption through all of the proceedings that followed — continued

To deny prior residential use.

The evidence presented at the remand hearing, however, demonstrates how unlikely it is

that Occidental’s residential use could have been unnoticed by the Michelsens. Solely from the

length of Abraham’s eight-year tenancy, this assertion is suspect. Abraham’s and Wiener’s
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testimony that Rus was well awére that they resided in the unit is far more credible that his claim
that the property was “rented as” commercial space. Their testimony about a door between the
units (not to mention Mr. Michelsen’s “darkish” dogs), the presence of the loft, and other details
add to the veracity of their testimony.

The Michelsens’ reaction to being confronted with direct evidence of prior residential use
reflect a was very telling. Diane Michelsen testified clearly and repeatedly that there had been no
prior residential use of the property and no written leases. Confronted with the unlawful detainer
she ﬁad filed against the residents of 929 Grace rﬁonths before issuance of the certificate of
occupancy she testified that she “must have” filed the pleading, because her signature was on it.
She also acknowledged Mr. Michelsen’s signature on the complaint and the attached residential
lease. Asked further questions about the lease, she answered with a sudden inability to remember
things, including whether Rus Michelsen had told her he rented any place residentially prior to
February 20, 1985.

- Rus Michelsen responded to this development by refusing to answer any questions about
whether anyone had resided in the Grace Avenue side of the building prior to February 20, 1985.
He stated he would answer only with respect to the Occidental side. He maintained that the Grace
Avenue questions were irrelevant. He continued to refuse to answer even after the Hearing
Office informed him she would draw a negative inference from his silence.

The Michelsen’s responses after being confronted with the unlawful detainer reveal their
willingness to make deliberately false statements about “the property” in order to obtain a
certificate of exemption. Since Mr. Michelsen rented 929 Grace to résidents prior to issuance of
the certificate of occupancy, what reason is there to believe that he did not do the same with other

units, including Occidental Street?
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Diane Michelsen lived at the property and collected rent from tenants from 1982 or 1983
onward. She filed an eviction action against the tenants of one rental unit. How likely is it that
she could have been ignorant of residential tenants in the Occidental unit?

Rus.Michelsen is hardly the first landlord to believe that designating a space as
commercial would immunize him from laws protecting tenants, such as the right to habitable
premises and to rent control. Nor do his evasive statements that the premises were “rented as”
commercial space render this misrepresentation less fraudulent. The statements were intended to
mislead. They did mislead. And they wrongfully removed a property from Oakland’s stock of
affordable housing. |

For these reasons, Mark Sherman requests that the Heaﬁng Office find that the certificate
of exemption for 5825/5823 Occidental Stréet, Oakland, California 94608, was issued as a result

of fraud.

, 000143



- .

. PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAIL
I am over the age of eighteen (18) and not a party to the within case. My business address
is 610 16™ Street, Suite M-8, Oakland, CA 94612.
On July 16, 2018, I served a copy of the following documents:

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF PETITIONER’S REMAND
HEARING BRIEF '

ERRATA TO PETITIONER’S REMAND HEARING BRIEF
By First Class Mail to the following addresses:

Diane Michelsen & Harold Rus Michelsen
PO Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570

Jamilla Jefferson

City Attorneys Office

One Frank H Ogawa Plaza, 6™ Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

2
.
-

/SUSAN DOYLE

foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Oakland, California on July 16, &l
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Leah Hess, SB No. 126800
Attorney at Law

610 16" Street, M-8
Oakland, CA 94612

Tel. 510.451.3103
leahhess2@sbcglobal.net

Attorney for Petitioner

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program

CASE NUMBER: T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 5823/5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

PARTIES: Mark Sherman, Tenant
Diane and Rus Michelsen, Owners

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF PETITIONER
MARK SHERMAN’S REMAND HEARING BRIEF

TO RESPONDENTS DIANE MICHELSEN AND HAROLD RUS MICHELSEN AND
THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD: | |

This Request is submitted in support of Petitioner Mark Sherman’s Remand Hearing
Brief, filed herewith. | |

Petitioner Mark Sherman hereby requests that the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment
Program take judicial notice of the following documents: ’

1. Declaration of Harold Rus Michelsen, dated February 11,2014, submitted in support of |
landlords’ Petition in the case of Michelsen vs. Sherman, Case No: L13-0054. A trué and correct
copy is attaqhed héreto as EXHIBIT A.

2. Transcript of Exemption Hearing on February 24, 2014 in the case of Michelsen vs.
Sherman, Case No: 1.13-0054. A frue and correct copy is attached hereto as EXHIBIT B.

3. Transcript of Pre-Trial Héaring on October 17, 2017 in the above-entitled case. A true
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~ and correct copy is attached hereto as EXHIBIT C.

4. Alameda County Voter Registration Application from County of Alameda Registrar of

Voters. A true and correct copy is attached hereto as EXHIBIT D.

LEAHHESS
Attorney for Petitioner

Dated: July 13, 2018
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PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Iam over the age of eighteen (18) and not a party to the within case. My busmess address

is 610 16“‘ Street Sulte M-8, Oakland CA 94612,

On July 16, 2018, I served a copy of the following documents:

REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE IN SUPPORT OF PETITIONER’S REMAND
HEARING BRIEF )

ERRATA TO PETITIONER’S REMAND HEARING BRIEF
By First Class Mail to the following addresses:

Diane Michelsen & Harold Rus Michelsen
PO Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570

Jamilla Jefferson

City Attorneys Office

One Frank H Ogawa Plaza, 6" Floor
Oakland, CA 94612

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

forggoing‘ is true and correct, Executed in Oakland, California on J 72018.

T T T P Tt ooy v e

“SUSAN DOYLE
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Declaration of Hémld Rus Michelsen

1. lam 72years old and unable to travel for this hearing due to health Issues which have caused

my hospitalization over the past yéar. My homeisin Kauai, Hawail. The follqwing ismy
testimony. - :

2. 1 purchased the commerclal building at 5825 Occldental Street, Oakland CA 94608 in Decamber,
1874.  Atthe time the property was vacant and remained that way until rented In 1976. .

3. This property had previously been used as a }m’nt shop. It ran from Occidental to theEastto
Grace to the West. It was one large bullding with no bath facilities, nor kitchen Tacilitles, Ithad
two toilets for employees and 3 breakroom. '

)

4. From 1976 to 1982, 5825.0ccidenta! was rented asa custom woodworking studio.
5. From 1983 to early summer 1§84, 5825 Occldental was rented as a custom art studlo.

" 6. In 1984, 1began the conversion of 5825 Occidental to live/work space. In February, 1985, the
Certificate of Occipancy was issued. The premises were rented to Mark Sherman in September
of 1985. That was the first timie the premises were ever rented as a residence and ha has
continued as a tenant ever since. '

1 declare this to-be true and correct, to the best of belief and recallection, under penalty of
perjury under the laws of the State of California. S '

/

—-yl f!‘?‘ | * signed: ’M]Z-W«W\

Marold Rus Michelsen'

emckiel

AR 42%\
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‘Doc. Descnpnon Declaml'a :

— W Fax: #1 {510) 834-3515 Page 2 of 3 1720141084 -

§0x
|

INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF HAWAH )
" COUNTY OF KAUAI )

to me known 1o be the pEISOQMebCHde inand who executed the
fq ecomg instrument, and acknowledged that executed the same as
. sfree act and deed. ' '

M'y.Commission Exﬁims: ‘ (ﬁl% aé,'a?oﬂ

STATE OF HAWAII N OTARY CERTIFICATION

Date of Document: __ (] 4 Pagde:
Date of Notanzatxon ' ‘

ELIZAKOBAYAst o LS
Fifth Judicial Circuit EEE

'Notary Commission No. 13-254

AR 436}95'
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DisC1

TECHNICAL & BUSINESS TRANSLATORS AND INTERPRETERS

Transcription Sheet |

Case Number: [ N/A

Reference:

DISCI

Date of recorded event: | 2/24/2014

38 minutes 17 seconds '
- | TRANSCRIBE ENTIRE FILE

Deschiption:

Hearing 2/24/2014

T "Parficipantsy;

Fen Y Mark Sherman - Tenant

7| Diane Michelson - Owner

| Gregory McConnell - Owner Representative -

Linda Moroz - Hearing Officer

‘Legend:
[]

[1] or [u]]
[PH]
[sic]

Brackets are used to Separate the transcriber’'s
remarks from the original source words spoken.

Unidentified, unintelligible diction,

Phonetic trénscf:riptidn.

. The preceding Is written intentionally or is copled

verbatim ffom Its orlginal source, even if it appears
to be a mistake. .

Words pfonounced in Spanish héve been 'trahélated into English
as indicated by italics. ' S -
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DISC]

1 Linda Moroz: So good morning. We are on the record, in the case number

2 1130054, Michelson v. Sherman, And today’s date Is Monday, February 24 and it's

~ about 10:07 a.m. and we are beginning this hearing today. My name is Linda Moroz

il it : f
w

and | am a hearing officer wrth the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program, and ! wrll

be conducting this hearing today Itis an administrative heanng, not a courtroom. So it
is less formal than the courtroom, but we will follow all the laws of the state of California
and the City of Oakland rent ordinance. Also the rules of evrdence are more Irberal here

than in the courtroom, but | will consider all relevant evidence as | see—and weigh it as

-
© @ N o o a

I see fit. | have reviewed the fi le and might have questions to ask both parties as we
10 proceed. But at this week hean’ng, one party will go first and the other party will have an

11 opportunity to cross-examme and then we'll swrtch Fmally at the end each of you will

12 have a chance to sum up and present your view of what the evidence showed, and why

AR 397

f

t) ' 13 | should rulei m a particular way. As you see, this hearing is bemg recorded on a digital

J 14 voice recorder, so | ask that all testrmony be said out loud To] everythrng Is captured. |
15  will not be making a decrsron today. but will be sending a written decrsron to all parties

] 16  within 30 days of this heanng Hopefully soaner, but within 30 days. At thls hearing, |

J 17 would like to check—~yeah at this point | would fike to check the statement of ’
18  appeéarances. Sowe .have .Ms. Diane Mrch.elson‘ as the owner.

) 19 Diane Miohelson: Michelson.

; go | t;tnda Moroz: I'm sorry, Michelson, Okay. And then we have Mr, Gregory

J 21 McConnell, ' R

] 22 Gregory McConnell: Correct.

]

]

|
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Linda Moroz: As the owner representative. And then we have Mr, Mark

: Shermah the tenant. Okay. Thank you. And finally all testlmony is required to be

under oath, so please raise your right hand. Do you swear or affirm under penalty of
perjury that all testimony you give will be the truth?

Mark Sherman: Yes, '

Diane Michelson: Yes.

Linda Moroz: Okay, thank you. And now we can begin. | of course reviewed the -

il prior to thls heanng And | know that-that this is the owner’ 's petition for exemptlon A

to have the property exempt from the rent adjustment ordmance based on the new
constructxon orbased on the fact that the certificate of occupancy was issued after
1983, instead. The gist of it—.
/ Gregory McConnell: Well it's twofold,

Linda Moroz; Okay. '

Gregory McConnell; That was—that was converted from property. That was
commercial to residential, and—. | . .

Linda Moroz: Right, So the exemptlon is essentlally the new constructlon

Gregory McConnell: Correct.

Linda Moroz; Okay. So—and like | said, Ive reviewed the file. I've received a
declaration under penalty of perjury I believe, that- by Mr. Harold Russ Michelson.

Diane chhelson. Yes.

Linda Moroz: And that would be—.

Diane Michelson: My Husband.

Linda Moroz: Your husband, okay.

-3-
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DisCt
1 Gregory McConnell: And how did that happen?
[] 2 Diane Michelson? Russ énd_l were going out. We were fiancée'd .[sic]. We were
ﬁ 3 looking at our assets at that time. The property was vaéantAa_nd we téll;ed about rénting
’ 4 itagain. And—.
ﬁ 5 Gfegory McConnell: And could yoti describe the appearance—this was in 19—
” 6 apbroximately when in 1982 was this?

7 Diane Michelson: It was probably early summer, 1982.

U—. 8 Gregory McConnell: And would you describe the appearance of the unit at that
r. 9 time? - |
J 10 . Diane Michelson: Yeah. It was dirty. lt~ had cobwebs—.

[ SRR Y
[—
-—
-—

- Gregory McConnell: Could you speak up a bit?

g 12 Diane Michelson: Yeah, thank you. It was dirty. It had cobwebs hanging, it had
J : 13 sawdust. Ithad a t0|let and a smk and another sink as well. It did not have kitchen
.'J 14 facilities, it did not have a shower.

15 Linda Moroz: And it was like a one 6pen space, or what?

—
(=]

Diane Michelson; No, it was several open spaces. And then there were some
17  partitions where the property had been formerly used as a print shop. And those were
18 like seml-busmess offices, but they were all contlguous

19 Gregory McConnell: And did we learn the name—the name of the print shop that
You just mentioned in doing your mvestlgatlons of the property—.

Dlane Michelson: Yes we did, in doing the mvestlgatlon with the city.

N.N
- O

22 Gregory McConnell: And who was that?
23 Diane Michelson: We submitied an email,
‘ AR 400
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Linda Moroz: 1 saw that, yeah,

Gregory McConnel!: There was an email from the drrector of the building
department . |

Linda Moroz: Building department | saw that.

Gregory McConnell: Would—if | say [Ul] Press Publrshrng Company would that
refresh your recollectron? |

Diane Michelson' Yes ,

Gregory McConnell: So when you vnsited the property in 1982, summer of 1982
is it your belief that it had been or it could be rented as residential property?

Drane Mrchelson There was no Kitchen facilities, there was no shower it

certatnly drd not appear that it could have been utilized as residential property.

_ Gregory McConnell:” Alright. And did you speak to your husband about whether
or not this property had ever been utilized as residential property?
Diane Michelson: | did.
Gregory McConnell: And his ansWer? What did he ‘say to you?
Diane Michelson: His answer was that the property had been rented as |
commercial property It was not residential property '

Gregory McConnell Alright. And so that was In 1982 And was the property

. rented in 19837

Diane Michelson: The property was rented in 1983. -
Gregory McConnell: And to whom was it rented?

Dlane Michelson: lt was rented to an artist. | believe he was from Boston and

he did targe paintings.

AR 401
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- Gregory McConnell: Were you involved at all in the manégemgnt of the pfoperty -
in 19837 o
Diane Michelson: Yes, | was. | |
Gregory McConnell: Alright. Did you visit the property to collect rent or take—or
review the property, what have you—.. | |
Diane Michelson: | did visit the proper’q'/ on occasion to collect rent.

Grégory McConnell: So in '83 when it was rented, was it used at all for

. residential purposes?

Diane Michelson: It was not.

Gregory McConnell: And that contiﬁued until 19847

Diane Michelson: Yes. The artist moved out. | th.ink he went back fo Boston.
And around that time, Russ and | had talked about converting the property to
residential. .And that's basically what happened at that point.

Gregory McConnell: What happened in 84? Tell us what you did, or what Russ
did? |

Diane Michelson: Okay, Russ—.

Gregory McConne!l:v Well maybe what you did, that could be misconstrued.

Diané Michelson: Yeah, but-but reaily Russ did it. Rusé divided the living space
into three units on Grace Street and he co‘nverted Occidental Street into a residence.
He hung doors, he putin a kitchen, he raised t}he ﬂoq'(, he put in a heating system, he

put in atub. He made It so it ha_d bedrodms, a kitchen, a living room, bathroom,

cabinets, and studio spaces. - .

Linda Moroz: 'Okay, and this was in 19847

-7
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' Diane Michelson: - Yes.

DISC1.

Diane Michelson: It was, it was right prior-to the certificate of occupancy.

Gregory McConnell: Did he ask for—when he started the work, did he do the

work with permits?

Diane Miche{son: He did not dd the work with permits. |

.Gregory; McConnell: And did he subsequéntly ask for and receive permits?.
Diane Michelson: He did. | |

Gregory McConnell; For electrical and plumbing?

Diane Michglson: Yes, yes. R

Gregory McConnell: And did you at my request, review the bui_lciing files at the

City of Oakland to attempt reclaim all of the permits?

Dfane Michelson: Yes.
Gregory McConnell: And were you able to find any permits?
Diane Michelson: Yes. There was an electrical permit.

Gregory McConnell: Okay, and the electrical—let's see. So there was a—was

there an electrical permit? Is that the one that is attached, that's identified as D350397

Diane Michelson: Yes.

Gregory McConnell: And that was dated in 857

H

Gregbry McConnell: Right.' And there was a general bullding permit that was

requested in '84. Is fhat correct?

Diane Michelson: Yes. That is correct.

AR 403
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Gregory McConnell: Okay. And that permit indicates that in '‘84—the present
use of the building was apartment. Now was it actually bemg used as an apartment
before this work was done?

Diane Mrchelson: No.

Gregory McConnell: So that was the way it-had been designed.

Diane Michelson: That's correct,

Gregory McConnell: In the layout.

Diane Michelson: Yes. |

Gregory McConnell So did you request and recelve in February of 1985, a
certrt' cate of occupancy?

Diane Michelson; Yes. _

. Gregory McConnel; Alnght Now you also provrded to me, and we submltted to
the rent board did we nct a grant deed showing that in fact you did become the owner
on May 20™ 19857

Diane Michelson: Yes. _

Gregory McConnel: Now in-1974, did. your husband inquire about the ability to
rent this property asa sculpture facility, as a place where custom manufacturmg

sculptures would be permitted? ' |

Diane Michelson: He inquired zoning; because he was wanting—he was a
sculptor himself. And he wanted to be able to do his work in the buildi_ng.

Gregory McConnell; So at that time, he was told. that the property, that the zone, ?

was R50 medium density residential zone, is that correct?

AR 404
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Linda Moroz: Evidence, yes. And they will be entered into evidence. So do you

have any questions?

Mark Sherman: Yeah. Diane, when did you live in the—in the building? What'

year?

Diane Michelson: '83.

Mark Sherman: And not before?

~Diane Michelson: Not before. No, | had a house in the city.

Mark Sherman: In QOakland? |

Diane Michelson: No, in the city.

Mark Sherman: Oh. And where did Russ live?

Diane Michelson: Russ‘ lived on 929 Grace.

Mark Sherman: 9297 |

Diaﬁe Michelson: 927, e*cusé me; sbrry.

Mark Sherman: And he lived there from the time he bought the buildinQ to—.

Diane Michelson: I'm not positive as to whether he would live there from the time |

he bought the building, but he lived there probably in the Iate 70s at least, yeah,

Mark Sherman: Late 70s, okay.
Diane Michelson: But that was only on 927 Grace.
Linda Moroz:. So one building was livable, but the others were not?

Mark Sherman: Sections.

Linda Moroz: Seétions of the property.

Diane Michelson: Yes, it had different addresses.
Linda Moroz: Oh, okay. Right, I noticed that, okay.
-11-
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Customer Name; A@_QHLQE_LQDQL@Q&_Q____

Case Name and Number: _Hearing 2/24/2014[ 6057 Disc 1] -

CERTIFICATION OF TRANSCRIPT
l,  JennaB.Sol : do hereby certify:

That | frequently transcribe audio and video recordings and have worked in the field for
5 years, and | am qualified to transcribe said recordings.

That Accent on Languages provided the attached recordings pertaining to the above-
referenced case. This transcript is from one of those recordings. ,

That per the request of the above mentioned firm, | listened to and transcribed the contents
of the recording to the best of my ability, and to the best of my knowledge and skill, this
transcript constitutes a full, true, and correct report of the recording.

That | am a disinterested person to the said action. |

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregbing is
true and-correct and that this declaration was executed in Eugene, Oregon, by:

Q on  8/202015
Signature ! A Date

AR 417
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HOUSING & CCMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

MARK SHERMAN, |
Petitioner, _
vs. ~ NO. T16~0258
Defendants.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF CD OF PROCEEDINGS OF
RENT ADJUSTMENT PRETRIAI, HEARING

OCTOBER 17, 2017

Produced by: GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR #1542
Certified Shorthand Reporter

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR #1542
748 Pinedale Court, Hayward, CA. 94544
(510)_886—335 5
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RENT ADJUSTMENT PRETRIAI, HEARING 10/17/17
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APPEARANCES :
BEFORE:

Barbara Cohen

Hearing Officer

Hou81ng & Community Development Dept.
Oaklan Callfornla 94612

FOR THE PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN, TENANT:

Leah Hess

Attorney at ILaw

1736 Franklin Street, 10th Floor
Oakland, California 94612

'FOR THE DEFENDANTS RUSSELL & DIANE MICHELSEN, OWNERS :

Diane Michelsen

GECRGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 000‘16§
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RENT ADJUSTMENT PRETRIAL HEARING 10/17/17

that there's going to be —- yeah, there will be testimony.
SO testimony is given under oath. . '

So, Mr. Sherman and Ms. Michelsen, raise your

right hand.

MARK SHERMAN and DIANE MICHELSEN,
being first dﬁly sworn by the Hearing Officer to tell the

‘truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,

testifies as follows:

HEARING OFFICER:. Okay. Thank you.

Starting from my right, please state your:name
for the record.

NB. MICHELSEN: Yes. My name is Diane Nﬁéhelsen.

MR. SHERMAN: Mark.Sherman.

MS. HESS: ILeah Hess. |

HEARING OFFICER: All right.

MS. MICHELSEN: How would you like to be
addressed?

HEARTNG OFFICER: Ms. Cohen is fine.

MS. MICHELSEN: Ms. Cohen, I have a statement T
would like to read. Also, my uhderstanding was that the
puréose of this hearing was not to determine just about
subpoenas, but was to determine what procedures total we

were going to use and that was that. So if I may read my

GECRGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 000164
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declaration from Susan Grull, and I do not know why on |
number 3 she's attached copies of the records from the
city of Berkeley because it is not in the city of
Berkeley, it is in the city of Oakland. 2And I don't
understand what 2240 Virginia Street, Berkeley, refers to
in this issue.

HEARING OFFICER: What I understand they're doing
is they're referring to a procedure in a diffefént
jurisdiction as to the issue of whether voter registration
of records are relevant to a proceeding. It has nothing
to do with Virginia Street, it has nothing to do with
that. It is simply a legal argument that, "Look, they do
this in Berkeley so we should do it, too."

MS. MICHELSEN: T see.

HEARTNG OFFICER: Which is,néither here or there
for me. The issue is -- the only question is: Is it
relevant that-anybody was registered to vote at these
addresses? . , |

- And I would have to agree that that is a relevant
queStion. So ignore the whole thing about Berkeley. It
has nothing tovdb with anything that's going on here.

Am T right, that that was the whole purpose of
that? | _

MS. HESS: Yes. Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: So it doesn't have anything to

GECRGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 - 23
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RENT ADJUSTMENT PRETRIAL HEARING 10/17/17

do with that. It has;something to do with whether —- is
it relevant if somebody claimed that as their Voting —— as
their place to vote because, as I understand the argument
would be, a voting —— when you regiéter to vote, you say
what your residence address is. I would have to see a
voting registration card for that to be sure that that's
true. But I'm pretty sure that that's true, that you're
asked for your residence. So they're looking for was
anybody registered to vote at this address. That's the
subpoena they're seeking.

MS. MICHELSEN: I would object.

HEARING OFFICER: On what grounds?

MS. MICHELSEN: On the grounds it has already
been adjudicated when the premises and what the premises
had been utilized for. ,

| HEARING OFFICER: Okay. The next one, Rus

Michelsen. Is this a declaration —-— Qh,'it's a subpoena

and a subpoena duces tecum for documents and —-—

MS. HESS: Basically, what I was hoping tb ask
for whether he could be served as we do in a court of law
with a demand that he appear instead of a subpoena because
he;s a party. ; |

HEARTNG OEFICER: We do not have that. You do
not have to —-— we do not have that procedure. You do not

have to appear here as a party. You can send somebody to

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 - 24
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RENT ADJUSTMENT PRETRIAL HEARING 10/17/17

MS. MICHELSEN: As compared to the ones that sag,

~those land lines that work (unintelligible).

HEARING OFFICER: Exactly. Exactly.

MS. MICHELSEN: Yeah. Yeah.

HEARTING OFFICER: So if there is a subpoena
issued for him, hopefully, if he cannot appear in person,
he will appear by phone, whether by video or phone.
Between the two of you, you can discuss whether that needs
to be video or whether it can just be by phone.

But the documents, the first in the list is lease
agreements for the space.

Ms. Michelsen, when did you and Mr. Michelsen get

- married?

MS. MICHELSEN: In '82. _
. HFARING OFFICER: '82. So do you know whether
these documents are in existence, number 17 |
| MS. MICHELSEN: I know on number 1, there are no

—— there was nothing in writing in terms of leases or
rental agreements for any space. |
| . HESS: For any space in the property?
. MICHELSEN: For any,space.
. HESS: Prior to when?
MICHELSEN: Prior to '85.

HESS: Prior to 85 there were no written

agreements?

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 28
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MS. MICHELSEN; And T think, actually, it was
much later than that because there are certainly nothing
now. When I asked Rus about this; ﬁé eaid it was after
(unintelligible) .

MS. HESS: And you resided at the property
from —- in '83?

MS. MICHELSEN: Yes.

MS. HESS: And when did you reside there?

MS. MICHELSEN: '83 —— well, the property being

927 Grace -
MS. HESS: Okay.
MS. MICHELSEN: -—— to be specific. It was '83,

'84. That's what I remember. I don't remember anything

else.
MS. HESS: 4Okay. But before the issuance of the

certificate of occupancy, there were no written leases?

MS. MICHEISEN: O©h, no. Because it was
commercial space; not residential space; ,

HFARING OFFICER: I understand that, but I don't
—— I know there might not have been residential leases,
but, generally speaking, commercial leases ...

MS. MICHELSEN: This was very 1nformal There
was somebody that had a band at one point, semebody that
did woodworking, somebody who was an artist, somebody who

use to come into the space that Rus built and fixed -

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 - 29
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bicycles. It was really a dog-patchy kind of space. So
it was very informal. It was a handshake kind of thing.
HEARTING OFFICER: All right. But whether or

not —— I mean, I can still —— I may'make.a finding of good

cause for those documents, and then you can indicate that
there were none. |

M5. MICHELSEN: None. Yeah.

HEARING OFFICER: And then — -

MS. HESS: For those documents, is there a
possibility —- it will save a great deal of time in the _
pending hearing —- is there a possibility that those
documents could be produced ten days before the hearing?

HEARING OFFICER: The documents that
Ms. Michelsen just determined don't exist?

MS. HESS: Yes. If any do exist.

HEARTNG OFFICER: Yes. When you get the good

cause finding, you will then issue a subpoena and your

subpoena will —-— it looks like all subpoenas, they will
say the time for production. And that does not have to
be at the hearing. In fact, yoﬁ have to set it before the
hearing because any documents you want to produce at the
hearing has to be produced to us seven days before the
hearing.

MS. HESS: Okay. Great. .

HEARING OFFICER: So. But this is all causing me

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 30
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA )

I, GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, do hereby certify:

That I am a Certified Shorthand Reporter, duly
qualified, licensed and acting in the State of Califernia;

That the foregoing pages numbered 1 through 55

constitute a true and complete transcription of the'CD

-recorded of the Rent Adjustment Pretrial Hearlng set forth

on the date of October 17, 2017

DATED: _- ' %4427_\ //4/ » 2018.

L,
GEORGIAZA. WRIGHT /
Certified Shorthand Reporter No. 1542

GEORGIA A. WRIGHT, CSR (510) 886-3352 000570
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Solicitud de Inscripcién/Preinseripcion de Votante de California |

1

000172




B

California Voter Registration/Pre-Registration Application
Solicitud de Inscripcion/Preinscripcién de Votante de California

ALAMEDA COUNTY

Print clearly using blue or black ink. Use this form if you: (1) are a new voter, {2) are pre-regmtenng to vate, (3) have changed
your name, {4) have moved and need to update your voter registration address, or {5) want to change your political party preference.

You can also register to vote onfine at RegisterfoVote.ca.gov. — Escriba en Jetra de molde usando tinta azul o negra. Use este formulario si:

(1) es votante nuevo; (2) se estd preinscribiendo para votar; (3) tambid de nombre; (4) se mudé y tiena que actualizgr ¢l domicilio en su
inscripcion de votante: o (5) quiere cambiar su preferencia-de partido politico, También puede inscribirse en linea en RegisterToVote.ca.gov.

i.am a US. citizen and resident of Califomia oww.eomecveeerecee [ Yes-St N0 If "Ho,” you CANNDT register. — Si “No™,
Soy civdadano de EEUU. y residente de California NO PUEDE inscribirse para votar.

g:::;ins?:ut;uns : ::: }2 g; ;[7'1:"; VT:::: :,l :;:T:gilie?os te stad g i:::g: g :g > Only chaose one. -- Efija solo una.—l
Tengo 16 o 17 afios de edad y quiero prein ’
S l [ M. —-Sr. O Ms.—Sra. [ Mrs. - Sra. O Miss — Srta. | (optional) - (optativo) .
ggu[:'ul;ﬁ_y}:;: 2 First — Primer nombre ) Middle ~ Segundo nombre
Last {including suffix. such as Jr., St., ll}) — Apellido: {con sufijo, come Jr, Sr, Hi)
{g::}:gg:g;’:l Date of birth ~ Fecha de nacimiento (mes/dia/afio) _

If you do not have a CA driver -

license or CA ID card, list the -

last 4 numbers of your Social

Security Number (SSN), if you
have one. — Si no tiere una
licencia de manejar de CA o
tarjeta de identidad de CA.

ponga las Gltimas 4 cifras de

su nimero del Seguro Social
(SSN), si tiene uno.

M¥ D0 YYYTY
_ Caiifornia driver license or ID card # — Nam. de licencia de manejar o SSN (last 4 numbers)
tasjeta de identidad de California SSN {fas ditimas 4 cifras) X XX -XX -

1.S. state or foreign country of birth
Estado de EEUU. o pafs extranjero donde nacié o

The address

where you five

La direccion donde vive
Do not use a PO. Box #

No porga apartado postal

Home address - Domicilio Apt or Unit # ~ N° de depto. o Unidad
City State Zip California county
Ciudad Estado CA  Cdd. postal Condado de California - o

* If you do not have a street address, describe where you' live including cross streets, Route, N, S. £ W, etc. - Si no tiene una direccidn con calle y
% nbmero, describa ddnde vive (cruce de calles, ruta, N, S, E, 0, ete.)

The address where you :
receive mail — La direccidn
donde recibe su correo

Skip if same as address above.

No llene si es fa misma que
puso mds arriba.

Mailing address - if different from above or a P.0. Box #

Direccidn postal, si no es la misma que puso més arriba o es apartado postal

City State Zip . Foreign country

Registration history
Historial de inscripcidn

If you were previpusly
registered or pre-registered
to vote, fill out this-section.
Si se inscribié o preinserbié
para votar anferiormente,
llene esta seccion.

o4 Ciudad Estado Cod. pdstal Pais extranjera e
First name - Primer nombre Middle initial — Inicial del segundo nombre  Last name - Apellido .
Previous address — Direccion anterior A Gity - Ciudad e
State Zip Previous county Previous political ﬁarty preference (if any)

Estade Cod. postat Condada anterior Preferencia. de pastido politico anterior (si correspunde)

Vote-by-mail
Votacidn por correo

| warit to get my bailot by mail before each election. *1f “Yes,” you will get your ballot by mail before each election but, if you want to vote
Quiero recibir mi boleta por correo antes de cada eleccidn. in person, you must turn in your ballot or vote a provisional ballot. — Si “Si", recibira
su holeta por correo antes de cada eleccidn: sin embargo, si quiere votar en persona

Political party preference
Preferencia de

partido politico

If you choose “No Party/None,”
you may not be able to vote
for same parties’ candidates
at a primary election for

U.S. President, or for a

party's central committee.

Si selecciona “Ningiin partido/ * © :

Ninguno”, es posible que no
i pueda vetar por algunos de
los candidatos partidarios
* en una eleccion primaria
para presidente de EE.UU.
¢ comité central partidario.

. preference ~ Desea indicar una

00 Ooooo

3 Yes-Si* [J fo tiene que entregar su boleta o votar con una boleta provisional,

1 want to chaose a political party Optional veter information — Datos optativos de! votante

preferencia de partido politico Email (optionalj — Email foptative)

L

" Phane number (optional) - Nomero de teléfono (optanva)

" O American Indepenident Party

Partido Americano independiente
Demacratic Party - Partido Demécrata
Green Party ~ Partido Verde

Libertarian Parly - Partido Libertario
Peace and Frzedom Party

Partido Paz y Libertad

-Republican Party — Partido Republicans
Other (specify): ~ Otto (especificar)

34 would like to receive election information by text message.
Quiero recibir informacién electoral por mensaje de texto.

My language preference for receiving election materials is. — Mi preferencm de
idioma para recibir materiales electorales es:

OEaglish  OSpanish  [Chinese  OHindi  OKhmer
: Espaiiol B fi4 {2

OXorean Ollapanese [Tagalog  CThai OVietnamese
830 BakEs ‘ na Viél ngir

o | do not want to choose a political party "
- preference — No deseo indicar una
preferencia de partido politico.

O No Party / None — Ningiin partido / Ninguno -"l

. O1 want voting materials in an accessible format. — Quiero recibir
materiales electorales en un formato accesible.

My ethnicity/race is: — Mi origen éinico/raza es:

000173
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I swear or affirm that: — Juro o afirmo que:

!am a LS. citizen and a resident of California and at least 16 years old. am not cufrently in state or federal prison or on parofe for the

: conviction of a felony. [ am not currently found
@ J. - incorrect information on this form, I declare un

mentally incompetent to vote by 2 court. | understand that it is a crime to intentionally provide
der penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Caiifornia that the information on this form is

true and correct, ~ Soy cindadano de EE.DU, ¥ soy residente de California y tengo af menos 16 afios de edad. No estoy actualmente en una prision

Affidavit . o " estatal o federal o en libertad condicional por ha
Declaracidn jurada m' actuaimente por una corte judicial. Entiendo que

You must sign in the red box

ber sido condenado de un delito mayer, No he sido declarado mentaimente incompstente para votar
brindar informacitn incorrecta de manera intencional e este formulario es un defito. Declaro bajo pena

de parjurio conforme 2 fas Ieyes del estado de California que fa informacicn en este formulario es verdadera y correcta.

for your registration to be
complete. —Para completar . ) x
su inscripcidn, tiene que

/ /

ﬁrmareq a casilla roja, - . Signature - Finma

Date Signed ~ Fecha de la firma  Month — Mes Day - Dfa Year ~ Afio

lorso 495533 200002 |

For Elections Information Contact o .
Para informacidn slectoral, | The law pratects your voter registration information
comuniquess con: against commercial use. Report any problems io the
Secretary of State's Voter Hotline: (800) 345-8563.
Alameda County La loy prohibe el use comerclal de su informacidn de
Registrar of Voters Inseripein como votante. Reparte cualquier problema
1225 Fallon Street, Room G-1 a la Linea de asistencia del Secretarlp de Estado:

Oakland CA 94612-4283 (800) 232-8682.

Did someone help you fill out or defiver this form? - iAlguien le ayuds
a llenar o entregar este formulario?

If “yes, the persen who helped you must fill out and sign both parts of this blue hox, **|
Si "5, ta persona que lo ayudd tiens que llenar y firmar ambas partes de esta casilla azuf

Signature - Firma Date ~ fecha / /

Name, address, and phone #: ~ Nombre, direccion ¥ nim. de teléfono:

(510) 272-6973

Tear herg and *u d. 3

4’ Separar anyl ¢ dab

| Hespit it s
Guardsia fizsta que

&t Do et st

4

23, The boltemn par is your receipt 'J' :
2 $rapai. L3 pans iferdor es sy recibe ¥
Gz Sdunly el tions officral. 1\

iinnatio elsctal de sy candzd,

X

I ] )
ﬁso 4 9 5 5 3 3 s (This part s the voler’s raceipt.)

Org. name and phane #: - Nombra y ndm, de telifano de la

Signature ~ Firma Date - Fecha 7 7

Name, address. and phone % — Nombre, direccion y.nim. de teléfong:

.| Otg. name and phone #: - Nombre ¥ nim. de teléfono de fa

{Esfa parte es el recibo para of votante),
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* Tovote in the next election, you iust be at ieast 18
years old on Election Day and mail or deliver this card
at least 15 days before the next election,

* If you miss the 15-day deadline, you can still register
and vote. Contact your county elections official.

¢ 16- and 17-year-olds that pre-register to vote will
automatically be registered voters when they turn 18

* New voters that register by mail may have to show a
form of identification the first time they vote, if they
didn't provide a driver license or SSN when registering,

* Once registersd, you may vote for any candidate for state

_ on.congressional office, regardless of the candidate’s or
your party preference or fack of parly preference,

I

* Mark “Yes" ifi box 7 to aliays receive your ballot by mail.
. or
* Once registered, to receive your baliot by mail for the
next efection, send a writien request to your county .
elections official at Jeast 7 days before the election,

Contact the Secretary of State's office:
» (800} 345-VOTE (8683) o WWW.508.Ca. g0V
» elections@sos.ca.gov o RegisterToVote.ca.gov
Or contact your local elections office,

i R
L
fi (800) 232-8682
.« (800) 339-2857

(800) 339-8163

Yes! Check dnllné at:
https.-//voterstatus.sns.ca.gnvv

iharthio e
If sharing your address could ‘put you in life
threatening danger, you may be eligible to register to
vote confidentially.
For more information, contact the Safe at Home program.
Safe at Home: (877) 322-5227
Online: SafeAtHome.sos.ca.gov

Si el poner su direccion puede poner en peligro su

vida, puede ser elegible para inscribirse para votar en
forma confidencial. \

Para gbtener més informacin, comunfquese con el
programa Safe at Home (Seguro en sy casa).

Safe at Home: (877) 322-5227
En linea: SafeAtHome.sos.ca.gov.

Tagalog; -
HEE:

AR
, tiane que tener al
menos 18 afios de edad para el dia de la eleccion y
enviar por coreo o entregar esta tarjeta por lo menos
13 dfas antes de Ia préxima eleccion,

Si se pasa de la fecha limite de 15 dfas, igual se
puede inscribir y votar, Comuniquese con e! funcionaio
electoral de su condado,

Las personas de 16 y 17 afios que se preinscriban para
votar serén.autométicamente votantes inscritos cuando
cumplan 18 afios de edad.

Los votantes nuevos que se inscribieron por correo y
no indicaron su ntimero de licencia de manejar nj del
Seguro Social, pueden tener que mostrar un documento
de identidad la primers vez que voten, :

Una vez inscrito, puede votar por cualquier candidato
a'un cargo estatal o del Congreso; sin importar la
preferencia partidaria de usted o def candidato, o
incluse si no tienen preferencia partidaria,”

1 0tfa:

s P A S D
e
o Marque *Sf" en la casilla 7 para recibir siempre su

boleta por correo,

0
* Una vez inscrito, si quiere recibir su boleta por correo
para la préxima eleccion, envie una solicitud por escrito
al funcionario electoral de su condado por lo menos 7
dias antes de Ia eleccidn,

« (800) 232-8682 * WWW.505.ca.gov
* elections@sos.ca.goy » RegisterToVote.ca.gov

0 comuniquese- con la oficina electoral de su con
T S
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Leah Hess, SB No. 126800
Attorney at Law

610 16™ Street, M-8
Oakland, CA 94612

Tel.  510.451.3103
leahhess2@sbcglobal.net

Attorney for Petitioner

Housing and Community Development Department
Rent Adjustment Program

CASE NUMBER: T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  5823/5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

PARTIES: Mark Sherman, Tenant
Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen, Owners

PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN’S OPPOSITION TO OWNERS’
APPEAL OF REMAND HEARING DECISION

On remand, after a full hearing on the merits, the Hearing Officer has determined that the
Owners, Harold Rus Michelsen and Diane Michelsen obtained a Certificate of Exemption for
Mark Sherman’s rental unit by means of fraud. The remand Hearing Decision concluded that
they had made false statements in the initial exemption hearing. Their testimony in that hearing
was intended to deceive and to enable them to obtain a certificate to which they were not entitled.
They repeated their false testimony in the remand hearing. Sherman proved their claim was
fraudulent.

The Michelsens do not claim in this Rent Board Appeal that the findings of fact enumerated in
the remand Hearing Decision are inaccurate or untrue. How could they? The evidence
overwhelmingly points to fraud. Instead, the Owners raise entirely procedural issues.

The Owners assert that the Hearing Decision “contradicts...and is in contempt” of an earlier
Appellate Court decision affirming the initial grant of exemption. They also assert that the prior
litigation concerning the initial grant of the exemption bars this further petition on res Judicata
and collateral estoppel grounds. Finally, they assert that their own currently pending appeal of
this case to the Court of Appeals bars this petition to the Rent Program.

The Appellate Court Decision Affirming The Granting Of The Initial
Certificate Of Exemption Does Not Bar This Petition From Proceeding

In this petition, Mr. Sherman challenged the validity of the original Certificate of Exemption.
This petition was summarily dismissed by the RAP and the Program Administrator. Sherman
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filed a writ to the Superior Court alleging that the summary dismissal violated due process.

The Rent Board met to discuss the case with counsel in closed session and decided that it was
indeed error to have denied Sherman the mandated hearings. Therefore, to remedy the error, the
Rent Board filed a motion in Superior Court, requesting that the matter be remanded back to the
Board. Alameda County Superior Court Case, No. RG16843, Rent Board Motion to Remand and
Dismiss.

In their opposition to the Rent Board’s motion for remand, the Michelsens raised claim and issue
preclusion and lack of jurisdiction as reasons not to remand. The Superior Court rejected those
arguments and remanded the case to the Board for further action.

In its motion for remand to the Superior Court, the Rent Board made it clear that M.
Sherman’sipetition does not “contradict” the Superior Court judgment and Appellate Court’s
Decision affirming the initial grant of exemption. Rather, this petition is a new and different type
of claim. As the Board stated in its motion for remand, a landlord’s petition claiming exemption
from the Ordinance differs from a subsequent challenge to the exemption based upon fraud or
mistake:

Although the dispute between the parties had been pending for many years and
appeared to have been finally decided by the [Superior] Court’s 2015 order and
judgment and the 2017 Court of Appeal decision, the 2016 tenants’ petition
actually presented a new issue.

Alameda County Superior Court Case No. RG16843, Rent Board’s Motion to Remand
and Dismiss p. 3:19-22

A hearing on the 2016 tenant’s petition will not re-litigate whether the property is
exempt....Instead, the hearing will examine whether there was “fraud or mistake”
in the underlying facts that led to the Hearing Officer’s or the Rent Board’s
ultimate finding that the property was exempt. Mr. Sherman has the burden of
proof on the latter issue. The parties have never litigated the latter issue involving
“fraud or mistake.”

Rent Board’s Reply to Owner’s Opposition to Motion to Remand p.2:5-10

The Rent Board pointed out that the Ordinance clearly contemplates challenges, based on fraud
or mistake, to previously issued Certificates of Exemption. If tenants are precluded from
suchisubsequent challenges, the following Ordinance provisions below would be rendered
meaningless.

A Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption absent fraud or
mistake. [Emphasis added].
OMC 8.22.030.B. (1)(b)

2
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Timely submission of a Certificate of Exemption previously granted in response
to a petition will result in dismissal of the petition absent proof of fraud and
mistake regarding the granting of the certificate. [Emphasis added]

OMC 8.22.030.B. (1)( ¢) '

In the event that a previously issued Certificate of Exemption is found to have
been issued based on fraud or mistake and thereby rescinded, the Staff will record
arescission of the Certificate of Exemption against the affected real property with
the County Recorder. [Emphasis added]

Regulation 8.22.130C.2.

The Superior Court rejected the Michelsens® arguments of lack of jurisdiction and granted the
Board’s motion. The Court remanded the matter back to the Board, reserving issues of res
Judicata [collateral estoppel for determination in the remand proceedings. (See, Exhibit 1,
Alameda County Superior Court. R. RG16843, Order/Motion to Remand and Dismiss Granted,
attached hereto)

In the remand proceedings, the remand Hearing Decision rejected the Owners’ res
Judicata/collateral estoppel arguments. The Hearing Officer also rejected the argument that only
extrinsic fraud could be alleged in the hearing. See, Exhibit 2: RAP. Hearing Decision, pp. 22-
25, attached hereto.

0

The Court Of Appeal Has Permitted Sherman’s Remand Hearing To Proceed While The
Appellate Case Is Pending

The owners appealed the Superior Court’s judgment to the First District Court of Appeal,
alleging that the Superior Court erred in remanding the case. In their Appeal, they again alleged
that the RAP lacked jurisdiction. They asserted, again that the action was barred by res judicata
and collateral estoppel and claimed that only extrinsic fraud could be alleged in the proceedings.
They asserted that the Superior Court erred in granting the Rent Board’s motion for remand.

The Michelsens filed three separate motions to stay the remand hearing pending the outcome of
their appeal to the First District Court of Appeal. In each, they repeated the arguments they had
raised before. The first motion to stay, to the First District Court of Appeal, was rejected for
procedural errors.

The Owners next filed a motion to stay the Rent Board proceedings in theiSuperior Court. The
Superior Court also rejected the motion. The Superior Court clearly stated that the Ordinance
permits a tenant to file a case to rescind an earlier case because it was based on fraud or mistake.
The Court also referred to the policy of hearing of matters on their merits, and noted the age of
the parties: “Postponing resolution on the merits could result in loss of evidence or memory and
prejudice the parties.” The Court did not address the issue of issue and claim preclusion, saying
that the parties could raise it in the remand proceedings. See, Exhibit 3, Alameda County

Superior Court, Order/Motion to Stay Proceedings Denied, attached hereto.

000178

0



The Michelsens again applied to the First District Court of Appeal for a stay of the RAP remand
 hearing (deemed, by the Appellate Court a writ of supersedeas). The request was again denied.
This time, the Appellate Court emphasized that the stay was denied “on the merits,” rather than
on procedural grounds, stating that the owners had not shown “probable error.” Nor had they
shown that any “substantial question” would be raised in the appeal. (See, Exhibit 4, Denial of
Writ of Supersedeas.)

The Remand Hearing Decision Should Be Affirmed

Mr. Sherman finally obtained a hearing on the merits of his claim of fraud. The Hearing Officer,
in a well-reasoned 31-page Remand Decision, detailed the voluminous facts upon which her
finding of fraud rested. She also set forth sound reasoning for her rejection of the Michelsen’s
defenses of lack of jurisdiction, res judicata/collateral estoppel, and extrinsic v. intrinsic fraud.

Conclusion

The Owners’ appeal of the remand Hearing Decision is without basis. When summarily denied
the hearing to which he was entitled, Sherman petitioned the Superior Court seeking remand. The
Rent Board wisely acknowledged that Mr. Sherman had been denied due process and moved the
Court requesting remand so that the error could be corrected. When the Michelsens appealed,
both the Superior Court and the First District Court of Appeal denied their requests for a stay of
the RAP hearing pending the outcome of the appeal. At the RAP Hearing, the Hearing Officer
rejected the Owner’s legal arguments and, upon reviewing the voluminous evidence,' she
determined that they had fraudulently obtained the initial Certificate of Exemption to the
detriment of both Mr. Sherman and the City of Oakland.

Mr. Sherman requests that the Board affirm the remand Hearing Decision, and that the Board
correct the decision’s Order with respect to rent overpayment and base rent issues only. (As
requested in Mr. Sherman’s appeal). Alternatively, Mr. Sherman requests that the Board affirm
the entire decision, except for rent overpayment and base rent determinations, and remand for the
sole purpose of making such corrections.

January 17, 2019 | R%

Leah Hess
Attorney for Mark Sherman

'The evidence included live testimony from two prior tenants and a declaration, under
penalty of perjury from another, voter registration records showing numerous prior tenants at the
property, telephone directory records, reverse directories, and other documents. Both owners
were shown to have intentionally made false statements about the residential history of the
building and the construction of rental units at the property.
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Law Office of Leah Hess City of Oakland
Attn; Hess, Leah- : . ' .
1736 Franklin Street

10th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Superior Court of California, County of Alameda

Hayward Hall of Justice :
Sherman _ - No.RG16843773
Plaintiff/Petitioner(s) :
Order
VS.
Motion To Remand and Dismiss
City of Oakland Granted
: _ Defendant/Respondent(s)
(Abbreviated Title)

The Motion To Remand and Dismiss was set for hearing on 07/12/2017 at 09:00 AM in Department
511 before the Honorable Kimberly E. Colwell. The Tentative Ruling was published and has not been
contested. '

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

The tentative ruling is affirmed as follows: The motion of the Coty of Oakland to remand and dismiss
the case is GRANTED. S '

Petitioner Sherman asserts that on 7/25/16 the Hearing Officer issued an administrative decision
without providing a hearing and that on 9/28/16 the Rent Board issued a final decision again without
providing a hearing. The City's motion asserts that it was an error to dismiss petitioner's claim without
a hearing and seeks a court order remanding the matter so that the Rent Board can revisit the matter.
Petitioner does not oppose the motion. :

It is ORDERED that that 7/25/16 decision of the Hearing Officer and the 9/28/16 decision of the Rent
Board are VACATED. The court remands the matter to the Rent Board. The court does not direct or
constrain the Rent Board's discretion regarding the conduct of further proceedings. (CCP 1094.5(%).)

If after further administrative proceedings the Rent Board issues another decision, then a challenge to -
any such administrative decision should be made in a new case before this court. :

The court enters JUDGMENT in favor of Peﬁtioner Sherman. The case is DISMISSED.

frmmle

_‘ %
Dated: 07/12/2017 - 074_ Ut

Judge Kimberly E. Colwell

Order

. | E_‘IH"A”— ) ‘ 000}8@’\



~ CITY oF OAKLAND |
250 FRANK OGAWA PLAZA, .SUl'i'E 5313, OAKLAND, CA ‘94612

Housing and Community Development Department ~~~ ~ TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ' - FAX (510) 238-6181
TDD (510) 238-3254
HEARING DECISION
CASE NUMBER: ‘ T16-0258, Sherman v. Michelsen

PROPERTY ADDRESSES:  5823-5825 Occidental Street, Oakland, CA

DATES OF HEARING: February 23, 2018; June 22, 2018
DATE OF PRETRIAL S |
CONFERENCE: October 17, 2017

" DATE OF DECISION: November 30, 2018

APPEARANCES: Mark Sherman, Tenant (all dates)
- Leah Hess, Attorney for Tenant (all dates)
Charles Abraham, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only)
Sue Doyle, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only) '
Daniel Wiener, Witness (by phone, Feb. 23, 2018, only)
Michael Joffe, Witness (Feb. 23, 2018, only)

Harold Rus Michelsen (by phone, Feb. 23, 2018, only), Owner .
Diane Michelsen, Owner (all dates) , :

SUMMARY OF DECISION
The tenant’s petition is granted. The legal rent for the unit is set forth in the Order below.

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

. The tenant filed a petition on May 20, 20i6, alleging that a rent increase from $1,817.80 to
$4,000 a month, effective June 1, 2016, violated the Rent Adjustment Ordinance '
(Ordinance) on the following grounds: the increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and is
unjustified or is greater than 10%; no written notice of the Rent Program (RAP Notice) was

given together with the notice of increase; the proposed increase would exceed an overall

CESNHIBT -
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CON CLUSIONS OF LAW

Does the tenant have a right to contest the exemption on the grounds that the
exemption was issued as a result of fraud or mistake? :

The Ordinance states that “A Certificate of Exemption is a final determination of exemption
absent fraud or mistake” and “(t)imely Submission of a certificate of exemption previously
granted in response to a petition shall result in dismissal of the petition absent proof of
fraud or mistake regarding the granting of the certificate. The burden of proving such fraud
or mistake is on the tenant.” 0.M.C. 8.22.030(B)(1)(b) and (c). There is no definition of
fraud or mistake given in either the Ordinance or the accompanying regulations. This
subsection of the Ordinance has been in the Ordinance continuously since 2002.

The Tenant Petition form contains a “ground for petition” that states “I wish to contest an
exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance.” This box was checked on Mark Sherman’s
petition in the instant case. Attached to his petition was an Attachment stating that his-
Primary claim is that the certificate of exemption in case L13-0054 (the exemption case) was
issued as a result of fraud or mistake. , v :

The ¢wners argue that because the tenant has not alleged fraud with specificity, that he
canmpot prevail in his claim and it must be dismissed. The law does not require specificity.

Sinet 2002, the Rent Adjustment Ordinance has prdvided a remedy to any tenant to
estajlish that a prior exemption was granted based on fraud or mistake. This remedy applies
to beth the tenant who is residing in the unit at the time the exemption is sought and to all

- Tutwe tenants of the unit or building in question. The pleading and proof requirements are

thog set by the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, the Regulations, and the Board and are not
thog set forth in the California Civil Code or those cases that interpret Code of Civil
Proedure § 473 (allowing for relief from “a judgment, dismissal, order, or other proceeding
taker against him or her through his or her mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable
negpct.”).

"TheRAP does not have pleadings beyond that which is provided by the Tenant Petition
forys. The form, as noted above, has a box to check if one wishes to contest a prior
exenption. There is no ability to do anything more than that, and nothing more than that is
reqired. Nonetheless, the tenant attached a statement to his petition stating that he was
clajning that the prior certificate of exemption was issued as a result of fraud or mistake.,
Thetenant has plead fraud or mistake with as much specificity as the Ordinance requires.

Adﬁtibhaily, the owners argue that the case must be dismissed because of the doctrines of
resudicata and collateral estoppel. These arguments also fail. Because the RAP is an

- adiinistrative agency, where no discovery exists prior to Hearing, the Ordinance provides a

rexedy for the tenant involved in the initial Hearing and all future tenants to challenge a
preiously issued Certificate of Exemption.39 Unlike the original petition, where the owner

3% tereare o interrogatories or depositions permitted in the RAP process. There are no requirements that parties
exdange documents. Parties are required to send all documents to the RAP 7 days prior to Hearing, allowing the
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“had the burden of proof to establish a new construction exemption, in this case, the tenant
has the burden of proof. This is a completely different hearing, with a different burden of -
proof, than the initial exemption Hearing and is not a collateral attack on the exemption

case.

Furthermore, res judicata bars claims that were, or should have been, made in a prior suit
involving the same parties. See DKN Holdings, LLC v. Faerber (2015) 61 Cal.4qt 813, 824.
However, since claims attacking a prior exemption can be made by either the tenant
involved in the first case or by the universe of future tenants, a claim attacking an exemption
is not a claim that should or could have been made in the prior suit. Thisis a completely
different claim and is not barred by either collateral estoppel or res judicata.

The owners also argue that the great interest in finality of judgment prevents a Hearing on
this matter and should result in a denial of the tenant’s petition. The City of Oakland, on the
other hand, has authored an Ordinance which allows current and future tenants to contest
exemptions granted because of fraud or mistake. While there is always a legitimate interest
in the finality of judgments, that interest does not supersede the interest that all judgments,
especially those that exclude housing from rent control in perpetuity, should not be based on

fraud or mistake.

Furthermore, the owners’ purported concern as to judgment finality is really only their own
self-interest at stake. There is simply no evidence to suggest that allowing a tenant to contest
an exemption in this instance will cause a massive number of cases to be filed repeatedly
contesting previously granted exemptions. In fact, as far as this Hearing Officer knows, there
is only one other case in which this matter has been litigated in the history of the Rent

Program.40: 41 :

Finally, if the Rent Adjustment Program was limiting petitions based on judgment finality,
the owners would not have been allowed to claim in the exemption case that the unit was
exempt, because they did not make that claim in the original rent increase petition (T12- .
0332). That rent increase petition was fully litigated and the owner never raised the claim
that the unit was exempt from the RAP program. Yet the owner was allowed to file the
exemption case. The reason they were allowed to file the exemption case is that the RAP
does not have rules requiring that all claims be decided in one Hearing. The ability of the
‘owner to file the exemption case after the complete litigation of the tenant’s original petition
is a clear demonstration that the interest of judgment finality-does not supersede all other
interests, including the interest of introducing new evidence and of adjudicating the decision
fairly and correctly. It was not possible for the tenant to allege that there was fraud in the

opposing party to review those documents at a file review. Additionally, while a party can request a good cause finding - -
for the issuance of a subpoena, this procedure is not known by many, is not written in any of the RAP handouts and is not
described in the Ordinance or the Regulations. : x
40 While other tenants do sometimes check the box on the petition form that they wish to contest'an exemption, this box is
often checked before a prior exemption has been granted. See, for example, Peters v. Sullivan, T17-0274 and Cordes v.
Park, T17-0376, for cases where the tenants checked the box that they wished to contest an exemption, when no
exemption had previously been granted.

4 gee Scott v. Suh, T18-0150, which is currently pending.

-
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underlying exemption case until the owners testified that the unit had no prior residential
Use.42 o : '

Eﬁle City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance states in its “findings and purpose” section,
at: ‘ o : :

“The City Council finds that a shortage of decent, safe, affordable and sanitary
residential housing continues to exist in Oakland. This shortage is evidence by
a low vacancy rate amount such units through the city and continually
increasing demand for such housing. Many residents of Oakland pay a
substantial amount of their monthly income for rent. The present shortage of
rental housing units and the prevailing rent levels have a detrimental effect on
the health, safety, and welfare of a substantial number of Oakland residents,
particularly senior citizens, persons in low and moderate income households,

and persons on fixed incomes......” O.M.C. § 8.22.010(A).

This 1ayguage, combined with the language allowing any tenant to contest-an exemption
based ¢ fraud or mistake, makes it clear that the City gives great weight to returning a
wrongj exempted dwelling unit to Oakland’s stock of affordable housing.

Is thetenant’s claim limited to a claim that the fraud committed by the owner
‘was egirinsic frand? :

The oymers argue that the tenant can only prevail in his claim if he proves extrinsic fraud,
rathejthan intrinsic fraud. (Extrinsic fraud is fraud that relates to the underlying litigation,
such s being told that a Hearing is continued, when in fact it was not. Intrinsic fraud is -
frangiat relates to the testimony given in the underlying matter.) It is not the law in this
jurisdetion that the only kind of fraud that can be claimed in a case seeking to nullify a

previosly granted Certificate of Exemption is extrinsic fraud.

The gility to challenge a fraudulently granted exemption affects the rights of current and
futyy tenants to rent regulation as well as the interests of the City of Oakland to protect its
tenays from unscrupulous landlords. Since any tenant who resides in a unit after a
Certfcate of Exemption has been granted can raise a claim that the exemption was granted
basejon fraud or mistake it is not possible to limit these cases to those of extrinsic fraud as -
thatlind of fraud only occurs between the parties in the underlying proceeding.

Ad gjonally, the cases cited by the owners in this argument are all cases that interpret Code
of il Procedure § 473, which procedurally allows for relief from judgment (by the

un ylying parties toa proceeding) based on mistake, inadvertence and excusable neglect. It
is iyhis context that it has been held that fraud in an underlying proceeding can only be -

 clajedifit is “extrinsic.” See for example, In re Marriage of Stevenot (1984) 154 Cal. App.

3Q 51 The claims that arise in the instant case are not claims that are limited to the -
D axks in a proceeding, as are those claims that interpret CCP § 473. Therefore, it would

+=2 _Anoted below, the RAP does not have discovery, which would have allowed the tenant to learn about the owners’

clajs in great detail prior to the Hearing.

-
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-severely hamper the investigation of fraudulent misrepresentations by owners who seek to
" defraud the City of Oakland, if these claims were limited to only those cases where extrinsic
fraud was at stake.

Still further, even in those cases that interpret CCP § 473, the courts have held that the rules
about extrinsic and intrinsic fraud are not hard and fast. In cases where discovery is limited
" (as in proceedings before the Rent Board, where there is no discovery available between the
parties), courts have held that claims of fraud cannot be limited to only extrinsic fraud.

The case of Pour le Bebe v.‘Guess?, Inc. 112 Cal. App.4th 810, is instructive. That case arose
out of an arbitration, where discovery is limited. When the plaintiff claimed that fraud had

been committed in the underlying action the Court held:

“Because parties to an arbitration are not afforded the full panoply of procedural
rights available to civil litigants, lacking for example the right to an appeal or to
extensive d1scovery, courts generally take a more lenient approach when examining
intrinsic fraud in the context of a motlon to vacate an arbitration award.” Id. at 829.

For all of these reasons, the tenant’s cla1m that there was fraud committed by the owner is
not limited to a claim of extrinsic fraud.

‘Was the prior exemption granted as a result of fraud?

The elements of fraud are “(a) a misrepresentation (false representation, concealment or
nondisclosure); (b) knowledge of falsity (or ‘scienter’); (c) intent to defraud, i.e., to induce
reliance; (d) justifiable reliance; and (e) resulting damage.” Lazar v. Superior Court (1996)
12. Cal. 4t 631, 638. '

The first questions then, are these: was Mr, Michelsen’s testimony in the exemption case
that there was no prior residential use of Sherman’s unit prior to 1984 false testimony and

did he know that the testimony was false?

The evidence in this case establishes that the declaration provided by Mr. Michelsen, (and -
supported by Ms. Michelsen’s live testimony at the exemption Hearing) that when he rented
the premises to Mark Sherman in September of 1985, it was the first time the premises were
rented as a residence, was false testimony. Both Michelsens’ further testified that there were
no bath or kitchen facilities in the unit prior to the Sherman rental and this too was false.

There is ample evidence of prior residential use. F1rst there is clear and convmcmg evidence
that Charles Abraham and Daniel Wiener resided in the unit at 5823 Occidental. In '
Abraham’s case the evidence establishes that he lived there for many years beginning in
1976 or 19777. The fact that Abraham’s move in date is more likely than not to be 1976 is
corroborated by Wiener’s testimony that he moved into the unit in 1976 because, since
Wiener was a subtenant of Abraham’s, he could not have moved in in 1976 unless Abraham

was already residing there.
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Law Office of Leah Hess City of Oakland
Attn; Hess,Leah

1736 Franklin Street

10th Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

Superior Court of California, County of Alameda

Hayward Hall of Justice

Sherman No. RG 16843773
: Plaintiff/Petitioner(s) :

Order.

VS.
Motion to Stay Proceedings
City of Oakland | | Deniod
Defendant/Respondent(s)
(Abbreviated Title)

The Motion to Stay Proceedings was set for hearing on 11/08/2017 at 09:00 AM in Department 507
before the Honorable Jennifer Madden. The Tentative Ruling was published and was contested.

Third Party Diane Michelsen appearing. Third Party Rus Michelsen not appearing. Respondent City of
Oakland appearing represented by Jamilah Jefferson. : v :

The matter was argued and submitted, and good cause appearing therefore, '
-IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

- The tentative ruling is affirmed as follows: The Motion of Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen to stay the
case is DENIED. : .

Following two earlier Rent Board cases, Sherman filed a third case asserting that there was fraud or
mistake in.the second Rent Board case finding that the property was exempt. A person can file a Rent
Board case asserting that an earlier Rent Board decision should be rescinded because it was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22.030B.1.b, OMC 8.22.030B.1.c, and OMC 8.22.030.C.2.) The Hearing
Officer dismissed the third Rent Board case without a hearing.

On 12/28/16 Petitioner Sherman filed this action seeking a wﬁt that would direct the City of Oaklaﬂd to
set aside the decision dismissing the third Rent Board case. ' :

The City filed a motion stating that the City erred in dismissing petitioner's claim without a hearing and
sought dismissal of the case. On 7/12/17, the court dismissed the case, stating, "It is ORDERED that
that 7/25/16 decision of the Hearing Officer and the 9/28/16 decision of the Rent Board are
VACATED. The court remands the matter to the Rent Board."

On 9/13/17, Real parties in interest Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen filed an appeal and sought to stay
the trial court proceedings. (Sherman v. Oakland, Court of Appeal case No. A152429.) On 10/4/ 17,
the Court of Appeal denied the request for a stay of (petition for writ of supersedeas) on procedural

grounds.

On 10/11/14, petitioner filed a motion in this court secking to stay the Rent Board proceedings. The
Court may stay its own cases in the interest of justice. (C.C.P. 187, Jordache Enterprises, Inc. v.
Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison (1998) 18 Cal.4th 739, 758.) The court can also stay an administrative
proceeding if the administrative proceeding is the subject of a pending case.

Order
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The court will not stay the administrative proceeding. The court generally favors the resolution of
matters on the merits, so the court will err in favor of permitting the Rent Board to address the merits,
The facts in the third Rent Board case date back many years and the parties in the third Rent Board
case are over the age of 70, so postponing resolution on the merits could result in loss of evidence or

memory and prejudice the parties.

The court does not address whether the second Rent Board case has claim or issue preclusion effect on
the third Rent Board case. The parties can raise that issue in the third Rent Board case. "' :

The court's order does not preclude any party from seeking a stay of the third Rent Board case in the
third Rent Board case. : : :

Dated: 11/08/2017 W% |

TJudge Jennifer Madde;

P12 00187




Law Office of Leah Hess . City of Oakland
Attn: ‘Hess, Leah o

- 1736 Franklin Street
10th Floor -
Oakland, CA 94612

Superior Court of California, County of Alameda

Hayward Hall of Justice
Sherman ' No. RG16843773
Plaintiff/Petitioner(s) :
Order -
VS.
Motion to Stay Proceedings
City of Oakland Denied
Defendant/Respondent(s)
(Abbreviated Title) .

The Motion to Stay Proceedings was set for hearing on 11/08/2017 at 09:00 AM in Department 507
before the Honorable Jennifer Madden, The Tentative-Ruling was published and was contested.

Third Party Diane Michelsen appearing, Third Party Rus Michelsen not appearing Respondent City of
Oakland appearing represented by Jamilah Jefferson. v

The matter was argued and submitted, and good cause appeari;fg‘ therefore,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

The tentative ruling is affirmed as follows: The Motion of Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen to stay the
case is DENIED. _

Following two earlier Rent Board cases, Sherman filed a third case asserting that there was fraud or
mistake in the second Rent Board case finding that the property was exempt. A person can file a Rent
Board case asserting that an earlier Rent Board decision should be rescinded because it was based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22.030B.1.b, OMC 8.22.030B.1.¢, and OMC.8.22.030.C.2) The Hearing
Officer dismissed the third Rent Board case without a hearing.. , .

On 12/28/16 Petitioner Sherman filed this action seeking a writ that would direct the City of Oakland to
set aside the decision dismissing the third Rent Board case. :

The City filed a motion stating that the City erred in dismissing petitioner's claim without a hearing and
sought dismissal of the case. On 7/12/ 17, the court dismissed the case, stating, "It is ORDERED that
that 7/25/16 decision of the Hearing Officer and the 9/28/16 decision of the Rent Board are .
VACATED. The court remands the matter to the Rent Board." :

On 9/13/17, Real parties in interest Diane and Harold Rus Michelsen filed an appeal and sought to stay
the trial court proceedings. (Sherman v, Oakland, Court of Appeal case No. Al52429.) On10/4/17,
the Court of Appeal denied the request for a stay of (petition for writ of supersedeas) on procedural
grounds. - 4 ' '

On 10/11/14, petitioner filed a motion in this court seeking to stay the Rent Board proceedings. The
Court may stay its own cases in the interest of justice. (C.C.P. 187: Jordache Enterprises, Inc. v.
Brobeck, Phleger & Harrison (1998) 18 Cal.4th 739, 758.) The court can also stay an administrative
proceeding if the administrative proceeding is the subject of a pending case, :

- Byl
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The court will not stay the administrative proceeding. The court generally favors the resolution of
matters on the merits, so the court will err in favor of permitting the Rent Board to address the merits.
The facts in the third Rent Board case date back many years and the parties in the third Rent Board
case are over the age of 70, so postponing resolution on the merits could result in loss of evidence or
memory and prejudice the parties. ’

The court does not address whether the second Rent Board case has claim or issue preclusion effect on
- the third Rent Board case. The parties can raise that issue in the third Rent Board case." '

The court's order does not preclude any party from seeking a sfay of the third Rent Boérd'case in the
third Rent Board case. ,

Dated: 11/08/2017 | ' W%

Judge Jennifer Madden

Order
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PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAIL

I am over the age of eighteen (18) and not a party to the within case. I am employed in the
County of Alameda, State of California. My business address is 610 16™ Street, Suite M-8,
Oakland, CA 94612.

On January 18, 2019, I served true copies of the following document:

PETITIONER MARK SHERMAN’S OPPOSITION TO OWNER’S APPEAL OF
REMAND HEARING DECISION

By First Class Mail to the following addresses:

Francis McKeown
2550 Ninth Street, Suite 202
Berkeley, CA 94710

Diane Michelsen
PO Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570

Harold Michelsen
PO Box 6363
Moraga, CA 94570

Jamilah A. Jefferson

City Attorney’s Office

One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6™ Floor

Oakland, CA 94612

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the

foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Oakland, Calif;

ASUSAN DOYLE
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- FRANCIS M. MCKEOWN (BAR NO. 122796)

T <
\

L ENT ARBITRAT

MCKEOWN & ASSOCIATES 2010 JAN 28 PMI12: 32
2550 9™ STREET, SUITE 202

BERKELEY, CA 94710

TELEPHONE 510-647-0600

FACSIMILE 510-644-1905

Attorney for Real Party In Interest HAROLD RUS
MICHELSEN AND DIANE MICHELSE

CITY OF OAKLAND RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM

MARK SHERMAN, CASE NO. T16-0258
Petitioner and Appellant,

Vs.
' : OPPOSITION TO APPEAL
CITY OF OAKLAND (RENT BOARD,

Respondent.

HAROLD RUS MICHELSEN AND DIANE
MICHELSEN,

N N e N N Nt N Nt e e e e

Real Parties in Interest.

Real Party In Interest Diane Michelsen and Harold Rus Michelsen file this opposition to
the appeal of the rent board decision of November 30, 2018 in order to preserve their rights in
this process.

The thrust of the position of the real parties in iﬂterest was set forth in the court of appeal
reply brief filed in this matter. The rent board has taken the position that res judicata does not
apply to their decisions, which may be inconsistent and petitioners may apparently file multiple
betitions on the same matters and obtain new and different decisions.

While this may well be within the powers of the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment

Program to decline to giverespect to its previous decisions, it may not do so with respect to the

decisions of the California Superior Court, or the California Court_of Appeal for the First

District.

Opposition
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Sherman’s Respondent’s brief on appeal set out the law succinctly:

The California Supreme Court has stated: “‘Res judicata’ describes the
preclusive effect of a final judgment on the merits.” (Mycogen Corp. v.
Monsanto Co., (2002) 28 Cal. 4th 888, 896) It “prevents relitigation of the
same cause of action in a second suit between the same parties.(/d. at p. 897.)
Under the doctrine, “all claims based on the same cause of action must be
decided in a single suit; if not brought initially, they may not be ralsed ata
later date.” (Ibid.)

Collateral estoppel precludes relitigation of issues. (Lucido v. Superior Court

- (1990) 51 Cal.3d 335, 341. The doctrine applies only if 1) the issue sought to

be precluded is identical to that decided in a prior proceeding; 2) the issue
must have been actually litigated in the prior proceeding; 3) it must have been
necessarily decided in that proceeding; 4) the party against whom collateral
estoppel is asserted, must be the same as the party in the prior proceeding; and,
5) the decision in the former proceeding must be final and on the merits.
(Pacific Lumber Co. v. State Water Resources Control Bd. (2006) 37 Cal. 4th
921, 943-944. (Respondent’s Brief, pages 29-30.) (Sherman Respondent’s
Brief, pages 33-34.)

Sherman went on to quite accurately state the law with respect to attacks on the

underlying decision based upon extrinsic versus intrinsic fraud:

It is well settled in California law that a final judgment may be set aside if it is
the result of extrinsic fraud, but not if it is the result of intrinsic fraud. Fraud is
extrinsic if it prevents a party from having a fair hearing, such as a false
promise of settlement, or purposely keeping the party in ignorance of the suit.
Iritrinsic fraud, on the other hand, is fraud committed at the trial, such as
perjury or submitting forged documents. Pico v. Cohn 91 Cal. 129, 133-134

(1891) ; 8 Witkin, Cal. Procedure (Sth ed. 2008) Attack on Judgment in Trial
Court, § 225, p. 832. Intrinsic fraud consists of matters such as “deliberate,

intentional misrepresentations, untruths, half truths and deceitfully misleading
declarations...” Beresh v. Sovereign Life Ins. Co. 92 Cal.App.3d 547 (1979).

If the aggrieved party had a reasonable opportunity to appear and litigate his
claim or defense, fraud occurring in the course of the proceeding isnota
ground for equitable relief. The theory is that these matters will ordinarily be
exposed during the trial by diligence of the party and his or her counsel, and
that the occasional unfortunate results of undiscovered perjury or other
intrinsic fraud must be endured in the interest of stability of final judgments. 8
Witkin, Cal. Procedure (5th ed. 2008) Attack on Judgment in Trial Court, §
225, p. 832. (Sherman Respondent’s Brief, pages 33-34.)

Opposition
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The Rent Board has declined to apply this well-articulated recitation of the iaw.

Instéad, the Rent Board ignores the fact that this case has already been decided in the

|l Superior Court and in the Court of Appeal, and attempt to frame this as an issue of whether

the rent board can reconsider its decisions. But we must underscore that this is the basic
error made by the Rent Board and by the petitioner here. If the rent board were merely
reconéidering its own decisions and gave them little weight such that issue préclusion did not
apply, that could quite possibly be perfectly fine legally, though it may lead to administrative
chaos. But the Oakland Rent Board and the Respondent Sherman may not treat the ‘dec\isions
of the California Court of Appeal and the Alameda Sﬁperior Court so cavalierly. There are
well established principles of res judicata and collateral éstoppel that apply to provide
}Sermanence and certainty and an end to litigation.

Accordingly, the Appeal should be deniéd along with the Rent Board’s decision of
November 30, 2018 which was issued in violation of the principles of res judicata and collateral

estoppel set forth herein.

January 28, 2019
FRANCIS M. McKEOWN |
Attorney for Real Party In Interest HAROLD RUS
MICHELSEN AND DIANE MICHELSEN
Opposition
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SHERMAN V CITY OF OAKLAND
Court Of Appeal Case A157249,
(Superior Court Case #RG16843773)

PROOF OF SERVICE
[C.C.P.§2009]

I, the undersigned, state:

I am a citizen of the United States. My business address is 2550 Ninth Street, Suite 202
Berkeley, California 94710. I am over the age of eighteen years and not a party to this action. On the datg
set forth below, I served the foregoing documents described as follows: :

OPPOSITION TO APPEAL

On the following person(s) in this action by placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope
addressed as follows:

Leah Hess
610 16* Street, M-8
Oakland, CA 94612

Jamilah Jefferson
1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6+ Floor
Oakland CA 94612

[x] BY FIRST CLASS MAIL - I am readily familiar with my firm's practice for collection and
processing of correspondence for mailing with the United States Postal Service, to- w1t, that
correspondence will be deposited with the United States Postal Service this same day in the
ordinary course of business. I sealed said envelope and placed if for collectlon and mailing th1s
date, following ordinary business practices.

I. declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the -
foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed this date in Berkeley, California.

Dated:; January 28, 2019

Annie Taylor

PROOF OF SERVICE
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